

Tab	ole	of Contentsii
I.	In	vitation for Bid1
١١.	In	struction to Bidders
A	۱.	Receipt of Bids
В		Preparation of Bid3
С		Bid Security
D).	Time of Completion4
E	•	Performance and Labor Material Bonds4
F	•	Laws and Regulations4
G	ì.	Withdrawal of Bids4
Н	١.	Execution of Contract4
١.		Obligation of Bidder5
J.		Omissions, Discrepancies, Interpretations and Addenda5
К	, 	Record of Address5
L		Massachusetts Sales and Use Tax5
Ν	Λ.	State Tax Affidavit5
Ν	I.	Minimum Wage Rates5
C).	Sub-bids6
Ρ		Supplemental Information6
III.		Proposal7
В	ID	SUMMARY
A	۱.	Financial Statement12
В		Bidders Experience Record12
С		Certification of Tax Compliance
D).	CERTIFICATE OF NON-COLLUSION14
IV.		Contract15
A	١.	Definitions15
В		Parts of Contract15
C		Obligations of the Contractor15
D).	Liability of the Contractor

Table of Contents

E.	Authority of the Engineer16
F.	Engineer to Decide
G.	Time for Commencing Work
Н.	No Damages for Certain Delays17
I.	Time for Completion17
J.	Competent Persons to be Employed17
к.	Access to Work
L.	Defective Work, Materials or Equipment18
M.	Mistakes of Contractor18
N.	Discrepancies, Errors and Omissions18
0.	Right to Materials19
Ρ.	Compliance with Laws, Ordinances, and Regulations19
Q.	Provisions Required by Law Deemed Inserted19
R.	Work Hours19
S.	Intoxicating Liquors
т.	Permits and Notices
U.	Patents
V.	Insurance
w.	Work Not to be Sublet or Assigned21
Х.	Alterations21
Υ.	Extra Work
Z.	Extension of Time on Account of Extra Work
AA.	Changes Not to Affect Bonds23
BB.	Completion of Work if Contract is Not Fulfilled23
CC.	Compensation for Work24
DD.	Money may be Retained
EE.	Estimates and Payments24
FF.	Partial Payment Not Acceptance25
GG.	Liens
HH.	Waiver25
١١.	Liability of the Town of Arlington26

	IJ.	Guarantee
	KK.	Money Retained for Repairs
	LL.	Address of Contractor
	MM	. CERTIFICATE of VOTE
V.	PI	ERFORMANCE BOND
VI.		General Conditions
	A.	Definitions
	В.	Abbreviations
	C.	Handling Materials32
	D.	Storage Room
	E.	Shop Drawings, Schedules, and Descriptive Matter
	F.	Equivalents
	G.	Materials and Workmanship
	H.	Inspection by the Engineer
	١.	Documents at Site of Work
	J.	Lines and Grades
	К.	Scaffolding and Protection
	L.	Public Safety and Property of Others
	M.	Existing Structures, Pipes, Conduits, Etc34
	N.	Sanitary Provisions
	0.	Cutting and Patching
	Ρ.	Management of Debris, Refuse, and Garbage and Site Cleanup
	Q.	Measurement of Quantities35
	R.	Compliance with Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970
	S.	Order of Precedence Governing Specifications
	Т.	Affirmative Action/Anti-Discrimination
	1.	Compliance with Requirements37
	2.	Non-Discrimination
	3.	Solicitations for Sub-Contracts, and for the Procurement of Materials and Equipment38
	4.	Bidders Certification Requirement
	5.	Contractor's Certification

6	Compliance-Information, Reports and Sanctions	38
7	. Severability	39
VII.	SPECIAL CONDITIONS	40
Α.	SCOPE OF SPECIAL CONDITIONS	40
В.	MINIMUM LIMITS FOR INSURANCE	40
C.	RETAINAGE	40
D.	PAYMENT OF SUMS DUE CONTRACTOR	40
E.	DISPOSAL OF EXCAVATED MATERIAL	40
F.	EXCERPTS FROM CERTAIN LAWS	40
G.	REGULATIONS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS	41
Н.	ADJACENT CONTRACTS	41
١.	TRAFFIC ORDERS	41
J.	TIME FOR COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	42
К.	RESTORATION OF SURFACE	42
L.	PROTECTION OF TREES	42
M.	INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT	43
N.	CONTROL OF WATER SYSTEM	43
0.	COMMUNITY NOTICES, COORDINATION, AND NO PARKING SIGNS	43
Ρ.	AWARD OF CONTRACT	43
Q.	WORKSITE DUST CONTROL	43
R.	CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE	44
VIII.	REMOVAL OF UNDERGROUND NON - FRIABLE ASBESTOS CEMENT PIPE	45
Α.	GENERAL	45
В.	SUBMITTALS:	45
C.	GENERAL APPLICABILTY CODED, REGULATIONS AND STANDARDS:	46
D.	LICENSING AND TRAINING OF WORKERS	46
E.	MATERIALS	46
F.	CONSTRUCTION METHODS	48
1	. General	48
2	NOTIFICATION TO MASSDEP:	48
3.	ASBESTOS CEMENT PIPE DURING EXCAVATION:	48

4	ASBESTOS CEMENT PIPE LEFT IN PLACE49
5	ASBESTOS CEMENT PIPE DISPOSAL PROCEDURES
G.	MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
IX.	EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL
Α.	GENERAL
В.	CLASSIFICATION
C.	CONSTRUCTION METHODS
1	. GENERAL
2	. TRENCH EXCAVATION
3	. MISCELLANEOUS TRENCH EXCAVATION
4	. TRENCH ROCK EXCAVATION
5	. UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL
D.	MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
Х. С	RAVEL
Α.	GENERAL
В.	MATERIAL
C.	CONSTRUCTION METHODS
D.	MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
XI.	CONTROLLED DENSITY FILL (FLOW FILL)
Α.	GENERAL
В.	MATERIAL
C.	CONSTRUCTION METHODS
D.	MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
XII.	DUCTILE IRON PIPE AND FITTINGS
Α.	GENERAL
В.	MATERIALS
C.	CONSTRUCTION METHODS
В	6. Thrust Restraint
D.	MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
Ε.	NEW CEMENT LINED DUCTILE IRON PIPE
F.	PIPE FITTINGS

XIII.	GATE VALVES AND BOXES	66
Α.	GENERAL	66
В.	MATERIALS	66
1	L. GENERAL	66
2	2. VALVE BOXES	66
3	3. CONSTRUCTION METHODS	66
4	4. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT	67
XIV.	POST HYDRANTS	68
Α.	GENERAL	68
В.	MATERIALS	68
C.	CONSTRUCTION METHODS	68
D.	MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT	68
E.	HYDRANT REPLACEMENT AND NEW HYDRANT	69
F.	HYDRANT REMOVE AND RESET	69
XV.	TEMPORARY BY-PASS SYSTEM	70
Α.	GENERAL	70
В.	MATERIALS	71
C.	CONSTRUCTION METHODS	71
D.	MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT	72
E.	TERMPORARY BYPASS WATER LINES AND SERVICES	72
XVI.	SERVICE LINES	74
Α.	GENERAL	74
В.	SERVICE RENEWAL	74
C.	MATERIALS	74
D.	CONSTRUCTION METHODS	75
1	I. GENERAL	75
2	2. SERVICE LINES	76
3	3. CORPORATION STOPS	76
4	I. CURB STOPS	77
E.	MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT	77
XVII.	BITUMINOUS CONCRETE PAVING AND CONCRETE WALKS	79

GENERAL	.79
CLASSIFICATION	.79
MATERIALS	. 80
CONSTRUCTION METHODS	. 80
GENERAL	. 80
MAINTENANCE PERIOD OF ROADWAY SURFACE	.81
MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT	.81
	GENERAL CLASSIFICATION MATERIALS CONSTRUCTION METHODS GENERAL MAINTENANCE PERIOD OF ROADWAY SURFACE MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

I. Invitation for Bid

Sealed bids are invited and will be received by the Town Manager, Town of Arlington, Massachusetts, until **10:00 A.M., Thursday, September 17, 2020** at the Office of the Purchasing Agent, Town Hall, Arlington, Massachusetts 02476, at which time and place they will be publicly opened and read.

A BID DEPOSIT IN THE FORM OF CASH, CERTIFIED CHECK, OR TREASURER'S CHECK, shall accompany every bid. The amount of such bid deposit shall be FIVE PERCENT (5%) of the value of the bid.

Specifications and proposal forms will be available on the Town of Arlington's purchasing web site (http://www.arlingtonma.gov/departments/purchasing) or at the Office of the Purchasing Agent, Town Hall, Arlington, Massachusetts. All bids must be in sealed envelopes plainly marked: **Bid On: Water Distribution System Improvements, BID #20-38**

The conditions of employment as set forth in Sections 26 to 27D and 27F of Chapter 149 of the General Laws, as amended, shall prevail in the execution of the work under this contract.

Attention is called to the fact that minimum wage rates and health, welfare, and pension fund contributions are established for this contract and are a part of the specifications.

Work under this contract shall be governed by M.G.L.Ch.30, Sec. 39M.

Attestation Forms pursuant to M.G.L. Ch. 62C, Sec. 49A and M.G.L. Ch. 701 of the Acts of 1983 are enclosed and shall be submitted with bids.

By-law of the Town of Arlington, Title 1, Article 16, Minority/Woman Workforce Participation

in Construction Projects which exceed \$200,000.00 is part and parcel of the bid.

Proposals are for Water Distribution System Improvement Work, including water main replacement, on Blossom Street, Brattle Street, Massachusetts Avenue, Newland Road, and Oakledge Street in the Town of Arlington, MA.

Pre-Bid questions shall be submitted in writing to Assistant Town Engineer William Copithorne (wcopithorne@town.arlington.ma.us) by Friday, September 11, 2020, at 4:00 PM.

It is the intention of the Owner to award the Contract to the lowest qualified responsive bidder. The bidder must submit a bid on all bid items in the Contract.

All proposals to include prices both written and in figures, and must be signed by the bidder with their business address.

An increase or decrease in the quantity of work shall not be regarded as a sufficient ground for an increase in the unit prices.

To receive consideration, bids must be in the hands of the Purchasing Agent or their authorized representative not later than the day and hour *above* mentioned. For further information relative to this bid, please confer with Domenic R. Lanzillotti, Director, Purchasing Department, Town Hall, Arlington, Massachusetts, 02476.

OSHA Construction Training Required: As of July 1, 2006, under M.G.L. Chapter 30, Section 39s, any person, submitting a bid for, or signing a contract to work on, the construction, reconstruction, alteration, remodeling or repair of any public work by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts/Town of Arlington, and estimated by the awarding Authority to cost more than \$10,000, shall certify on the Bid or Contract, under penalty of perjury, that all employees to be employed at the work will have successfully completed a course in construction safety and health approved by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration that is at least 10 hours in duration

The Town Manager reserves the right to cancel any invitation for bids, to reject in whole or in part any and all bids, when it is deemed in the best interest of the Town of Arlington to do so.

TOWN OF ARLINGTON

Adam W. Chapdelaine Town Manager Date: September 1, 2020

II. Instruction to Bidders

A. Receipt of Bids

The Town may consider informal any bid not prepared and submitted in accordance with the provisions hereof and may waive any informality in or reject any bids. Any bid may be withdrawn before the time for the opening of bids. Any bid received after the time and date specified shall not be considered. No bidder may withdraw their bid for a period of 30 days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays after actual date of the opening thereof.

B. Preparation of Bid

Each bid shall be submitted on the forms attached to these documents. The bid forms may be removed and submitted separately from the other documents. All blank spaces for bid prices must be filled in with the unit price for the item or the lump sum for which the proposal is made. Bidders must bid on each item. All entries in the entire proposal must be made clearly, and prices written in both words and figures in the spaces provided.

Each bid must be in a sealed envelope addressed to the Office of the Purchasing Agent, 730 Massachusetts Avenue, Arlington, Massachusetts, 02476; and bearing on the outside the name of the bidder, their address, the name of the project for which the bid is submitted, and the notation **Bid On: 2019 Water Distribution System Improvements – Various Locations, BID #20-38.**

C. Bid Security

Every bid submitted by contractors shall be accompanied by a bid deposit in the form of cash, certified check, treasurer's or cashier's check, or a bid bond issued by a responsible bank or trust company and made payable to the Town of Arlington. The amount of the bid deposit shall be 5% of the amount of the bid. All security except those of the three lowest responsible and eligible bidders will be returned within ten days, Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays excluded, after opening of the bid. All bid securities will be returned on the execution of the contract or if no award is made within 30 days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays, after the actual date of the opening thereof, unless forfeited under the conditions herein stipulated.

In case a party to whom a contract is awarded shall fail or neglect to execute the contract and furnish the satisfactory bond in the time specified, the Town may determine the bidder has abandoned the contract and thereupon the proposal and acceptance shall be null and void, and the bid security accompanying the proposal shall be forfeited to the Town as liquidation damages for such failure or neglect and indemnify the Town for any loss which may be sustained by failure of the bidder to execute the contract and furnish the bonds as aforesaid, provided that, in case of death, disability, or other unforeseen circumstances affecting the bidder, such bid security may be returned to them. After execution of the contract and acceptance of the bonds by the Town, the bid security accompanying the proposal of the successful bidder will be returned.

D. Time of Completion

The bidder must agree to commence work within thirty (30) business days from the date of signing the contract and to fully complete the project within the time specified within the Special Provisions section of this document.

E. Performance and Labor Material Bonds

A bond in the sum of 50% of the total amount of the Contract by the successful bidder and an additional bond in equal amount covering the payment for all labor and materials used in the work will be required. A surety company authorized to do business in Massachusetts and satisfactory to the Town of Arlington must provide these bonds. These bonds will be required at the execution of the contract. Attorneys-in-fact who sign contract bonds must file with each bond a certified and effectively dated copy of their power of attorney.

F. Laws and Regulations

The bidder's attention is directed to the fact that all applicable State laws, Town of Arlington Bylaws, municipal ordinances, and the rules and regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over construction of the project shall apply to the contract throughout, and they shall be deemed to be included in the contract the same as though herein written out in full.

G. Withdrawal of Bids

Upon proper written request and identification, Bids may be withdrawn only as follows:

- 1. At any time before the designated time for the opening of Bids.
- 2. Death or serious injury of a principal.
- 3. With the written approval of the Town of Arlington Office of the Purchasing Director.
- 4. At any time after the expiration of the period during which withdrawal is prohibited, provided the bid has not been accepted by the Town.

H. Execution of Contract

The party to whom the contract is awarded shall be required to execute the contract and furnish the bonds duly executed with a satisfactory surety company within 10 days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays, of the date of the mailing of the notice to the bidder according to the address given by them, that the contract is ready for execution.

I. Obligation of Bidder

At the time of the opening of bids, each bidder shall be presumed to have read and to be thoroughly familiar with the contract documents. The failure or omission of any bidder to receive or examine any form, instrument, or documents shall in no way relieve any bidder from the obligation in respect to their bid.

J. Omissions, Discrepancies, Interpretations and Addenda

Should a bidder find discrepancies in, or omissions from, the drawings or contract documents, or should they have questions as to the interpretation of the plans or contract documents they shall submit such in writing to the Assistant Town Engineer and the Director of Purchasing at least five (5) days before the date herein set for the opening of bids. An interpretation will be posted to the Town purchasing website and notification sent by email to all registered bidders at the addresses given by them on or about two (2) days before the opening of bids. Signed copies of all addenda shall be included with the bid; omission of the signed addendum shall be cause for rejection of the bid.

K. Record of Address

Prospective bidders shall at the time plans and specifications are secured place on file with the Director of Purchasing their address and email address, and are required to make any changes necessary to insure that the record is accurate, complete, and up to date. Prospective bidders shall notify the Director of Purchasing if they do not have an email address.

L. Massachusetts Sales and Use Tax

Materials purchased for permanent installation in the work will be exempt from the Massachusetts Sales and Use tax. Each bidder shall consider this exemption in calculating their bid for the work.

M. State Tax Affidavit

Prospective bidders are required to certify that all state tax returns have been filed and all state taxes have been paid in order to be eligible to enter into a contract with the Town on this project. The included form is to be used for this purpose and is to be completed and returned as part of the bid and proposal.

N. Minimum Wage Rates

Prevailing rates for wages for work performed under this Contract will be as predetermined by the Commissioner of Labor and Industries of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts in accordance with the provisions of Sections 26 to 27D, inclusive, of c.149 of M.G.L. A schedule of the prevailing wages is included in the Minimum Wage Rates Section.

O. Sub-bids

No sub bids shall be sought in connection with this Contract.

P. Supplemental Information

All bidders shall submit the following supplemental information with a fee proposal:

- 1. Name, address, and phone number of a minimum of three (3) references that can vouch for the performance of the bidder;
- 2. Proof of Liability and Worker's Compensation Insurance Coverage;
- 3. Completed tax attestation form;
- 4. Bid deposit.

III. Proposal

For Bid #20-38: 2019 Water Distribution System Improvements – Various Locations:

To the Town of Arlington, Massachusetts, acting through its Town Manager, the undersigned, as bidder, declares as follows:

- A. The only persons or parties interested in this proposal as principals are named in this proposal;
- B. This proposal is made without collusion with any other person, firm or corporation;
- C. They have carefully examined the location of the proposed work and the annexed proposed form of contract, and the drawings and specifications therein referred to;
- D. This proposal is based solely on their review of the contract documents and own investigation and research, and not in reliance upon any plans, surveys, measurements, dimensions, calculations, estimates, borings, test pits, soundings, or representations of any employee, officer, or agent of the Town;

and the undersigned proposes and agrees that if this proposal is accepted, they will contract with the Town, this Proposal form being part of and included in said contract, to provide all necessary machinery, tools, apparatus and other means of construction and to furnish all the labor, supervision, materials, permits and other requisites not expressly stated, necessary to complete the contract in the manner and time therein prescribed and according to the requirements of the plans and specifications; and that they will take in full payment thereof the following sums to with:

Bid – 2019 Water Distribution System Improvements

Bidder: _____

ITEM #	QUANTITY	UNIT	DESCRIPTION	UNIT PRICE	AMOUNT
1	1	LS	FURNISH & INSTALL & REMOVE TEMPORARY BYPASS, WATER LINES & SERVICE		
2a	300	LF	FURINISH & INSTALL 12" CEMENT LINED DUCTILE IRON PIPE & FITTINGS		
2b	100	LF	FURINISH & INSTALL 10" CEMENT LINED DUCTILE IRON PIPE & FITTINGS		
2c	3,350	LF	FURINISH & INSTALL 8" CEMENT LINED DUCTILE IRON PIPE & FITTINGS		
2d	25	LF	FURINISH & INSTALL 6" CEMENT LINED DUCTILE IRON PIPE & FITTINGS		
3a	3	EA	FURNISH & INSTALL 12" GATE VALVE & GATE VALVE BOX		
3b	3	EA	FURNISH & INSTALL 10" GATE VALVE & GATE VALVE BOX		
3c	21	EA	FURNISH & INSTALL 8" GATE VALVE & GATE VALVE BOX		
3d	1	EA	FURNISH & INSTALL 6" GATE VALVE & GATE VALVE BOX		
3e	1	EA	FURNISH & INSTALL 12" INSERTION VALVE & VALVE BOX		
4	8	EA	FURNISH & INSTALL 6" HYDRANT GATE VALVE & GATE VALVE BOX		
5a	6	EA	REMOVE EXISTING HYDRANT, FURNISH & INSTALL NEW HYDRANT & 6" HYDRANT BRANCH		
5b	2	EA	REMOVE AND RESET EXISTING HYDRANT INCLUDING NEW 6" HYDRANT BRANCH		
6a	91	EA	FURNISH & SET 3/4" CORPORATION COCK		
6b	1	EA	FURNISH & SET 1" CORPORATION COCK		
7a	91	EA	FURNISH & SET 3/4" CURB STOP & BOX		
7b	1	EA	FURNISH & SET 1" CURB STOP & BOX		

	Bid – 20	19 Wa	ter Distribution System Improvements	Bidder:	
ITEM #	QUANTITY	UNIT	DESCRIPTION	UNIT PRICE	AMOUNT
8a	1,900	LF	FURNISH & INSTALL 3/4" COPPER SERVICE PIPE & FITTINGS		
8b	25	LF	FURNISH & INSTALL 1" COPPER SERVICE PIPE & FITTINGS		
9	525	CY	TRENCH ROCK EXCAVATION		
10	125	CY	MISCELLANEOUS TRENCH EXCAVATION		
11	4,300	CY	UNSUITABLE TRENCH MATERIAL		
12	600	LF	REMOVAL, DISPOSAL, & HANDLING OF EXISTING TRANSITE PIPE		
				Bid Total	

BID SUMMARY

Bidder:	
	Bid – 2019 Water Distribution System Improvements
Total in Figures:	
Total in Words:	

The above estimated quantities are an approximate statement of the extent of the work to be done; the Town does not expressly or by implication agree that the actual amount of work will correspond therewith but reserves the right to increase or decrease the amount of any class or portion of the work or to delete certain items of work, as may be deemed necessary, to keep within available funds.

The undersigned as bidder, agrees that for extra work, if any, they will accept compensation as stipulated in the annexed form of CONTRACT.

If this proposal shall be accepted by the Town, and the undersigned shall fail to execute the contract for the work and deliver same to the Town, together with the duly executed Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond, with sureties satisfactory to the Town, within ten (10) days from the date of mailing of a notice from the Town to them at the address herein given that the proposed contract is ready for execution, then the Town at its option may determine that the undersigned has abandoned the said contract and thereupon if it so determines , the bid security accompanying this proposal shall become the property of the Town as liquidated damages; otherwise the accompanying security shall be returned to the undersigned.

All bidders will be required to show that they have previously completed projects of the same type in a satisfactory manner, namely, the removal of existing water mains and the installation of new water mains in residential, commercial, and/or otherwise confined areas congested with numerous structures, conduits, high voltage-oil filled electric pipe lines, public and private utility lines, manholes, etc., where careful and time consuming excavation and backfilling is required to protect existing lines and structures.

The bidder awarded this contract will have to show that they have successfully completed at least three (3) contracts of similar work at a value of \$750,000 or more in the previous five (5) years.

In addition, if the successful bidder contemplates using sub-contractors, said sub-contractor will be held to the same standards as noted above.

Before starting work, the contractors (includes the general contractor, for itself and its subcontractors, as well as all filed sub-bid contractors) will submit plans for achievement of the equal opportunity goals of the contract. All contractors will be required to make a good faith effort to achieve these goals. The plan will indicate if the contractors expect to achieve the requirements during the first quarter. If there are any reasons why the contractors do not expect to achieve the requirements during the first quarter year of the contract construction phase, then the contractors shall provide a plan calculated to address, to the extent reasonably possible, these obstacles to a good faith effort to achieve such goals.

Not more than ten days following the end of each work quarter, the contractors will report on the achievement of the goals, the detailing the good faith efforts that have been made and will continue to be made and any other appropriate efforts not yet undertaken.

All reports will be signed by an officer or principal of the company who has the authority to contractually obligate the company.

The contractor shall maintain as a goal on this project a not less than five percent ratio of women work force to total project hours in both the general contract and each individual filed sub-bid contract.

A Labor Scheduling Table, which will be used as a tool for achieving a range of women work force participation for the entire project, in both the general contract and each individual filed sub-bid contractor, shall be submitted to the Town.

If the bidder can give the name and address of the surety company that will sign the bonds or state the other security to be offered, they are requested to do so below.

Surety Company Name: _____

Address: ____

A. Financial Statement

The bidder is required to furnish a financial statement and give references that will enable the Town to judge their business standing.

B. Bidders Experience Record

The bidder is required to state below, or provide as an attachment, a list of work they have done of a character similar to that work included in the proposed contract and give references that will enable the Town to judge their experience and skill. The bidder awarded this contract will have to show that they have successfully completed at least three (3) contracts of similar work at a value of \$750,000 or more in the previous five (5) years.

C. Certification of Tax Compliance

Pursuant to MGL c. 62C, § 49A and requirements of the Town of Arlington, the undersigned acting on behalf of the Contractor certifies under the penalties of perjury that the Contractor is in compliance with all laws of the Commonwealth relating to taxes including payment of all local taxes, fees, assessments, betterments and any other local or municipal charges (unless the Contractor has a pending abatement application or has entered into a payment agreement with the entity to which such charges were owed), reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and remitting child support.*

**Signature of Individual or Corporate Contractor

Printed Name

***Contractor's Social Security Number or Federal Identification Number

Date

* The provision in this Certification relating to child support applies only when the Contractor is an individual.

** Approval of a contract or other agreement will not be granted until the Town receives a signed copy of this Certification.

*** Your social security number may be furnished to the Massachusetts Department of Revenue to determine whether you have met tax filing or tax payment obligations. Providers who fail to correct their non-filing or delinquency will not have a contract or other agreement issued, renewed, or extended.

D. CERTIFICATE OF NON-COLLUSION

The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this bid or proposal has been made and submitted in good faith and submitted in good faith and without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this certification, the word "person" shall mean any natural person, business, partnership, corporation, union, committee club, or other organization, entity, or group or individuals.

(Signature of individual)

(Name of Business/Corporation)

OSHA TRAINING

The undersigned hereby certifies that it is able to furnish labor that can work in harmony with all other elements of labor employed or to be employed on the work; that all employees to be employed at the worksite will have successfully completed a course in construction safety and health approved by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration that is a t least 10 hours in duration at the time the employee begins work and who shall furnish documentation of successful completion of said course with the first certified payroll report for each employee; and that it will comply fully with all laws and regulations applicable to awards made subject to section forty-four A of Chapter 149 of the General Laws.

Signature	2:
Title:	
Date:	

BY-LAWS OF THE TOWN OF ARLINGTON TITLE I ARTICLE 16

CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

Section 1. Women Work Force Participation

Any Town board or official in charge of a construction or reconstruction project is required to include in the contract documents the following:

- A. Contractor shall maintain as a goal on this project a not less than five percent ratio of women work force to total project hours in both the general contract and each individual filed sub-bid contract, if applicable. The preceding sentence shall be included in all construction contracts whether entered into by the Town pursuant to the provisions of M.G.L. c. 149 or M.G. L. c 30, §39M et. seq. provided however, that if entered into under Chapter 30 same shall not be deemed to apply where the projected bid price as determined by the Director of Public Works is not likely to exceed \$200,000.
- **B.** A Labor Scheduling Table which will be used as a tool for achieving a range of women work force participation for the entire project in both the general contract and each individual filed sub-bid contract.

Section 2. Equal Opportunity Goal Compliance

Any Town board or official in charge of a construction or reconstruction project is required to include in the contract documents the following:

- A. Before starting work, the contractors (includes the general contractor, for itself and its subcontractors, as well as all filed sub-bid contractors, if applicable) will submit plans for achievement of the equal opportunity goals of the contract. All contractors will be required to make a good faith effort to achieve these goals. The plan will indicate if the contractors expect to achieve the requirements during the first quarter. If there are reasons why the contractors do not expect to achieve the requirements during the first quarter year of the contract construction phase, then the contractors shall provide a plan calculated to address, to the extent reasonably possibly, these obstacles to a good faith effort to achieve such goals.
- **B.** Not more than ten days following the end of each work quarter, the contractors will report on the achievement of the goals, detailing the good faith efforts that have been made and will continue to be made and any other appropriate efforts not yet undertaken.
- **C.** All reports will be signed by an officer or principal of the company who has the authority to contractually obligate the company.

Section 3. Recruitment and Training

Any board, officer, committee, or other agency of the Town, which acts on behalf of the Town in making or supervising any contract, in an amount exceeding the sum of \$100,000 for the purchase of goods or services or for the construction, renovation, or repair of buildings or other improvement of real estate, may make arrangements with contractors and other interested agencies for special programs of recruitment and training in connection with the work to be performed on such contract, with the objective of promoting equal employment opportunity for members of minority groups protected by the fair employment laws of the Commonwealth and the United States. Any board, officer, committee or other Town agency may expend Town funds in carrying them out provided that appropriations specifically designed for such purposes have been voted by the Town Meeting.



TOWN OF ARLINGTON EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE

730 MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE, ARLINGTON, MA 02476 PHONE (781) 316-3120 FAX: (781) 316-3129

TRICIA O'DONOGHUE, CHAIR BARBARA BOLTZ AUGUSTA HAYDOCK JACK JONES

CARYN COVE MALLOY EQUAL OPPORTUNITY OFFICER

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

During the performance of the Contract, the Contractor and all subcontractors (hereafter collectively referred to as "the Contractor") for a town construction contract or town assisted construction contract, for him/herself, his/her assignees and successors in interest, agree to comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity, non-discrimination and affirmative action requirements, including but not limited to the following:

The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Town of Arlington Bylaws, Anti-Discrimination policies and Chapter 151B of the Massachusetts General Laws, as amended, and all other applicable anti-discrimination and equal opportunity laws, all of which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.

In connection with the performance of work under this contract, the Contractor shall undertake, in good faith, affirmative action measures to eliminate any discriminatory barrier in the terms and conditions of employment on the grounds of race, color, religious creed, national origin, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, age, genetic information, ancestry, children, marital status, veteran status or membership in the armed service, the receiving of public assistance, and handicap. Such affirmative action measures shall entail a list of positive and aggressive measures which shall include but not be limited to, advertising employment opportunities in minority and other community news media; notifying minority women and other community-based organizations of employment opportunities; maintaining a file of names and addresses of each worker referred to the Contractor and what action was taken concerning such worker; and notifying this Committee in writing when a union with whom the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has failed to refer a minority or woman worker.

The Contractor shall submit to the Equal Opportunity Advisory Committee, through the Purchasing Director Domenic Lanzillotti, the following Contractor's Certification with all attachments. The Contractor's Certification will be reviewed by the Committee and will inform the Contractor of any deficiencies to be corrected.

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

_____ certifies that they:

(Contractor Name)

- 1. Will not discriminate in their employment practices.
- 2. Intend to use, if General Contractor, the following listed construction trades in the work under the contract:

3. If Trade Subcontractor, will provide the following work under the contract:

4. Will make good faith efforts to comply with the minority employee and women employee workforce participation ratio goals of the Town of Arlington and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and specific affirmative steps contained herein; and to provide evidence of its good faith efforts. Attached hereto, please find:

A. Employment Opportunities advertised in:

B. Notification to Minority/Women/Community based Organizations such as:

Written notification that Union/Local No	failed to refer a Minority or
Female worker during the week of:	
Signature of Officer	Date

IV. Contract

A. Definitions

Wherever the word "Town", "Contractor", or "Engineer" or pronouns used in place of them occur in this contract, they shall have the following meanings:

The word "Town" shall mean the party of the first part above designated, or any board, office, or agent duly authorized to act for said party of the first part in the matter covered by this contract.

The word "Contractor" shall mean the party of the second part above designated entering into this contract for the performance of the work required, the legal representative of said party, or the agent appointed to act for said party in performance of the work.

The word "Engineer" shall mean the Town Engineer of the Town of Arlington, acting directly or through an authorized representative, acting within the scope of the particular duties entrusted to him.

B. Parts of Contract

It is agreed that the Information for Bidders, the Proposal submitted by the Contractor, the General Conditions, the Special Conditions, the Specifications, the Contract Drawings/Plans, and all Addenda are made parts of this contract.

The table of contents, titles, indexes, and headings contained herein and in said documents are solely to facilitate reference to various provisions of the Contract Documents and in no way affect, limit or cast light on the interpretation of the provisions to which they refer.

C. Obligations of the Contractor

The Contractor shall do all the work and furnish all services, tools, equipment, appliances, and labor necessary, and furnish all materials except as may be otherwise specified herein, necessary or proper for performing and completing the work required by this Contract, with appurtenances of every kind complete in the manner and within the time specified. All work to be performed and materials to be furnished under this contract shall be performed, furnished and completed pursuant to and strictly in conformance with the Contract Drawings, sometimes referred to herein as the "plans", the attached specifications, and the written directions of the Engineer as given from time to time during the progress of the work. The Contractor shall complete the entire work in accordance with the specifications and drawings herein mentioned and at the prices herein agreed upon and therefore fixed.

D. Liability of the Contractor

The Contractor shall take all responsibility for the work done under this contract, for the protection of the work, and for preventing injuries to persons and damage to property and utilities on or about the work. They shall in no way be relieved of their responsibility by any right of the Engineer to give permission or directions relating to any part of the work, by any such permission or directions given, or by failure of the Engineer to give such permission or direction.

The Contractor shall bear all losses resulting to him or the Town on account of the quantity or character of the work, because the nature of the land in or on which the work

is done is different from what was estimated or expected, or on account of the weather, elements, or other causes.

The Contractor shall assume the defense of all claims of whatsoever character against the Contractor or the Town and indemnify and save harmless the Town, its officers, or agents against all claims for injury or damage to persons, corporations, or property arising out of the work done under this contract whether said claims arise out of negligence or not, or whether said claims are groundless, false, or fraudulent or not, and from all claims relating to labor and materials furnished for the work.

The Contractor shall conduct their operations so as not to damage existing structures or work installed either by themselves or by other contractors. In case of any such damage resulting from their operations, they shall repair and make good as new the damaged portions at their own expense with the consent of the damaged party. In the event that consent is not given, the Contractor shall not be relieved thereby of liability for the damage caused. The Contractor shall have no claim against the Town for lost productivity resulting from any such damage.

E. Authority of the Engineer

The Engineer shall have the authority to stop the work whenever such stoppage may be necessary in their opinion to prevent improper execution of the work.

The sequence of execution of the work and the general conduct of the work shall be subject to the approval of the Engineer who shall have authority to direct changes be made in such sequence where public necessity or welfare shall require, which approval or direction shall, however, in no way affect the responsibility of the Contractor in the conduct of the work.

Whenever the Contractor is not present on any part of the work where it may be necessary to give directions, such directions may be given by the Engineer and shall be received and obeyed by the superintendent or foreman who may have charge of the particular work involved.

F. Engineer to Decide

The Engineer shall make all necessary interpretations as to the meaning and intention of the Contract Drawings, Specifications, and other parts of this Contract. They shall give all orders and directions contemplated therein or thereby, and in every case in which a difficult or unforeseen condition shall arise in the performance of the work required by this contract.

The Engineer shall in all cases determine the amount, quality, acceptability and fitness of the several kinds of work and materials which are to be paid under this contract, and shall decide all questions which may arise as to the fulfillment of this contract. In the event that a determination or decision of the Engineer is questioned by the Contractor, the decision of the Engineer shall be a condition precedent to the Contractor's right to receive any money for the work or materials to which the question or difference in opinion relates.

G. Time for Commencing Work

The Contractor shall commence the work within thirty (30) calendar days after signing the contract, or as directed by the Town.

Such time of starting may be postponed by written agreement between the Town and the Contractor because of expected delays in receipt of materials and equipment, if the season is unsuitable for commencement of the work, or because of any other contingency clearly beyond the control or responsibility of the Contractor. Unless stipulated otherwise in said agreement, the Contractor shall commence work at such points as the Engineer may direct or approve within thirty (30) calendar days after the receipt of a written order from the Town to start work.

H. No Damages for Certain Delays

The Town may delay the commencement of the work, or any part thereof, for the reason that it has not acquired the necessary land or rights of way, or for any other reason. The Contractor shall have no claim for damages on account of such delay, or on account of any delay on the part of the Town in performing any work or furnishing any materials to the Contractor, or due to extra work required, but they shall be entitled to so much additional time in which to complete the whole or any portion of the work required under this contract. The Contractor shall have no claim for damages on account of any delay on the part of another contractor, but shall have such additional time in which to complete the work.

I. Time for Completion

The rate of progress shall be such that the whole work shall be performed in accordance with the terms of this contract before the expiration of the time limit stipulated under special conditions, unless and except as any part may be delayed under the provisions of this contract.

It is agreed that the rate of progress herein required has been purposely made long enough to allow for the ordinary delays incident to construction work of this character. No extension of time will be made for ordinary delays, inclement weather, and accidents, and the occurrence of such will not relieve the Contractor from the necessity of maintaining this rate of progress.

If delays are caused by acts of God, acts of Government or State, strikes, extra work, or other contingencies clearly beyond the control or responsibility of the Contractor, the Contractor shall be entitled to so much additional time wherein to perform and complete this contract on their part as the Engineer shall certify in writing to be just.*

*This paragraph will be interpreted to include delays in receipt of equipment provided that the Contractor placed their order and submitted shop drawings for such equipment promptly after execution of the contract, that they has shown diligence in following the progress of the order, and that the time required for delivery is in accordance with conditions generally prevailing in the industry.

The time in which this contract is to be performed and completed is of the essence of this agreement.

J. Competent Persons to be Employed

The Contractor shall have as their agent on the work a competent superintendent capable of reading and thoroughly understanding the drawings and specifications. The superintendent on the work shall have full authority to execute the directions of the Engineer without delay and supply promptly such materials, equipment, tools, labor, and incidentals as may be required.

The Contractor shall employ only competent persons to do the work, and whenever the Engineer shall notify the Contractor in writing that any person on the work is, in their opinion, incompetent, unfaithful, disorderly or otherwise unsatisfactory, such person shall be discharged from the work and shall not again be employed on it accept with the consent of the Engineer.

K. Access to Work

The Town, its agents and employees may at all times enter upon the work or premises used by the Contractor, and the Contractor shall provide safe and proper facilities for such entrance and for the inspection of materials, equipment and workmanship.

Other contractors of the Town may also, for the purpose which may be required by their contracts or work, enter upon the work and premises used by the Contractor. Any differences or conflicts which may arise between the Contractor and other contractors of the Town in regard to their work shall be determined and adjusted by the Engineer.

L. Defective Work, Materials or Equipment

The inspection of the work shall not relieve the Contractor of any of their obligations to fulfill their contract as herein prescribed, and defective work shall be made good and unsuitable materials or equipment shall be rejected, notwithstanding that such work, and materials or equipment have been previously overlooked by the Engineer and accepted or estimated for payment or paid for. If the work or any part thereof shall be found defective at any time before the final acceptance of the whole work, or the final payment therefore, the Contractor shall forthwith make good such defect, in a manner satisfactory to the Engineer; if any material or equipment brought upon the ground for use in the work, or selected for the same, shall be condemned by the Engineer as unsuitable or not in conformity with the specifications, the Contractor shall forthwith remove such materials or equipment from the vicinity of the work, and any material furnished by the Town which shall be damaged or rendered defective by the handling or improper installation by the Contractor, their agents, or employees shall be made good and replaced at the Contractor's own expense.

M. Mistakes of Contractor

The Contractor shall make good any defects, omissions, or mistakes for which they or their employees are responsible, or they shall pay to the Town all expenses, losses, and damages incurred therefrom as determined by the Engineer.

N. Discrepancies, Errors and Omissions

The drawings and specifications are intended to be explanatory of each other, but, should any discrepancy appear or any misunderstanding arise as to the import of anything contained in either, the interpretation and decision of the Engineer shall be final and binding on both parties to this contract.

Any correction of errors or omissions in drawings and specifications may be made by the Engineer when such correction is necessary for the proper fulfillment of their intention as construed by him. Where said correction of errors or omissions, except as provided in the next two paragraphs below, adds to the amount of work to be done by the Contractor, compensation for said additional work shall be made under the item for Extra Work, except where the additional work may be classed under some item of work for which a unit price is included in the PROPOSAL.

The fact that specific mention of a fixture or of any part of the work is omitted in the specifications, whether intentionally or otherwise, when the same is clearly indicated on the drawings, or is usually and customarily required to complete fully such work as is specified herein, will not entitle the Contractor to consideration in the matter of any claim for extra compensation, but said fixtures or work or both shall be installed or done the same as if called for both by the drawings and by the specifications.

All work mentioned in the specifications and not indicated on the drawings, or vice versa, and all work and material usual and necessary to make the work complete in all its parts, whether or not they are mentioned in the specifications, or indicated on the drawings, shall be furnished and executed the same as if they were called for both by the specifications and by the drawings.

O. Right to Materials

All materials shall become the property of the Town after they have been affixed or attached to the soil or to the work, and nothing in this contract shall be construed as vesting in the Contractor any right or property in the materials after their being so affixed or attached.

P. Compliance with Laws, Ordinances, and Regulations

The Contractor shall keep themselves fully informed of all existing and future State and National laws and municipal ordinances and regulations in any manner affecting those engaged or employed in the work, the materials used in the work, or the conduct of the work, and of all such orders and decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority over the same. If any discrepancy or inconsistency is discovered in the plans, drawings, specifications, or contract for this work, in relation to any such law, ordinance, regulation, order or decree, they shall forthwith report the same to the Engineer in writing. They shall at all times observe and comply with, and cause all their agents and employees to observe and comply with all such existing and future laws, ordinances, regulations, orders and decrees; and they shall protect and indemnify the Town, its officers, and agents against any claim or liability arising from or based upon violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation, order, or decree, whether by themself or their employees.

Q. Provisions Required by Law Deemed Inserted

Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this contract shall be deemed to be inserted herein and the contract shall be read and enforced as though it were included herein, and if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon the application of either party the contract shall forthwith be physically amended to make such insertion or correction.

R. Work Hours

Unless otherwise approved by the Engineering Division and the Arlington Police Department, general work hours shall be as follows:

• Monday - Friday from 7:00 AM - 4:00 PM.

Due to heavy traffic volume and/or close proximity to a school, work hours will generally be restricted as follows for work associated with the Contract at the following locations:

• Blossom Street: Monday-Friday from 9:00 AM – 2:00 PM

- Newland Road: Monday-Friday: 9:00 AM 2:00 PM
- Park Avenue Extension: Monday Friday from 9:00 AM 3:00 PM
- Summer Street: Monday Friday from 9:00 AM 3:00 PM

No work shall be done at night, on holidays, or on weekends except:

- 1) Usual protective work, such as pumping and the tending of lights and fires;
- 2) Work done in case of emergency threatening injury to persons or property;
- 3) If <u>all</u> of the conditions set forth in the next paragraph below are met.

No work other than that included in 1 and 2, above, shall be done at night, on holidays, or on weekends except when:

- a) In the opinion of the Engineer, the work will be of advantage to the Town and can be performed satisfactorily at night;
- b) The work shall be done by a crew organized for regular and continuous night work;
- c) The Engineer has given written permission for such night work.

S. Intoxicating Liquors

The contractor shall not sell and shall neither permit nor suffer the sale, the introduction of, or the use of intoxicating liquors upon or about the work under this contract.

T. Permits and Notices

The Contractor shall, at their own expense, take out all necessary permits from the county, municipality, or other public authorities; shall give all notices required by law, ordinances, or as required by the municipality; and shall post all bonds and pay all fees and charges incident to the due and lawful prosecution of the work covered by this contract.

U. Patents

The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the Town and all persons acting for or on behalf of the Town from all claims and liability of any nature or kind, including costs and expenses, arising from or occasioned by any infringement or alleged infringement of patent rights on any invention process, article, or apparatus, or any part thereof, furnished and installed by said Contractor or arising from or occasioned by the use of manufacture thereof, including their use by the Town.

V. Insurance

The Contractor shall not commence work under this contract until they has obtained all the insurance required under this paragraph and such insurance has been approved by the Town, nor shall the Contractor allow any subcontractor to commence work on their subcontract until the insurance required of the subcontractor has been so obtained and approved.

A. <u>Compensation Insurance</u>: The Contractor shall procure and shall maintain during the life of this contract Workmen's Compensation Insurance as required by applicable State or territorial law for all of their employees to be engaged in work at the site of the project under this contract and, in case of any such work sublet, the Contractor

shall require the subcontractor similarly to provide Workmen's Compensation Insurance for all of the latter's employees to be engaged in such work unless such employees are covered by the protection afforded by the Contractor's Workmen's Compensation Insurance. In case any class of employees engage in hazardous work on the project under this contract is not protected under the Workmen's Compensation Statue, the Contractor shall provide adequate employer's liability insurance for the protection of such of their employees as are not otherwise protected.

- B. <u>Contractor's Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance</u>: The Contractor shall maintain during the life of this contract Contractor's Public Liability Insurance and Contractor's Property Damage Insurance to the limits specified under SPECIAL CONDITIONS.
- C. Subcontractor's <u>Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance</u>: The Contractor shall either (1) require each of their subcontractors to procure and to maintain during the life of their sub-contract, Subcontractor's Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance of the type and to the limits specified under SPECIAL CONDITIONS or, (2) insure the activities of their subcontractors in their policy, specified in subparagraph (b) hereof.
- D. <u>Scope of Insurance:</u> The insurance required under sub-paragraphs (b) and (c) hereof shall provide adequate protection for the Contractor and their subcontractors, respectively, against damage claims which may arise from operations under this contract, whether such operations be by the insured or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by him.
- E. <u>Proof of Carriage of Insurance:</u> The Contractor shall furnish the Town with certificates showing the type, amount, class of operations covered, effective dates and dates of expiration of policies. Such certificates shall also contain substantially the following statement: "The insurance covered by this certificate will not be cancelled or materially altered, except after fifteen (15) days written notice has been received by the Town." If the initial insurance expires prior to completion of the work, renewal certificates shall be furnished by the date of expiration.

W. Work Not to be Sublet or Assigned

The Contractor shall give their personal attention constantly to the faithful prosecution of the work, shall keep the same under their personal control, and shall not assign by power of attorney or otherwise, or sublet the work or any part thereof without the previous written consent of the Town, and shall not, either legally or equitably, assign any of the moneys payable under this agreement, or their claim thereto, unless by and with the like consent of the Town and the Surety on the Bonds.

X. Alterations

The Engineer may by written order, and not otherwise, make alterations in the line, grade, plan, form, dimension or materials of the work, or any part thereof, either before or after the commencement of construction. If such alterations make the work less expensive to the Contractor, a proper deduction shall be made from the contract price, said deduction to be computed on the same basis as that specified under Extra Work for determining the value of approved extra work, unless there be applicable unit prices established by this contract, in which event the unit prices shall prevail.

The Contractor shall have no claims for damages or for anticipated profits on the work that thus may be dispensed with. (If such alterations make the work more expensive, a proper addition computed in the aforementioned manner shall be made to the contract price. Any such deduction or addition shall be determined by the Engineer.)

Y. Extra Work

The Contractor shall do any work not herein otherwise provided for, when and as ordered in writing by the Town or their agents specially authorized thereto in writing, and shall, when requested by the Town so to do, furnish itemized statements of the cost of the work ordered and give the Town access to accounts, bills and vouchers relating thereto.

If the Contractor claims compensation for extra work not ordered as aforesaid, or for any damage sustained, they shall within one week after the beginning of any such work or of the sustaining of any such damage, make a written statement of the nature of the work performed or damage sustained, to the Town and shall on or before the fifteenth day of the month succeeding that in which any such extra work shall have been done or any such damage shall have been sustained, file with the Town an itemized statement of the details and amount of such work or damage: and unless such statements shall be made as so required, their claim for compensation shall be void, and they shall not be entitled to payment on account of any such work or damage. The Contractor shall not include in the cost of extra work any cost or rental of small tools, buildings, or any portion of the time of the Contractor, their superintendent, or their office and engineering staff.

In the alternative, the extra work order may provide that the Contractor shall receive an amount equal to the actual cost of such extra work computed on the basis of the foregoing sub-sections (a) through (g) but limited by a predetermined lump sum maximum amount.

The determination of the Town shall be final upon all questions of the amount and value of extra work, provided that such extra work has been performed under a work order approved in writing by the Town as required by the terms of this contract.

The Town shall pay and the Contractor shall receive for everything furnished and done by the Contractor to the satisfaction of the Town under an approved extra work order a predetermined lump sum amount computed on the basis of the following:

- A. the actual cost of labor employed directly on the work at prevailing rates of wages.
- B. the cost of the amounts of additional premium paid on the required insurance on account of such extra work, of Social Security or other direct assessments upon the Contractor's payroll by Federal or other properly authorized public agencies, and of other approved assessments when such assessments are not normally included in payments made by the Contractor directly to their employees, but are recognized to be part of the cost of doing work.
- C. the reasonable cost of materials incorporated in the work.
- D. the reasonable cost at fair market rental rates for equipment employed directly on the work.
- E. 15% of (a) (b) (c) and (d) for overhead and profit. (On subcontract work, this 15% will be allowed only to the subcontractor).
- F. an additional 5% of (a) (b) (c) (d) and (e) on work performed by a subcontractor of the Contractor.

Z. Extension of Time on Account of Extra Work

When extra work is ordered near the completion of the contract or when extra work is ordered at any time during the progress of the work which requires in the opinion of the Engineer an unavoidable increase of time for the completion of the contract, a suitable extension of the time for completion shall be made.

AA. Changes Not to Affect Bonds

It is agreed and understood that any changes made in the drawings and specifications for this work (whether such changes increase or decrease the amount thereof) or any change in the manner or time of payments made by the Town to the Contractor shall in no way annul, release, or affect the liability and surety on the bonds given by the Contractor.

BB. Completion of Work if Contract is Not Fulfilled

If the Contractor shall be adjudged bankrupt, or if they shall make a general assignment for the benefit of their creditors, or if a received shall be appointed of their property, or if the work to be done under this contract shall be abandoned, or if this contract or any part thereof shall be sublet without the previous written consent of the Town, or if the contract or any claim thereunder shall be assigned by the Contractor otherwise than as herein specified, or if at any time the Engineer shall be of the opinion, and shall so certify in writing to the Town that the conditions herein specified as to the rate of progress are not fulfilled, or that the work, or any part thereof, is unnecessarily or unreasonably delayed, or that the Contractor has violated any of the provisions of this contract, the Town may terminate the contract and hold the Contractor and their sureties liable in damages as for a breach of contract by an abandonment thereof by him, or the Town may notify the Contractor to discontinue all work, or any part thereof; and thereupon the Contractor shall discontinue all work, or any part thereof, as the Town may designate and the Town may thereupon, by contract or otherwise, as it may determine, complete the work, or such part thereof, and charge the entire expense for so completing the work, or part thereof, to the Contractor: and for such completion the Town, for itself or its contractors, may take possession of and use or cause to be used in the completion of the work or part thereof any of such materials, machinery, implements and tools of every description as may be found upon the line of said work. The Town may, at its option, require the surety or sureties to complete the contract. The Town shall not be liable for any depreciation, loss or damage to said materials, machinery, implements or tools during said use, nor until such as are not incorporated in the work are removed by the Contractor after completion of the work. Unless so removed within fifteen days after mailing of notice so to do, they may be sold at public auction, after publication of notice thereof at least twice in any newspaper published in the county where the work is being performed, and the proceeds credited to the Contractor's account; or they may, at the option of the Town, be stored at the Contractor's expense subject to a lien for the storage charges.

If the Engineer shall certify as aforesaid as to the rate of progress, the Town may, instead of notifying the Contractors to discontinue all work or any part thereof, notify him from time to time to increase the work force, equipment and plant, or any of them, employed on the whole or any part of the work, stating the amount of increase required; and unless they shall, within five days after any such notice, increase their force, equipment and plant to the extent required therein, and maintain and employ the same from day to day until the condition as to the rate of progress shall, in the opinion of the Engineer, be fulfilled, the Town may employ and direct the labors of such additional force, equipment and plant as may, in the opinion of the Engineer, be necessary to insure the completion of the work or such part thereof within the time herein specified, or at the earliest possible date thereafter, and charge the expense thereof to the Contractor. Neither the notice from the Town to the Contractor to increase their force, equipment or plant, not the employment of additional force, equipment or plant by the Town shall be held to prevent a subsequent notice from the Town to him to discontinue work under the provisions of the preceding portion of this section.

All expenses charged under this section shall be deducted and paid by the Town out of any moneys then due or to become due the Contractor under this contract, or any part thereof; and in such accounting the Town shall not be held to obtain the lowest figures for the work of completing the contract or any part thereof, or for ensuring its proper completion, or for the additional force, equipment or plant that may be employed, but all sums actually paid therefore shall be charged to the Contractor. In case the expenses so charged exceed the sum that would have been payable under this contract if the same had been completed by the Contractor, the Contractor shall pay the amount of the excess to the Town, upon completion of the work, without further demand being made therefore.

CC. Compensation for Work

The Town shall pay, and the Contractor shall receive, the prices stipulated in the Proposal attached hereto as full compensation for everything furnished and done by the Contractor under this contract, including all work required but not specifically mentioned, and also for all loss or damage arising out of the nature of the work aforesaid, or from the action of the elements, or from any unforeseen obstruction or difficulty encountered in the prosecution of the work, and for all risks of every description connected with the work, and for all expenses incurred by or in consequence of the suspension or discontinuance of the work as herein specified and for well and faithfully completing the work, and the whole thereof, as herein provided.

DD. Money may be Retained

The Town may keep any money which would otherwise be payable at any time hereunder; may apply the same or so much as may be necessary therefore to the payment of any expenses, losses, or damages incurred by the Town and determined as herein provided; and may retain, until all claims are settled, so much of such money as the Town is of the opinion will be required to settle all claims filed with the Town, its officers, and agent relating to this contract.

EE. Estimates and Payments

The Engineer shall, on or about the first day of each month, except as hereinafter provided, make an estimate in writing of the total amount and value of the work done to the first of the month by the Contractor. The Town shall retain a percentage of such estimated value, as set forth under SPECIAL CONDITIONS, as part security for fulfillment of this contract by the Contractor and shall deduct from the balance all previous payments and all sums to be retained under the provisions of this contract. The Town shall pay monthly to the Contractor the balance not retained as aforesaid, except that payment may be withheld at any time if the work is not proceeding in accordance with the contract. The Town may cause estimates and payments to be made more or less frequently than once in each month.

Estimates of lump-sum items shall be based on a schedule dividing each item into is appropriate component parts together with a quantity and a unit price for each part such that the sum of the products or prices and quantities will equal the contract price for the item. This schedule shall be submitted by the Contractor for the approval of the Engineer before the first estimate becomes due.

If the Engineer determines that the progress of the work will be benefited by the delivery to the site of certain materials and equipment, when available, in advance of actual requirement therefore and if such materials and equipment are delivered and properly stored and protected, the cost to the Contractor or subcontractor as established by invoices or other suitable vouchers may be included in the estimates.

The Engineer shall, as soon as practicable (but not more than 65 days) after the completion of the work under this contract, make a final estimate in writing of the quantity of work done under the contract and the amount earned by the Contractor. The Engineer also shall fix the date of completion of said work and incorporate the same into final estimate.

The Town shall pay to the Contractor the entire sum found to be due hereunder after deducting therefrom all previous payments, all amounts to be kept, and all amount to be retained under the provisions of this contract. Such payment shall be made not later than 15 days after, but in no event before the expiration of the time within which claims for labor performed and materials used or employed must be entered under the Lien Law, or, if such time is not specified by law, the expiration of 30 days after the completion of the final estimate.

All quantities shown on progress estimates and all prior payments shall be subject to correction in the final estimate and payment.

FF. Partial Payment Not Acceptance

It is agreed that this is an entire contract for one whole and complete work and that no partial payments on account by the Town nor the use of parts of the proposed equipment shall constitute an acceptance of any part of the work before its entire completion and final acceptance.

GG. Liens

If at any time before the expiration of the period within which claims must be entered under the Lien Law, or if not otherwise specified by law, within 30 days after the whole work herein agreed to be delivered have been performed, delivered, or completed and accepted by the Town, any person or persons claiming to have performed any labor or furnished any materials toward the performance or completion of this contract shall file with the Town suitable notice, the Town shall retain, until the discharge thereof, from the moneys under its control so much of such money as sufficient to satisfy and discharge the amount claimed to be due in such notice, together with the cost of any action or actions brought to enforce such lien created by the filing of such notice.

HH. Waiver

Neither the inspection by the Engineer, not any act of thing done by the Town or its agents other than an express waiver by vote of the Town shall operate as a waiver of any provision of this contract; nor shall any waiver of any breach of this contract be held to be a waiver of any other subsequent breach. Any remedy provided in this contract shall

be taken and construed as cumulative; that is in addition to each and every other remedy herein provided.

II. Liability of the Town of Arlington

No person, firm, or corporation, other than the signer of this contract as Contractor, now have any interest hereunder; no claim shall be made or be valid; and neither the Town nor any agent of the Town shall be liable for or be held to pay any money, except as herein provided. The acceptance by the Contractor of the payment of the final estimate shall operate as and shall be a release to the Town and every agent of the Town from all claim and liability to the Contractor for anything done or furnished for or relating to the work or for any act or neglect of the Town or of any person relating to or affecting the work, except the claim against the Town for the remainder, if there is any, of the amounts kept or retained as herein provided.

JJ. Guarantee

The Contractor guarantees that the work to be done under this contract, and the workmanship performed and the materials and equipment used in the construction of the same, shall be free from defects or flaws, that each item of equipment shall be in accordance with the specifications, that the strength of all parts of all manufactured equipment shall be adequate and that the performance test requirements of the specifications shall be fulfilled. This guarantee shall be for a period of one year from and after the date of completion of the work as stated in the final estimate. The Contractor shall repair or replace as required, promptly and without charge, all work, equipment, and material, or parts thereof, which fail to meet the above guarantee during one year herein quoted.

It is hereby, however, agreed and understood that this guarantee shall not include any repairs or replacements made necessary by any cause or causes other than improper, inadequate, or defective work, workmanship, materials, or design by the Contractor or those employed directly or indirectly by him.

KK. Money Retained for Repairs

The Town may retain out of the monies payable to the Contractor under the contract a sum as set for under SPECIAL CONDITIONS and may expend the same, in the manner hereinafter provided, in making such repairs or replacements of said work as the Town may deem expedient.

If at any time within the said period of guarantee any part of the work constructed under the terms of this contract requires repairing or replacement, the Town may notify the Contractor in writing to make the required repairs or replacements. If the Contractor neglects to make such repairs or replacements to the satisfaction of the Town within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of such notice, the Town may employ other persons to make the same. The Town shall pay the expense of the same out of the sum retained for that purpose. Upon expiration of the said period of guarantee, provided that the work at the time is in good order, the Contractor will be entitled to receive the whole or such part of the sum last aforesaid as may remain after the expense of making said repairs or replacements, in the manner aforesaid, has been paid therefrom.

It is agreed that the Town may keep the whole or any portion of the sum retained for settlement of all claims arising out of this contract against the Town, its officers, or agents and for all expenses, losses, or damages incurred by the Town by reason of said claims.

LL. Address of Contractor

The Contractor's business address, their office at or near the site of the work, or the Contractor's email address, are hereby designated as places to which communications shall be delivered. The depositing of any letter, notice, or other communication in a postpaid wrapper directed to the Contractor's business address in a post office box regularly maintained by the Post Office Department or the delivery at either designated address of any letter, notice, or other communication by mail, email, or otherwise shall be deemed sufficient service thereof upon the Contractor. The first-named address may be changed at any time by an instrument in writing, executed and acknowledged by the Contractor and delivered to the Engineer. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to preclude or render inoperative the service of any notice, letter, email, or other communication upon the Contractor personally.

MM. CERTIFICATE of VOTE

I,, Clerk of,
(Name) (Corporation) hereby certify that, at a meeting of the Board of directors of said Corporation duly held on at which a quorum was present and (Date) voting throughout, the following vote was duly passed is now in full force and effect:
"VOTED" That
(Name of Officer authorized to sign for corporation) be and hereby is authorized, directed and empowered for, in the name and on behalf of this Corporation, to sign, seal with the corporate seal, execute, acknowledge and deliver all contracts, bonds and other obligations of this Corporation; by such
(Name of Officer) to be valid and binding upon this Corporation for all purposes, and that a certificate of the Clerk of this Corporation setting forth this vote shall be delivered to the Town of Arlington; and that this vote shall remain in full force and effect unless and until the same has been altered, amended or revoked by a subsequent vote of such directors and a certificate of such later vote attested by the Clerk of this Corporation is delivered to the Town of Arlington.
I further certify that is the duly
(Name of Officer)
elected of said Corporation.
Signed: (Clerk - Secreatry)
Place of Business:
Date of Contract:
AFFIX COPORATE SEAL
COUNTERSIGNATURE:

In the event that the Clerk or Secretary is the same person as the Officer authorized to sign that contract or other instrument for the Corporation, this certificate must be countersigned by another officer of the Corporation.

V. PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW BY ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that _____

as principal, and

as surety, are held and firmly bound unto the Town of Arlington, Massachusetts in the sum of

lawful money of the United States of America, to be paid to the Town of Arlington, Massachusetts, for which payments, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, the said principal has made contract with the Town of Arlington bearing ______ date of ______.

Now the condition of this obligation is such that if the principal shall well and truly keep and perform all the undertakings, covenants, agreements, terms and conditions of said contract on its part to be kept and performed during the original term of said contract and any extensions thereof that may be granted by the Owner, with or without notice to the surety, and during the life of any guaranty required under the contract and shall also well and truly keep and perform all the undertakings, covenants, agreements, terms and conditions of any and all duly authorized modifications, alterations, changes or additions to said contract that may hereafter be made, notice to the surety of such modifications, alterations, changes or additions to said contract that may hereby waived, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall remain in full force and virtue.

In the event that the contract is abandoned by the Contractor, or is terminated by the Owner, under the provisions of "C.29 – Completion of Work if Contract is not Fulfilled" in SECTION C-CONTRACT, said surety hereby further agrees that said surety shall, if requested in writing by Owner, complete said contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF we hereunto set our hands and seals this	day
of	
	SEAL
	SEAL
	PRINCIPAL
	SEAL
	SURETY

Now the condition of this obligation is such that if the principal shall pay for all labor performed or furnished and for all materials used or employed in said contract and in any and all duly authorized modifications, alterations, extensions of time, changes or additions to said contract that may hereafter be made, notice to the surety of such modifications, alterations, extensions of time, changes or additions being hereby waived, the foregoing to include any other purposes or items set out in, and to be subject to, the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws (Ter. Ed.), Chapter 30, Section 39A as amended and Chapter 149, Section 29 as amended, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall remain in full force and virtue.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF we hereunto set our hands and seals this	_day
of	

	SEAL
	SEAL
	PRINCIPAL
	SEAL
	SURETY

VI. General Conditions

A. Definitions

The words "directed", "required", "permitted", "ordered", "designated", "prescribed", or words to like import shall mean the directions, requirement, permission, order, designation, prescription, etc. of the Engineer and similarly the words "approved", "acceptable", or "satisfactory", or words of like import shall mean approved by or acceptable or satisfactory to, the Engineer, subject in each case to the final determination of the Town unless otherwise expressly stated.

The word "rock" wherever used as the name of material excavated or to be excavated, shall mean the sound bedrock, properly removed by blasting, pneumatic or hydraulic hammer, wedging or barring, also such boulders exceeding 1-1/2 cubic yards in volume removed from the excavations, also any portions of existing masonry structures removed from the excavations. Sound bedrock shall not include any rock disintegrated or fractured, in the opinion of the Engineer, to such an extent as to be easily removable by a pick and shovel. The word "boulders" as used above shall include loose, detached fragments or portions of ledge and only such fragments or portions as exceed the specified 1-1/2 cubic yard limit shall be included in the classification of "rock".

The word "earth" wherever used as the name of an excavated material or material to be excavated, shall mean all kinds of material not defined as "rock" in the above paragraph.

B. Abbreviations

Wherever in the specifications, or on the drawings, any of the abbreviations which follow are used they shall have the following meaning:

AASHO	- American Association of State Highway Officials
ACI	- American Concrete Institute
AIEE	- American Institute of Electrical Engineers
AISC	- American Institute of Steel Construction
ASA	- American Standards Association
ASCE	- American Society of Civil Engineers
ASH&AE	- American Society of Heating and Air Conditioning Engineers
ASME	- American Society of Mechanical Engineers
ASTM	- American Society for Testing Materials
AWWA	- American Water Works Association
NBS	- National Bureau of Standards
NEC	- National Electrical Code, latest edition
NEMA	- National Electrical Manufacturers Association
Federal Specifications	- Federal Specifications issued by the Federal Supply Service of the
	General Service Administration, Washington, D.C.
125-lb. American Stan	dard - American Standard for Cast Iron Pipe
	Flanges and Flanged Fittings, Class
	124 (ASA B16.1-1960)
O. S. & Y.	- Outside screw and yoke

C. Handling Materials

The Contractor shall at their own expense handle, haul and distribute all materials and equipment used and employed on the different portions of the works as required. Storage charges and demurrage charges by vendors and transportation companies, which result from delays in handling, shall be borne by the Contractor.

D. Storage Room

The Contractor shall provide suitable and adequate storage room for all materials during the progress of the work, and shall obtain the consent of the proper parties before entering or occupying with employees, tools, or materials, any private land outside of the property or rights of way of the Town. The Contractor shall not stockpile materials or park equipment on Town roadways unless otherwise approved by the Engineering Division.

E. Shop Drawings, Schedules, and Descriptive Matter

The Contractor shall furnish, as hereinafter required, all specified shop and details drawings. All drawings required shall be submitted in triplicate to the Engineer for review and in quadruplicate after review. The Engineer may alternately accept all drawings in electronic format (PDF, Word, etc.) at the Contractor's request.

The review by the Engineer of such drawings and details will be general and shall not relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for executing the entire work in accordance with the specifications and contract drawings. [Failure on the part of the Engineer to detect errors or omissions on shop drawings shall not relieve the Contractor from the responsibility for such errors or omissions.]

Should the contractor submit for review equipment that requires modifications to the structures, piping, layout, etc. detailed on the contract drawings, they shall also submit for review details of the proposed modifications. If such equipment and modifications are allowed, the Contractor, at no additional cost to the Town, shall do all work necessary to make such modifications.

The Contractor shall also furnish for the Engineer's review, all lists, schedules, and information regarding materials, fixtures and equipment as hereinafter required and specified.

All such lists, schedules, etc., shall be submitted to the Engineer for reviews within fifteen (15) days following execution of the contract. Following review by the Engineer of such materials, fixtures, and equipment, the Contractor shall promptly place orders for the equipment. Orders shall be placed within seven (7) days following the Engineer's review and proof of such order shall be furnished to the Engineer.

F. Equivalents

Whenever the specifications define the material or article required by using the name of a proprietary product or of a manufacturer or vendor rather than by using descriptive detail of substance and functions, the words "or equivalent" are to be understood to follow immediately the make of the maker, vendor or proprietary product. The words "or equivalent" shall be interpreted as including any material or article which, in the opinion of the Engineer, is equivalent in quality, durability, appearance, strength and design to the article named and which will perform adequately the functions imposed by the general design.

Whenever in the specifications the names of manufacturers are mentioned as indicating that their products will comply with a particular specification, or when specific trade names or plated numbers or letters are mentioned, it is not intended to exclude products of other manufacturers whose names, trade names or symbols have not been mentioned, provided however, that such products otherwise comply, in the opinion of the Engineer, with the specifications. The Engineer's opinion in all cases mentioned in this section shall be final.

G. Materials and Workmanship

All materials and equipment furnished under this contract shall be of standard high-grade quality and of the best workmanship and design. No inferior or low-grade materials will be accepted, and all work must be done in a neat, first-class and workmanlike manner.

The Engineer shall have the right to test and inspect or require certificates of tests of any materials to be used in the work.

H. Inspection by the Engineer

All materials and equipment furnished and work done by the Contractor shall be subject to inspection by the Engineer, and defective materials shall be removed from the site of the work and defective work repaired or replaced as directed. Facilities for inspection of the work shall at all times be furnished by the Contractor.

I. Documents at Site of Work

The Contractor shall have available at all times, at the site of the work, copies of the contract documents, any plans and all standard specifications of the various associations which are referred to in the specifications.

J. Lines and Grades

The Engineer shall establish such control stations, base lines and bench marks as may be necessary for the use of the Contractor. It shall be the specific duty of the Contractor to preserve and to protect the control base lines and bench marks so established.

During construction, the Contractor shall use the control stations, base lines and bench marks established by the Engineer to develop their own lines and grades as needed to comply with those specified or shown on the drawings. The Contractor shall be held responsible for all lines and grades which they have developed.

K. Scaffolding and Protection

The Contractor shall provide safe scaffolding to accommodate the work as applicable. They shall build all necessary runways, temporary stairs, ladders, barricades, fences, etc.

L. Public Safety and Property of Others

The Contractor shall make all necessary provisions to protect the public safety, and maintain and protect existing structures of whatever kind, and shall repair all damage done to such structures. They shall give ample notification to the proper officials of any city or town, of any public utility, corporation, or other individual before entering upon their respective pubic ways or rights of way and shall conform to the customary regulations and requirements of said officials, corporations, or individuals.

Extra precautions must be taken to avoid splattering adjoining property, automobiles, or structures. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for all damages to same.

M. Existing Structures, Pipes, Conduits, Etc.

As far as they are known, approximate locations of existing structures, pipes, conduits, etc. are shown on the drawings. Any existing structures, pipes, conduits, wires, etc., whether shown on the drawings or not, shall be protected and if damaged shall be repaired by the Contractor without additional compensation. The Contractor shall call Dig-Safe, the MWRA, and any other applicable agency for utility markout prior to commencing work as required by law.

Tie cards/Record Drawings of water, sewer, & drain mains/services within the work limits are provided as an appendix to these specifications. The contractor shall be responsible for marking out these utility locations in the field. In the absence of a tie card, the Town will assist in locating the service.

N. Sanitary Provisions

The Contractor shall provide adequate sanitary facilities and maintain in a neat and sanitary condition such accommodations for the use of their employees as may be necessary to comply with the requirements of the State Department of Public Health, local health officials, and other authorities having jurisdiction. Every precaution shall be taken to prevent contamination or pollution of the ground at the site, or of any material or equipment which is to be incorporated in or used in the construction of any work under this contract.

Sanitary facilities shall be available when the first employees arrive on the site of the work, shall be properly secluded from public observation, and shall be provided and maintained during the progress of the work in suitable numbers and at such points and in such manner as may be required. Sanitary facilities shall be removed, and the surrounding areas properly cleaned and disinfected, upon completion of the work.

The Contractor shall maintain the sanitary facilities in a satisfactory and sanitary condition at all times and shall enforce their use. The Contractor shall rigorously prohibit the committing of nuisances by employees on the site of the work, on the lands of the Owner, or on adjacent property.

O. Cutting and Patching

The Contractor shall do all cutting, patching, drilling, grouting, etc., as necessary to complete the work, whether such work is described in the specifications or not.

P. Management of Debris, Refuse, and Garbage and Site Cleanup

Debris, refuse, and other garbage of any kind shall not be permitted to accumulate at any of the proposed work locations or storage areas. Debris, refuse, scrap, garbage, etc. shall be removed from the project location sites on a daily basis by the Contractor and disposed of in accordance with all Local, State, and Federal regulations. Removal and disposal of all debris, refuse, garbage, etc. shall be completed at the full cost & responsibility of the Contractor. Should the improper handling of debris, refuse, or other garbage result in pest and/or vermin infestations, the Contractor shall provide pest/vermin control services as directed by the Town. Pest/vermin control services shall be provided at no additional cost to the Town.

The work site and adjacent areas affected thereby shall at all times present a neat and orderly appearance. The Contractor must employ at all times during the progress of their work, adequate cleanup measures and safety precautions to prevent injuries to persons or damage to property.

Suitable materials, equipment, and methods shall be used for the cleanup and restoration of the project work area. The restoration of existing property or structures shall be done as promptly as practicable as work progresses and shall not be left until the end of the Contract period.

Where material or debris has washed or flowed into or been placed in existing watercourses, ditches, gutters, drains, pipes structures, or elsewhere during the course of the Contractor's operations, such material or debris shall be entirely removed by the contractor and satisfactorily disposed of during the progress of the work, and the ditches, channels, drains, pipes, structures, etc., shall, upon completion of the work, be left in a clean and neat condition.

Upon written notification by the Engineer, the Contractor shall within 24 hours clean up those areas, which in the Engineer's opinion are in violation of this section and the above referenced sections of the specifications. If in the opinion of the Engineer, the referenced areas are not satisfactorily cleaned up, all other work on the project shall stop until the cleanup is satisfactory.

The Contractor shall restore or replace, when and as directed by the Town, any public or private property damaged by their work, equipment, or employees, to a condition at least equal to that existing immediately prior to the beginning of operations. To this end, the Contractor shall repair as required all necessary highway, driveway, walk, and landscaping work damaged or disrupted during the course of the Contractor's work.

Before acceptance of work by the Owner, the Contractor shall perform a final cleanup to bring the construction site to its original or specified condition. Unless otherwise explicitly directed or permitted in writing, the Contractor shall as part of this final cleanup, tear down and remove all temporary buildings and structures built by them; shall remove all temporary works, tools, and machinery or other construction equipment furnished by them; shall remove, acceptably disinfect, and cover all organic matter and material containing organic matter in, under, and around sanitary facilities and other buildings used by them; shall remove all rubbish from any grounds which they have occupied; and shall leave the roads and all parts of the premises and adjacent property affected by their operations in a neat and satisfactory condition. Before acceptance, the Engineer shall approve the condition of the site.

Q. Measurement of Quantities

For the estimating of quantities in which the computation of areas by analytic and geometric methods would be comparatively laborious, it is stipulated and agreed that the planimeter shall be considered an instrument of precision adapted to the measurement of such areas.

For the purposes of measurement and computation of irregular volumes, the prismoidal formula shall be deemed a method of precision.

R. Compliance with Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970

The Contractor shall in the work of this contract comply with all pertinent standards and regulations established by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration, Department of Labor by the authority of the Williams-Steiger Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970. This project is subject to all of the Safety and Health Regulations (see 29 CFR 1518) as promulgated by the U.S. Department of Labor on April 17, 1971. Contractors are urged to make themselves familiar with the requirements of these regulations.

S. Order of Precedence Governing Specifications

The Standard Specifications for Highways and Bridges of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, 1988 Edition plus any supplements shall be considered a part of these specifications.

In case of conflict between any sections of these specifications, plans, etc., the following order of precedence shall govern.

- 1. Special Provisions
- 2. Plans, Profiles, or Sections
- 3. Standard Specifications for Construction work in Arlington
- 4. Standard Specifications, 1988 Edition plus Supplements, for Highways and Bridges of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

T. Affirmative Action/Anti-Discrimination

For the purposes of this contract, "minority" refers to, but is not limited to, Asian-Americans, African-Americans, Latinos, North American Indians, and Cape Verdeans. Town refers to the Town of Arlington.

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor and all of their Sub-contractors (hereinafter collectively referred to as the Contractor) for themselves, their assignees, and successors in interest, agree as follows:

- 1. In connection with the performance of work under this contract, the Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religious creed, national origin, age or sex. The aforesaid provision shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment advertising; recruitment layoff; termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; conditions or privileges of employment; and selection for apprenticeship. The Contractor shall post hereafter in conspicuous places, available for employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the Town setting forth the provisions of the Fair Employment Practices Law of the Commonwealth (M.G.L. Chapter 151B).
- 2. In connection with the performance of work under this contract, the Contractor shall undertake in good faith affirmative action measures designed to eliminate any discriminatory barriers in the terms and conditions of employment on the grounds of race, color, religious creed, national origin, age or sex, and to eliminate and remedy any effects of such discrimination in the past. Such affirmative action shall entail positive and aggressive measures to ensure equal opportunity in the areas of hiring, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment, layoff or termination, rate of compensation, and inservice or apprenticeship training programs. This affirmative action shall include all action required to guarantee equal employment opportunity for all persons, regardless of race, color, religious creed, national origin, age or sex. A purpose of this provision is to ensure to the fullest extent possible an adequate supply of skilled tradesman for this and future Town public construction projects.
- 3. As part of their obligation of remedial action under the foregoing section, the Contractor shall maintain on this project a not less than five percent ration of minority employee man hours to total man hours in each job category including but not limited to bricklayers, carpenters, cement masons, electricians, ironworks, operation engineers and those "classes of work" enumerated in Section 44C of Chapter 149 of the Massachusetts General Laws.
- 4. In the hiring of minority journeyman, apprentices, trainees and advances trainees, the Contractor shall rely on referrals from a multi-employer affirmative action program approved by the Town, traditional referral methods utilized by the construction

industry, and referrals from agencies, not more than three in number at any one time, designated by the Liaison Committee or the Town.

- 5. At the discretion of the Town there may be established for the life of this contract a body to be known as the Liaison Committee. The Liaison Committee shall be composed of one representative each from the agency or agencies administering this project, hereinafter called the administering agency, the Town and such other representative as may be designated by the Town in conjunction with the administering agency.
- 6. The Contractor (or their Agent, if any, designated by him as the on-site equal employment opportunity officer) shall recognize the Liaison Committee as an affirmative action body, and shall establish a continuing working relationship with the Liaison Committee, consulting with the Liaison Committee on all matters related to minority recruitment, referral, employment and training.
- 7. The Contractor shall prepare projected manning tables on a quarterly basis. These shall be broken down into projections, by week, or workers required in each trade. Copies shall be furnished one week in advance of the commencement of the period covered, and also when updated, to the Town or Liaison Committee.
- 8. Records of employment referral orders, prepared by the Contractor, shall be made available to the Town and to the Liaison Committee on request.
- 9. The Contractor shall prepare weekly reports in a form approved by Town of hours worked in each trade by each employee, identified as minority or non-minority. Copies of these shall be provided at the end of each such week to the Town and to the Liaison Committee.

If the Contractor shall use any sub-contractor on any work performed under this contract, they shall take affirmative action to negotiate with qualified minority sub-contractors. This affirmative action shall cover both pre-bid and post-bid periods. It shall include notification to the Office of Minority Business Assistance (within the Executive Office of Communities and Development) or its designee, while bids are in preparation, of all products, work or services for which the Contractor intends to negotiate bids.

In the employment of journeymen, apprentices, trainees and advanced trainees, the Contractor shall give preference, first, to citizens of the Commonwealth who have served in the armed forces of the United States in time of war and have been honorably discharged there from or released from active duty therein, and who are qualified to perform the work to which the employment relates, and, secondly, to citizens of the Commonwealth generally, and, if such cannot be obtained in sufficient numbers, then to citizens of the United States.

A designee of the Town and a designee of the Liaison Committee shall each have right of access to the construction site.

1. Compliance with Requirements

The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Executive Order O, 74, as amended by Executive Order NO. 116 dated May 1, 1975, and of Chapter 151B as amended, of the Massachusetts General Laws, both of which are herein incorporated by preference and made a part of this contract.

2. Non-Discrimination

The Contractor, in the performance of all work after award, and prior to completion of the contract work, will not discriminate on grounds of race, color, religious creed, national origin, age or sex in employment practices, in the selection or retention of subcontractors, or in the procurement of materials and rentals of equipment.

3. Solicitations for Sub-Contracts, and for the Procurement of Materials and Equipment

In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Contractor either for work to be performed under a sub-contractor for the procurement of materials or equipment, each potential sub-contractor or supplier shall be notified I writing by the Contractor of the Contractor's obligations under this contract relative to non-discrimination and affirmative action.

4. Bidders Certification Requirement

- 1. The bidder's certification form currently in use will be deleted from all future bid documents.
- 2. The following certification statement will be inserted in the bid document just above the bidders signature, as a substitute for the present bidder certification form:

"The bidder hereby certifies they shall comply with the minority manpower rations and specific action steps contained in the appendix EEO attached hereto, including compliance with the minority contractor compliance specified in Section V of said appendix. The contractor receiving the award of the contract shall be required to obtain from each of its sub-contractors and submit to the contracting or administering agency prior to the performance of any work under said contract a certification by said sub-contractor, regardless of tier, that it will comply with the minority manpower ration and specific affirmative action step contained in the appendix EEO."

5. Contractor's Certification

The Contractor's certification form must be signed by all successful low bidder(s) prior to award by the contracting agency. (See attachment).

6. Compliance-Information, Reports and Sanctions

- 1. The Contractor will provide all information and reports required by the administering agency or the Town on instructions issued by either of them and will permit access to its facilities and any books, records, accounts and other sources of information which may be determined by Town to the affect the employment of personnel. This provision shall apply only to information pertinent to the Town's supplementary affirmative action contract requirements. Where information required is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Contractor shall so certify to the administering agency of the Town as appropriate and shall set forth what efforts they has made to obtain the information.
- 2. Whenever the administering agency, the Town, or the Liaison Committee believes the General Contractor or any Sub-contractor may not be operating in compliance with the terms of this Section, the Town directly, or through it designated agent,

shall conduct an appropriate investigation, and may confer with the parties, to determine if such Contractor is operating in compliance with this Section. If the Town or its agent finds the General Contractor or any Sub-contractor not in compliance, it shall make a preliminary report on non-compliance, and notify such Contractor in writing of such steps as will in the judgment of the Town or its agent bring such Contractor into compliance. In the event that such Contractor fails or refuses to fully perform such steps, the Town shall make a final report of non-compliance, and recommend to the administering agency the imposition of one or more of the sanctions listed below. If, however, the Town believes the General Contractor or any Sub-contractor has taken or is taking every possible measure to achieve compliance, it shall not make a final report of non-compliance. Within fourteen (14) days of the receipt of the recommendations of the Town, the administering agency shall move to impose one or more of the following sanctions, as it may deem appropriate to attain full and effective enforcement:

- a. The recovery by the administering agency from the General Contractor of 1/100 of 1% of the contract award price or \$1000 whichever sum is greater, in the nature of liquidated damages or, if a Sub-contractor is in non-compliance, the recovery by the administering agency from the General Contractor, to be assessed by the General Contractor as a back charge against the Sub-contractor, of 1/10 of 1% of the sub-contract price, or \$400 whichever sum is greater, in the nature of liquidated damages, for each week that such party fails or refuses to comply.
- b. The suspension of any payment or part thereof due under the contract until such time as the General Contractor or any Sub-contractor is able to demonstrate their compliance with the terms of the contract.
- c. The termination, or cancellation, of the contract, in whole or in part, unless the General Contractor or any Sub-contractor is able to demonstrate within a specified time their compliance with the terms of the contract.
- d. The denial to the General Contractor or any Sub-contractor of the right to participate in any future contracts awarded by the administering agency for a period of up to three years.
- 3. If at any time after the imposition of one or more of the above sanctions a Contractor is able to demonstrate that they are in compliance with this Section, they may request the administering agency, in consultation with the Town, to suspend the sanctions conditionally, pending a final determination by the Town as to whether the Contractor is in compliance. Upon final determination of the Town, the administering agency, based on the recommendation of the Town, shall either lift the sanctions or re-impose them.
- 4. Sanctions enumerated under Sections 2 shall not be imposed by the administering agency except after an adjudicatory proceeding, as that term is used M.G.L. c. 30A has been conducted. No investigation by the Town or its agent shall be initiated without prior notice to the Contractor.

7. Severability

The provisions of this section are severable, and if any of these provisions shall be held unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions.

VII. SPECIAL CONDITIONS

A. SCOPE OF SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Whenever conditions as set forth in SECTION SC – SPECIAL CONDITIONS conflict with SECTION C – CONTRACT OR SECTION S – DETAIL SPECIFICATIONS, the SPECIAL CONDITIONS shall apply.

B. MINIMUM LIMITS FOR INSURANCE

The minimum limits required under "C.23 – Insurance" in SECTION – CONTRACT shall be as follows:

- a. Compensation Insurance as required by the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
- b. Contractor's Public Liability Insurance in an amount not less than \$500,000 for injuries including wrongful death to any person and subject to the same limit for each person in an amount not less than \$1,000,000 on account of one accident.
- c. Property Damage Insurance in an amount not less than \$500,000 for a single accident or less than \$1,000,000 in the aggregate.

C. RETAINAGE

The Town shall retain five (5) percent of any periodic estimate and one (1) percent of the value of the completed contract for repairs for a period of one (1) year from substantial completion.

D. PAYMENT OF SUMS DUE CONTRACTOR

Replace SECTION – C-38 of the Contract with the following:

C-38 – Payment of Sums Due Contractor – All payments and retainage shall be in accordance with SECTION 39G of Chapter 30 of the Massachusetts General Laws.

E. DISPOSAL OF EXCAVATED MATERIAL

It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to dispose of unsuitable material and any excavated material including pipe, gates, hydrants and fittings which are not required for use within the locus of the work, as determined by the Engineer and/or the Director of Public Works, outside the locus of the work, in a Contractor furnished disposal area, and shall become the property of the Contractor.

F. EXCERPTS FROM CERTAIN LAWS

Particular attention is called to certain excerpts of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

Preference in Employment of Labor:

In the employment of mechanics, teamsters, chauffeurs and laborers in the construction of this pubic work, the Contractor shall give preference first, to citizens of the Commonwealth who have been residents of the Commonwealth for at least six months at the commencement of their employment who are veterans as defined in General Law (Ter. Ed.), Chapter 4, Section 7, Clause 43, and who are qualified to perform the work to which the employment relates; and secondly, to citizens of the Commonwealth who have been residents of the Commonwealth for at least six months at the commonwealth of the commonwealth for at least six months of the commonwealth who have been residents of the Commonwealth for at least six months at the commencement of their employment, and if they cannot be obtained in sufficient numbers, then to citizens of the

United States. Veterans and citizens of the Town shall be given preference in employment of the work.

Labor, Lodging, Board, Maximum Hours of Employment and Weekly Payment:

Every employee in public work shall lodge, board and trade where and with whom they elects; and no person or their agents or employees under contract with the Commonwealth, a county, city or town, or with a department, board, commission or officer acting therefore, for the doing of public work shall directly or indirectly require as a condition of employment therein, that the employee shall lodge, board or trade at a particular place or with a particular person per General Law (Ter. Ed.), Chapter 149, Section 25.

No laborer, workman, mechanic, foreman or inspector working within the Commonwealth, in the employ of the Contractor, sub-contractor or other person doing or contracting to do the whole or a part of the work contemplated by this contract, shall be required to work more than eight (8) hours in any one day or more than forty-eight (48) hours in any one week, or more than six (6) days in any one week, except in cases of emergency, or in case any Town subject to Section 31 of the General Laws is a party to such a contract, more than eight (8) hours in any one day, except as aforesaid. General Laws (Ter. Ed.), Chapter 149, Section 34, as amended.

Attention of the bidders is called to Chapter 149, Section 148 of the General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and amendments thereof requiring the weekly payment of employees.

G. REGULATIONS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

This contract is subject to the requirements of the Massachusetts General Laws (MGL) of which the following are of major significance:

MGL Chapter 30, Section(s) 39F, G, N, O and P.

MGL Chapter 30, Section 40

MGL Chapter 30, Section 39R

MGL Chapter 30, Section(s) 39K and L

MGL Chapter 44, Section 31C (chapter 693 of 1964)

MGL Chapter 82, Section 40 (chapter 353 of 1983)

MGL Chapter 149, Section 34

H. ADJACENT CONTRACTS

The Contractor's attention is directed to the fact that work by utility companies, municipal departments and other contractors may be carried on concurrently within and adjacent to the limits of the contract. The said companies, municipal departments and other contractors may require access over the site and the Contractor shall do their work in cooperation with them. The attention of the Contractor is also directed to the provisions of General Laws, Chapter 82, Section 40 which requires Contractor to notify public utility companies, in writing, at least seventy-two (72) hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays) before excavating that portion of the project that is within a public way. This notification is the sole responsibility of the Contractor.

I. TRAFFIC ORDERS

The Town of Arlington will pay all charges for the services of uniformed police officers. The Contractor will be responsible for the coordination of ordering and/or cancelling police details

as needed. Cancellations must be made a minimum of 1-hour in advance of the scheduled detail. The Contractor will be liable for charges incurred for cancellations that occur less than 1-hour in advance of the scheduled detail.

J. TIME FOR COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

All the work proposed under this contract, shall be completed in accordance with the below-phased milestones:

- Massachusetts Avenue PRV (Sheet 8) Completed by November 15, 2020
- Remainder of Project (Sheets 1-7) Completed by August 31, 2021

In case the Contractor fails to satisfactorily complete the entire work contemplated and provided for under their contract on or before the date of completion as determined herein, the Town shall deduct from the payments due the Contractor the sum of one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00) for each calendar day (Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays excluded) of delay, which sum is agreed upon not as a penalty, but as fixed and liquidated damages for each day of such delay, to be paid in full and subject to no deduction. If the payments due to the Contractor are less than the amount of said liquidated damages, said damages shall be deducted from any other monies due or to become due the Contractor, and in case the damages exceed the amount of all monies due or to become due the Contractor, the Contractor, or their Surety, shall pay the balance to the Town. No work shall be done between November 15st and April 15th without the express written consent of the Director of Public Works.

K. **RESTORATION OF SURFACE**

It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to restore all surfaces in accordance with Section S56. (Bituminous Concrete Paving and Concrete Walks). No more than one-hundred fifty (150) feet of trench shall be left without temporary patch during the work week, and no trenches shall be left without temporary patch during weekends or municipally recognized holidays.

L. **PROTECTION OF TREES**

The attention of the Contractor is directed to the fact that there may be existing Public Shade Trees located in the project work area. Public Shade Trees are protected under Massachusetts General Law Chapter 87. No Public Shade Tree shall be cut, pruned, trimmed, marked, posted, removed, or altered, including roots, in any such manner without the written permission of the Town of Arlington Tree Warden. Extreme caution shall be taken by the Contractor to assure that these trees are not harmed during construction operations.

The Contractor shall notify the Engineer and the Town of Arlington Tree Warden in advance of initiating operations in close proximity to any tree. When tree roots are encountered during trench excavation, the Contractor shall notify the Tree Warden, and uncover the remainder of the roots within the confines of the excavation with hand tools. The exposed roots shall be thoroughly soaked with water and protected with burlap, paper or polyethylene from the direct rays of the sun. Tree roots shall not be cut by the Contractor except with the expressed permission of the Tree Warden.

The Contractor shall also inform the Tree Warden if the limbs of any trees hanging over the work area may impede progress or be at risk of damage from construction equipment. The Contractor shall coordinate proper tree protection or pruning methods with the Tree Warden at no additional expense to the Town.

The Contractor shall be liable for the replacement of any trees adversely impacted by their work activities, as determined by the Tree Warden.

M. INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT

This contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. All actions, claims and disputes hereunder shall be presented to the applicable agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

N. CONTROL OF WATER SYSTEM

The Arlington Department of Public Works Water and Sewer Division shall maintain control of the use or operation of any and all gate valves, hydrants, etc., and shall be notified by the Contractor two (2) business days in advance of any use or operation of the above except in a case of an emergency; however, the Department of Public Works Water and Sewer Division shall be informed immediately upon said emergency use or operation.

0. COMMUNITY NOTICES, COORDINATION, AND NO PARKING SIGNS

Contractor shall be responsible for posting Notices to residents affected by proposed construction throughout the course of the project. At minimum, Notices will be required for the following: project introduction (type of work, anticipated start of work and duration, etc.); emergency contact information; road closures; utility shutdowns; emergency conditions; and progress updates, as applicable. Additional Notices may be required by the Engineering Division at no additional cost to the Town. Unless otherwise noted or agreed upon in writing, Notices shall be prepared by the Contractor, submitted to the Engineering Division for review and approval, and distributed by the Contractor upon approval by the Engineering Division, these notices may be provided by the Engineering Division and be distributed by the Contractor.

The Contractor shall give at least two (2) business days notice to the AFFECTED RESIDENTS of the need to withdraw a water main from service in order to facilitate the disconnection or connection of the new mains with existing mains.

The Contractor shall post "No Parking" signs in areas of proposed work a minimum of two (2) business days prior to construction as directed by the Engineering Division. The Contractor may obtain standard no parking signs from the Engineering Division upon which they shall clearly note the date and time of parking restrictions. Should the Contractor decide to provide their own signs, they shall first be provided for review and approval by the Engineering Division. Contractor is responsible for maintaining and replacing signs in place and/or modifying date and time restrictions as necessary.

The contractor shall coordinate work plans with all applicable Town Departments (e.g. Water/Sewer Division, Police Department, Fire Department, etc.) and other organizations (e.g. MBTA for road closures with bus routes, MWRA, DigSafe, utility companies, etc.) affected by construction and as directed by the Engineering Division.

The Contractor shall provide emergency contact information for residents, Town departments, and other applicable organizations prior to the start of construction.

P. AWARD OF CONTRACT

The Town reserves the right to award the contract in part or in whole.

Q. WORKSITE DUST CONTROL

The worksite shall be kept free of dust and other sediments to the greatest extent practical. In an effort to accomplish this, on a weekly basis at minimum, the entire site shall be swept by a vehicle-mounted, mechanical sweeper. Further, on days in which work is completed within any

designated resource area, the work area within this buffer zone shall be swept on a daily basis. All sweepings and material collected from these required cleanings shall be properly disposed of at the full cost and responsibility of the Contractor.

Between sweepings, the Contractor shall use calcium chloride as needed to control dust on-site. Calcium chloride shall be applied when ordered by the Engineer and only in areas which will not be adversely affected by the application. Calcium chloride shall be uniformly applied at the rate of 1 ½ pounds per square yard or at any other rate as directed by the Engineer. Application shall be by means of a mechanical spreader or other approved methods. The number and frequency of applications shall be determined by the Engineer. The application of calcium chloride shall not be permitted in designated environmental resource areas or buffer zones without the prior consent of the Town of Arlington Conservation Commission.

Calcium chloride used on-site shall conform to the requirements of AASHTO-M144, Type I or Type II and Specification for Calcium Chloride, ASTM D98. The calcium chloride shall be packaged in moisture proof bags or in airtight drums with the manufacturer, name of product, net weight, and percentage of calcium chloride guaranteed by the manufacturer legibly marked on each container. Calcium chloride failing to meet the requirements of the aforementioned specifications or that which has become caked or sticky in shipment, may be rejected by the Engineer.

R. CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE

Upon execution of the contract, the construction sequence shall be summated by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer.

VIII. REMOVAL OF UNDERGROUND NON - FRIABLE ASBESTOS CEMENT PIPE

A. GENERAL

A. Definitions:

"**Friable**" – material can be crushed, pulverized, or reduced to powder, when dry, by hand pressure.

"Non-friable" – material that cannot be crushed or pulverized under hand pressure.

- B. This section specifies requirements for the removal of non-friable (pipe that has been below the groundwater level or is in otherwise saturated soils will generally be non-friable because it has been saturated/wet) asbestos cement pipe during trenching and excavation operations associated with the installation of new water pipes, where existing AC pipes may be encountered.
- C. All asbestos cement pipe that is shown on the drawings and which is removed during construction is the responsibility of the Contractor, for removal, transportation and proper disposal.

B. SUBMITTALS:

The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer the following listed items at least fourteen (14) days before work is to proceed. No asbestos pipe removal work activities shall commence until the Engineer reviews these items, unless otherwise waived.

Submittal No. 1 – Plan of Action and Standard Operating Procedure (SOP)

Submit a detailed plan of the procedures proposed for use in complying with all applicable regulations of the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) as detailed in 310 CMR 7.15, Department of Labor Standards (DLS), and any other applicable governing body, as well as the regulations and the requirements of this specification. This plan shall include, but not be limited, to pipe handling, storage/transport, and disposal.

Submittal No. 2 - Licensure

- Documentation of the Contractor and their employee's licensure/certification for handling and disposing of asbestos-containing pipe/waste.
- Name, location, and copies of applicable licenses for primary and secondary landfill for disposal of asbestos-containing or asbestos-contaminated waste.

Submittal No. 3 – MassDEP Notification

MassDEP requires that Asbestos Notification Form ANF-001/BWP AQ-04 be filed at least 10days prior to removal of any asbestos containing waste. A copy of this form must be provided to the Engineer prior to the start of any work involving the removal of asbestos containing materials/waste.

Submittal No. 3 – Waste Shipment Record

Within thirty (30) days of receipt of asbestos waste at the approved landfill, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer the original copy of the "Waste Shipment Record" acknowledging disposal of all associated waste material from the Contractor, showing delivery date, quantity, and appropriate signature of Contractor, transporter, and landfill's authorized representative.

Submittal No. 4 - Post-Abatement Visual Inspection Record

Signed and dated documentation indicating that a final visual inspection of each applicable project site was completed following removal and disposal of all asbestos containing pipe/waste. Documentation must be in a format provided by MassDEP.

C. GENERAL APPLICABILTY CODED, REGULATIONS AND STANDARDS:

All applicable federal, state and municipal codes, regulations, and standards have the same force and affect (and are made a part of the contract documents by reference) as if copied directly into the contract documents, or as if published copies are bound herewith. All regulations by governing agencies in their most recent version are applicable. Provisions contained in this specification that are more stringent than applicable codes, regulations and standards shall govern this project.

D. LICENSING AND TRAINING OF WORKERS

Contractor and Contractor's workers performing asbestos pipe removal must meet the licensing and training requirements of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (453 CMR 6.00).

E. MATERIALS

- A. Wetting materials: For wetting before disturbance of asbestos-containing materials, use either amended water or a removal encapsulant. The material must be odorless, non-flammable, non-toxic, non-irritating, and non-carcinogenic. It shall be applied as a mist using a low-pressure sprayer recommended by the manufacturer.
 - 1. Amended water: Provide water to which a surfactant has been added. Use a mixture of surfactant and water which results in wetting of the asbestos-containing material and retardation of fiber release during disturbance of the material equal to or greater than that provided by the use of one (1) ounce of a surfactant consisting of fifty (50) percent polyoxyethylene ester and fifty (50) percent polyoxyethylene ether mixed with five (5) gallons of water.
 - 2. Removal encapsulant: Provide a penetrating type encapsulant designed specifically for removal of asbestos-containing material. Use a material which results in wetting of the asbestos-containing material and retardation of fiber release during disturbance of the material equal or greater than that provided by water amended with one ounce of a surfactant consisting of fifty (50) percent polyoxyethylene ester and fifty (50) percent polyoxyethylene ether mixed with five (5) gallons of water.

- B. Encapsulant: A material that surrounds or embeds asbestos fibers in an adhesive matrix, to prevent release of fibers.
 - 1. Bridging Encapsulant: An encapsulant that forms a discrete layer on the surface of an in situ asbestos matrix.
 - 2. Penetrating Encapsulant: An encapsulant that is absorbed by the in situ asbestos matrix without leaving a discrete surface layer.
 - 3. Removal Encapsulant: A penetrating encapsulant specifically designed for removal of asbestos-containing materials rather than for in situ encapsulation.
- C. Polyethylene Sheet: Provide flame resistant polyethylene film that conforms to requirements set forth by the National Fire Protection Association Standard 701, Small Scale Fire Test for Flame-resistant Textiles and Films. Provide largest size possible to minimize seams, 6.0 mils thick as required, frosted or black as indicated.
- D. Duct Tape: Provide duct tape in 2" or 3" widths as indicated, with an adhesive which is formulated to aggressively stick to sheet polyethylene, is waterproof, and will adhere to other materials.
- E. Spray Cement: Provide spray adhesive in aerosol cans that is specifically formulated to stick tenaciously to sheet polyethylene.
- F. Waste Containers: Provide 6-mil thick leak-tight polyethylene bags labeled as follows:

DANGER

CONTAINS ASBESTOS FIBERS

AVOID CREATING DUST

CANCER AND LUNG DISEASE HAZARD

If the waste material contains sharp edges or may otherwise puncture polyethylene bags, provide labeled drums or other closed containers for storage, transportation, and disposal.

- G. Warning Signs and Labels: Shall comply with 29 CFR 1926.59(k), and other federal, state, or local codes and regulations.
- H. Brushes: All brushes should have nylon bristles. Wire brushes are excluded from use due to their potential to shred asbestos fibers into small fibers. Wire brushes may be used on pipe joint applications upon prior written notice to the Engineer.

F. CONSTRUCTION METHODS

1. General

- A. Non-friable asbestos cement pipe shall be handled, transported, and disposed of in a way that prevents it from becoming friable and releasing asbestos fibers. Asbestos cement pipe cannot be shattered, crumbled, pulverized, sanded, chipped, or ground.
- B. Non-friable asbestos cement pipe may not be used as fill; it shall be disposed of at a landfill that is State approved to accept asbestos waste. Landfills may require special packaging and labeling in order to accept asbestos cement pipe.
- C. Asbestos cement pipe shall not be removed from the excavation if it is not necessary to disturb it during installation of the new pipeline.
- D. Asbestos cement pipe shall never be handled unless it is wet. Dry pipe shall be wet down with a suitable wetting material prior to handling it.

2. NOTIFICATION TO MASSDEP:

At least ten (10) working days in advance of asbestos pipe removal, submit Asbestos Notification Form ANF-001 to MassDEP. This may be done online using the MassDEP website.

3. ASBESTOS CEMENT PIPE DURING EXCAVATION:

- A. This section is provided for removal of asbestos cement pipe in excavation areas.
- B. Removal of Non-Friable Asbestos Materials:
 - 1. Carefully excavate, by hand, a sufficient area around the pipe to perform the work. Any asbestos debris that is present or generated by these activities will be promptly wetted and placed into 6-mil asbestos bags before continuing with the work.
 - 2. Once excavation is complete, place one layer of 6-mil polyethylene sheeting on sidewalls and bottom of trench under the asbestos cement pipe to be removed.
 - 3. Thoroughly encapsulate asbestos cement pipe with an acceptable penetrating encapsulant per manufacturer guidelines.
 - 4. Remove asbestos cement pipe as follows: Cut material into manageable sections using HEPA-filtered saw. The Contractor will take all necessary precautions to avoid any breakage of asbestos cement pipe. Cut ends of pipe will be immediately encapsulated. Cut sections of pipe will be removed from the trench and immediately wrapped and sealed in two layers of 6-mil asbestos waste bags. Packaged waste will then be placed into the acceptable waste transportation vehicle. Whenever possible, the Contractor

will limit cutting of asbestos cement materials and dismantle materials in intact sections.

4. ASBESTOS CEMENT PIPE LEFT IN PLACE

A. Ends of asbestos cement pipe to be left in the excavation shall be encapsulated. Asbestos cement pipe is not to be crushed and left in place. Any crushed pieces must be removed and properly disposed of.

5. ASBESTOS CEMENT PIPE DISPOSAL PROCEDURES

- A. The Contractor shall package, label, and remove all asbestos cement pipe as specified below. Packaging shall be accomplished in a manner that minimizes waste volume, but insures waste containers shall not tear or break. Transportation and disposal of the containerized waste at an approved landfill shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.
- B. Waste Labeling:
 - 1. Warning labels, having waterproof print and permanent adhesive in compliance with OSHA, EPA and Department of Transportation requirement shall be affixed to or printed on the sides of all waste bags or transfer containers. Warning labels shall be conspicuous and legible.
 - 2. In compliance with NESHAPS, 40 CFR, Part 61.150, all waste containers or bags shall be labeled with the following generator information:
 - a. Name of waste generator.
 - b. Location where waste was generated.

G. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

ITEM 12 Removal, Disposal and Handling of Transite Pipe Linear Foot

Removal, Disposal and Handling of transite pipe will be measured by the linear foot, removed and disposed.

The unit prices above shall include full compensation for all labor, material and equipment necessary for removing, disposing, and handling of transite pipe in accordance with this specification.

IX. EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL

A. GENERAL

- A. The work under this section shall include all excavation to such width and depth as shown on the drawings, specified herein, or ordered by the Engineer. Such excavation may be for the laying of pipes or appurtenances, the removal of pipes or appurtenances, the capping or plugging of pipes to be abandoned, test pits to locate existing utilities, or any other purpose for which excavation may be needed.
- B. Wherever a percentage of compaction for backfill is indicated or specified, it shall be the percent of maximum density at optimum moisture as determined by Method D of ASTM Standard Methods of Test for Moisture Density Relations of Soils Using 10-lb. rammer and 18-inch Drop, Designation D 1557-78.

B. CLASSIFICATION

Excavation shall be classified as follows:

- A. <u>TRENCH EXCAVATION</u> shall consist of all earth excavation, within the limits specified herein, required to lay all pipes and appurtenances as shown on the plans or ordered by the Engineer.
 - a) Whenever an excavation is dug to a depth of five feet or more, the trench shall be supported in accordance with the rules and regulations for the prevention of accidents in construction operations pursuant to Section 129A of Chapter 149 of the General laws and current OSHA regulations.
 - b) The contractor shall furnish, place and maintain such sheathing as may be necessary to support the sides of the excavation and prevent movement of earth which would cause injury, delay the work or endanger adjacent structures.
 - c) Normal depth of trench excavation shall be six inches (6") below the bottom of the pipe in earth.
 - d) Normal width of trench excavation in sheathed trenches up to 12 feet deep shall be measured between vertical planes which are a distance apart that is equal to the sum of the outside diameter of the pipe plus the total width of the sheathing including walers plus 2 feet. Such trench width shall in no case be less than 4 feet 2 inches or 5 feet if walers are used as part of the sheathing system. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional compensation for trench excavation that exceeds the minimum allowable for trench excavation in sheathed trenches, whether the increase in width is due to Contractor means and methods, unstable subsurface materials, or for any other reason.
 - e) Normal trench widths for trenches supported with approved trench boxes or hydraulic shoring systems shall be the sum of the outside diameter of the pipe

plus 1 foot on either side of the pipe, the width of the wall shield (no greater than 8 inches), plus 1 foot of additional space to allow for installation of the trench box. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional compensation for trench excavation that exceeds the minimum allowable for trench excavation in trench boxes or shoring systems, whether the increase in width is due to Contractor means and methods, unstable subsurface materials, or for any other reason.

- f) Normal width of trench excavation in unsheathed trenches shall be measured between vertical planes, which are a distance that is equal to the sum of the outside diameter of the pipe plus 2 feet. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional compensation for trench excavation that exceeds the minimum allowable for trench excavation in unsheathed trenches, whether the increase in width is due to Contractor means and methods, unstable subsurface materials, or for any other reason.
- g) Such trench width shall in no case be less than 3 feet except trenches for building services that shall be a maximum of 2 feet 6 inches wide.
- B. <u>MISCELLANEOUS TRENCH EXCAVATION</u> shall consist of all excavation beyond the limits of normal trench excavation as ordered in writing by the Engineer, including test pits ordered or approved by the Engineer.
- C. <u>TRENCH ROCK EXCAVATION</u> shall be any rock greater than 1-1/2 cubic yards in size as shown on the plan or ordered by the Engineer to be excavated. Limits of rock excavation shall be six (6) inches from the outside diameter of the pipe. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional compensation for trench rock excavation that exceeds the minimum allowable for trench rock excavation, whether the increase is due to Contractor means and methods, unstable subsurface materials, or for any other reason.

C. CONSTRUCTION METHODS

1. **GENERAL**

- A. Excavation shall be carried out to the lines and grades as set forth above as shown on the plans or as ordered by the Engineer. All excavation beyond such limits is done at the Contractor's expense. Furnishing, placing and compacting suitable backfill material for such over-excavation shall also be at the Contractors' expense.
- B. Prior to excavation of all trenches in paved areas, the Contractor shall cut through the existing pavement and base course in neat straight lines with a minimum amount of vibration. Pavement, except sidewalks or as allowed in writing by the Engineer, shall be cut using a mechanical saw or a machine mounted hydraulic or mechanical tool fitted with a rotary-type blade, and shall result in sound vertical edges, thus avoiding any damage to the pavement or base course outside of the trench limits. Should additional excavation be required in an area that was

previously provided temporary paving by the Contractor, the Contractor shall be required to once again saw cut through the pavement in neat straight lines.

C. Whenever an excavation is dug to a depth of five feet or more, the trench shall be supported in accordance with the rules and regulations for the prevention of accidents in construction operations pursuant to Section 129A of Chapter 149 of the General laws and current OSHA regulations.

The contractor shall furnish, place and maintain such sheathing as may be necessary to support the sides of the excavation and prevent movement of earth which would cause injury, delay the work or endanger adjacent structures

Sheathing shall be driven ahead of the excavation to avoid loss of material from behind the sheathing, except as may be otherwise permitted by the Town. Care should be taken to prevent voids outside of the sheathing. If voids occur, they shall be filled immediately with sand and compacted, or with controlled density fill.

All sheathing shall be left in place unless otherwise directed by the Town. Where wailers and bracing are to be salvaged by the Contractor, they shall not be removed until the backfill is consolidated up to within 2 feet of the bracing to be removed. The normal cutoff point is two feet below finished grade unless otherwise directed by the Town.

- D. All excavations shall be kept free of all water. The Contractor shall submit the method for dewatering at the pre-construction meeting for approval by the Engineer.
- E. The following materials shall be considered earth excavation for purposes of measurement and payment:
 - 1. Street or sidewalk pavement of all kinds including bituminous concrete, concrete, brick or other materials.
 - 2. Obstructions visible in whole or in part before beginning work such as trees, hedges, stumps, roots and fences.
 - 3. Obstructions indicated on the drawings.
 - 4. Brick or other masonry of old foundations.
 - 5. Catch basins, manholes, pipes and similar existing structures not in use.
 - 6. Dry stone walls with stones less than one and one-half (1-1/2) cubic yards in volume.
 - 7. Sheeting, shoring or bracing of existing structures including piles, pile caps and cradles.
- F. All existing gas pipes, electric conduit, telephone conduit, cable TV conduit, telecommunications conduit, water, sewer or drain mains/services and any other structures, which are uncovered by the excavation, shall be carefully supported

and protected from injury by the Contractor. The Contractor shall restore any items damaged by their work to their original condition, and they shall be kept in repair during contract operations. The restoration of existing utility lines shall be done as promptly as practical and shall not be left until the end of the construction.

- 1. The approximate location of water, sewer, & drain mains, as well as drain/sewer service laterals within the work limits are included on the Contract drawings. The Contractor shall be responsible for marking out these utility locations in the field.
- 2. The Engineer and/or the Town of Arlington Water and Sewer Division shall be notified immediately if the Contractor damages a sanitary sewer service or a sewer/drain main during excavation activities. The Contractor shall stop all work until the situation has been reviewed by and direction has been provided by the Engineer and/or the Water and Sewer Division. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional compensation for lost time, labor, or materials required to complete the repairs.
- 3. Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract Drawings, the Contractor shall assume that all existing sewer services are constructed of clay pipe. Should the Contractor damage an existing clay sanitary sewer service during their excavation activities, they shall be required to replace the clay service with PVC pipe from the back of sidewalk (or five-feet from the edge of pavement if no sidewalk is present) to the physical connection at the sewer main, including a new PVC tee/wye. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional compensation for lost time, labor, or materials required to complete the repairs.
- G. As excavation operations approach known underground structures, the excavation around the structure should be performed by means of hand tools to safely expose the structure as a normal part of trench excavation. A minimum 5' buffer on either side of marked utilities shall be assumed.
- H. Where determination of the exact location or elevation of a pipe or other structure is necessary, the Contractor shall excavate test pits along the proposed alignment as part of normal trench excavation, to determine such locations far enough ahead of the work so that the pipe alignment can be properly determined. Test pits ordered by the Engineer beyond the limits of the trench work shall be paid for under Miscellaneous Trench Excavation.
- I. Excavating equipment shall be operated with care to prevent damage to trees, overhead branches, overhead utilities and other structures. Wherever work will disturb existing trees, the Contractor will notify the Town's Tree Warden. The Contractor shall coordinate the cutting of any roots or branches of existing trees with the Town. Branches and roots shall not be cut without the written approval of the Engineer and/or the Tree Warden. All cutting shall be done neatly by approved methods without splitting or crushing.

- J. Plantings and trees shall be adequately protected or removed and later reestablished in their original position and condition. Where injury is such as to diminish their beauty or usefulness, they shall be replaced by items of kind and quality at least equal to that existing at the start of the work.
- K. The Contractor shall not use any equipment whose movement will cut or otherwise injure paved surfaces.
- L. Where material is found below the grade to which excavation is carried which is unsuitable for foundation in the opinion of the Engineer, the Contractor shall remove and dispose of such material to the required width and depth and replaced with thoroughly compacted screened gravel or gravel as directed by the Engineer.
- M. The Contractor shall maintain the area of their activities to control dust by sweeping and/or sprinkling of the streets or as otherwise determined to be necessary by the Engineer.
- N. As soon as practicable after the pipes have been laid, except as provided hereinafter, the backfilling shall be started around the pipe to the limits and with the material indicated on the drawings. Unless indicated otherwise on the drawings, all backfill material shall be newly bought gravel or approved processed gravel. This material shall be filled evenly on both sides of the pipe to the indicated grades and rammed with suitable tools so as to be compacted to at least 95 percent.
- O. Backfill shall not be placed on frozen material.
- P. The trench above a level one (1) foot over the top of the pipe shall be backfilled and compacted by mechanical tamping or rolling (maximum weight of roller one (1) ton within three (3) feet of pipe) in accordance with the nature of the material and as approved by the Engineer. Puddling may only be used when the material does not contain so much clay or loam as to delay or prevent satisfactory drainage.
- Q. Backfilling of the entire trench before the pipeline has successfully passed any specified tests required shall be at the Contractor's option and risk. The Contractor shall be responsible for removing and later replacing such backfill, at their own expense, should they be ordered to do so in order to locate and repair improperly placed pipe or to repair leakage or defective joints or pipe.
- R. The material shall be deposited in layers of not more than <u>eight (8) inches</u> in depth before compaction. Each layer shall be tampered or rolled as required to obtain a thoroughly compacted mass. Care shall be taken that the material shall first be wet by sprinkling as directed or approved. However, no compaction shall be done when the material is too wet.

54

2. TRENCH EXCAVATION

- A. Trench excavation shall be carried out as specified herein and shown on the plans.
- B. Trenches may be excavated to their full depth by machinery provided that the material remaining at the bottom of the trench is no more than slightly disturbed.
- C. The Contractor should anticipate that due to existing utility lines, hand excavation will be required.
- D. Trench excavation shall result in a flat or shaped trench bottom, true to grade so that the pipe will have uniform and continuous bearing on a firm support. Trenches shall be made as narrow as practicable, and every effort shall be made to keep the sides of the trenches firm and undisturbed until backfilling and compaction are completed.

3. MISCELLANEOUS TRENCH EXCAVATION

A. This excavation shall be carried out in a similar manner to trench excavation, but to limits beyond the established limits for normal trench excavation as determined by the Engineer.

4. TRENCH ROCK EXCAVATION

- A. Only such rock, as in the opinion of the Engineer, that requires a hoe ram for its removal, and boulders over one and one-half (1-1/2) cubic yards in volume, will be measured and paid for as rock excavation.
- B. Rock shall also include monolithic concrete or reinforced concrete or stone structures greater than 1-1/2 cubic yards as a solid mass.
- C. Rock in pipe trenches shall be excavated so as to be not less than 6 inches from the outside wall of the pipe. Before the pipe is laid, the trench below the pipe, where rock excavation has been made, shall be backfilled and compacted with suitable material, as that required for bedding the pipe.
- D. The Contractor shall observe all State, Federal and municipal laws, ordinances and regulations relating to the transportation, storage, handling and use of explosives. In the event that the regulations require a licensed blaster to perform or supervise the work, said licensed blaster shall have their license at the site and shall permit examination thereof by the Engineer. All required City, State and Federal permits and other required documentation shall be provided to the Engineer prior to undertaking any blasting.
- E. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer an accurate record of each blast showing the time, location, depth, number of drill holes, the kind and quantity of explosives used and other data required for a complete record.

F. All excavated rock shall be removed and disposed of unless otherwise directed by the Engineer.

5. UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL

- A. Unless otherwise approved by the Engineer, all excavated soil/metarial from a water main trench, water service trench, test pit, or other associated excavation shall be considered unsuitable for reuse. Unsuitable backfill shall be removed from the site and disposed of properly. New material, which meets the requirements presented hereinto, shall be brought in to replace excavated soil found to be unsuitable.
 - 1. At the discretion of the Engineer, the soil excavated from a trench may be evaluated by experienced personnel and the Engineer to determine whether or not it is suitable as a backfill in accordance with this section. An excavated soil that has been evaluated as suitable for backfill shall be reused provided its moisture content has been determined to be "suitable" in accordance with standards for proper moisture content.
 - 2. Suitable backfill material shall be free of stones larger than half the size of the compacted lift as provided for in Mass DOT Standard Specifications for Highway Bridges, construction debris, trash, frozen soil and other foreign material. Suitable materials consist (but are not limited to) the following:
 - a. Well graded gravel and sand;
 - b. Poorly graded gravel and sand;
 - c. Gravel-sand mixtures with a small amount of silt;
 - d. Gravel-sand mixtures with a small amount of silt and trace amounts of clay.

Unsuitable backfill materials consist (but are not limited to) of the following:

- a. Inorganic silts and clays;
- b. Organic silts;
- c. Organic soils including peat, humus, topsoil, swamp soils, mulch, and soils containing leaves, grass, branches, and other fibrous vegetable matter.

D. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

ITEM 9	Trench Rock Excavation	Cubic Yard
ITEM 10	Miscellaneous Trench Excavation	Cubic Yard
ITEM 11	Unsuitable Trench Material	Cubic Yard

No separate measurement and payment will be made for Trench Excavation. All costs in connection therein shall be considered incidental to furnishing and laying of water pipe as provided under these specifications and shall include all work described in this section, including trench support as required.

Trench Rock Excavation shall be measured by the cubic yard. This item shall include all rock excavation necessary to lay the pipe at the grade specified. Such excavation shall extend to a point at least six (6) inches around the outside diameter of the pipe. The amount paid under this item shall include all mechanical means to excavate rock, blasting, and any other work necessary to remove the rock.

Trench Rock Excavation will be paid for at the Contract unit price per cubic yard, which price shall be full compensation for all costs for excavating, hauling and disposal of clean, unsuitable or surplus excavated material. Excavation Material that is suitable for reuse as directed by the Engineer will be re handled, placed, compacted and graded at no additional cost.

For purposes of payment boulders at least one and one-half cubic yards in volume shall be considered as Rock Excavation. Boulders less than one and one-half cubic yards shall be considered normal earth excavation.

Miscellaneous Trench Excavation shall be measured by the cubic yard. This item shall include only such excavation as may be ordered by the Engineer. Since the main purpose of this item, although not its only purpose, is for test-pits, the Contractor should anticipate that hand excavation will be involved.

Miscellaneous Trench Excavation will be paid for at the Contract unit price per cubic yard, which price shall be full compensation for all costs for excavating, hauling and disposal of clean, unsuitable or surplus excavated material. Excavation Material that is suitable for reuse as directed by the Engineer will be re handled, placed, compacted and graded at no additional cost.

Unsuitable Material shall be measured by the cubic yard. This item shall include excavation necessary to remove the material as well as supplying, placing and compacting suitable material in its place as directed in these specifications.

Unsuitable Material will be paid for at the Contract unit price per cubic yard, which price shall be full compensation for all costs for excavating, hauling and disposal of the excavated material. The price shall include supplying, placing and compacting suitable material as detailed in Section S5.

X. GRAVEL

A. GENERAL

Gravel shall be used as backfill material in all trench excavations, rock excavations, miscellaneous trench excavations and any other location where specified herein, as called for in the appropriate pipe specifications, as shown on the plans or order by the Engineer, except where otherwise noted.

Weight slips may be requested by the Engineer to verify the source of the Gravel. Such slips shall bear the name of the supplier, date purchased and the weight of the gravel. <u>Such slips shall</u> not be used as a method of measuring the gravel for payment.

B. MATERIAL

Gravel shall consist of inert material that is hard, durable stone and coarse sand free from loam and clay surface coatings, be well graded and contain no stone having any dimension greater than three (3) inches.

Gravel shall conform to the following requirements:

Passing 3 inch sieve	100%
Passing 1 1/2 inch sieve	70-100%
Passing 3/4 inch sieve	50 - 85%
Passing No. 4 sieve	30 - 60%
Passing No. 200 sieve	0 - 10%

New bank run or processed gravel is acceptable but must meet the above requirements and be processed by mechanical means. All processed gravel shall come from an approved stockpile. The equipment producing the processed gravel shall be of adequate size and with sufficient adjustments to produce the desired materials. The processed material shall be stockpiled in such a manner to minimize segregation of particle sizes.

C. CONSTRUCTION METHODS

Gravel refill shall be placed, spread and compacted as set forth in the Excavation and Backfill section of these specifications. Gravel shall not be placed on frozen ground.

Before pipe is placed, a gravel base shall be installed. The gravel base shall be a minimum of 6" deep or as directed by the Town.

D. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

No separate measurement and payment will be made for work required under this Section. All costs in connection therein shall be considered incidental to the item(s) of work to which they pertain.

XI. CONTROLLED DENSITY FILL (FLOW FILL)

A. GENERAL

Controlled Density Fill shall be used as backfill material as indicated on the plans for confined trench excavations or other similar voids where proper compaction is difficult to attain.

Volume slips may be requested by the Engineer to verify the source and amount of the controlled density fill. Such slips shall bear the name of the supplier, date purchased and the volume of the controlled density fill provided. <u>Such slips shall not be used as a method of measuring the controlled density fill for payment.</u>

B. MATERIAL

Controlled density fill shall be provided by a ready mix concrete producer and shall consist of water, portland cement, fine aggregate, and fly ash or slag cement. The material shall have a maximum compressive strength of 200 psi to allow for future removal of flowable fill. In place density shall range from 90-125 lbs/cf.

C. CONSTRUCTION METHODS

Controlled density fill shall be placed as a flowable fill as provided by a ready mix concrete producer. Controlled density fill shall not be placed when the surrounding ground is frozen or during below freezing temperatures.

D. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

No separate measurement and payment will be made for work required under this Section. All costs in connection therein shall be considered incidental to the item(s) of work to which they pertain as denoted on the plans.

XII. DUCTILE IRON PIPE AND FITTINGS

A. GENERAL

This section covers the removal and replacement of existing water pipe including services larger than 2-inches in diameter, the abandonment in place of existing water pipe, and the laying of new water pipe, including, but limited to, excavation, excavation support, gravel, backfill, and surface restoration.

B. MATERIALS

A. <u>Ductile Iron Pipe</u>

Unless otherwise shown on the plans or specified herein all water pipe shall be ductile iron cement lined designed in accordance with ANS21.50/AWWA C150-96 and manufactured in accordance with ANS A21.51/AWWA C151-96.

Unless otherwise indicated or specified, ductile iron pipe shall be special thickness Class 52 for diameters sixteen (16) inches or less.

Pipes shall have an asphaltic exterior coating and the interior shall be double cementmortar lined in accordance with ANS A21.4/AWWA C104-95.

All pipe shall be push-on joint conforming to ANS A21.11/AWWA C111 latest version. Pipe shall be delivered in eighteen (18) or twenty (20) foot lengths.

Push-on joints shall be provided with sufficient quantities of accessories conforming to ANS A21.11/AWWA C111.

B. <u>Fittings</u>

The Contractor shall furnish and install all the required fittings shown on the plans or as directed by the Engineer. All fittings shall be ASTM A-536 ductile iron, asphaltic coated, cement lined, mechanical joint. All fittings 3-inch through 48-inch in diameter shall meet or exceed the requirements of AWWA C-110.Compact fittings shall be ductile iron meeting or exceeding the requirements of AWWA C-153.

All fittings 4" to 24" shall be pressure rated at 350 PSI working pressure. Fittings shall conform to the weights, excluding accessories, and dimensions shown in the latest edition of the Handbook of Ductile Iron Pipe and come complete with all joint accessories as required. All accessories (gland, gaskets, T-bolts and nuts) shall be in accordance with AWWA C-111. All mechanical joint bolts (T-bolts) shall be Cor-Ten or equal.

C. <u>Couplings</u>

When connecting ductile iron pipe to cast iron pipe the contractor shall use sleeve couplings. When connecting ductile iron pipe to ductile iron pipe the contractor shall use solid sleeve mechanical joint fittings manufactured in accordance with these specifications.

Sleeve couplings and accessories shall be pressure rated for a minimum of 250 PSI. Couplings shall be ductile iron or steel. The couplings shall be provided with "Cor-Ten" bolts and nuts or approved equal.

After assembly, all surfaces of the bolts and nuts shall be thoroughly coated with two coats of an asphaltic coating. The interior and exterior of the coupling shall be epoxy-coated.

C. CONSTRUCTION METHODS

- A. <u>General</u>
 - 1. Care shall be taken in loading, transporting, and unloading to prevent injury to the pipes or coatings. Pipe or fittings shall not be dropped.
 - 2. Pipes and fittings shall be subjected to a careful inspection by the Town before installation. All defective pipe and fittings shall be removed from the site at no cost to the Town. If any portion of the pipe is cracked or defective the entire length shall be removed.
 - 3. All pipe and fittings shall be thoroughly cleaned before laying and shall be kept clean until used in the work. Each pipe shall be cleared of all excess tar, debris, dirt, etc., before laying.
 - 4. Push-on joints shall be made up by first inserting the gasket into the groove of the bell and applying a thin film of non-toxic gasket lubricant uniformly over the inner surface. The chamfered end of the plain pipe shall be inserted into the gasket and forced past it until it seats against the bottom of the socket.
 - 5. When cutting pipe is required, the cutting shall be done by machine leaving a smooth cut at right angles to the axis of the pipe. Cut ends of pipe shall be beveled to conform to the manufactured spigot end. Cement lining shall be undamaged.
 - 6. Whenever encountered within the trench, existing water mains shall be removed. All existing water mains outside of the trench limits which are left in place and abandoned, shall be capped at all ends.

- 7. Ductile iron pipe and fittings shall be installed in accordance with the requirements of AWWA Standard Specification C600, except as otherwise approved by the Town. A firm, even bearing throughout the length of the pipe shall be constructed by tamping selected material at the sides of the pipe up to the springline. **Blocking will not be permitted.**
- 8. Water pipe shall be laid with a minimum cover of five and one-half (5 1/2) feet or to the grade of the existing pipe unless otherwise shown on the plan or directed by the Town.
- 9. When laying is not in progress, including lunchtime; the open ends of the pipe shall be closed by watertight plug or other approved means. The Contractor shall keep the trench free from water while the pipe is being installed.
- 10. Fittings, in addition to those shown on the plans, shall be provided, if required, in crossing utilities, which may be encountered.
- 11. At the direction of the Town, all existing valves and hydrants removed from service shall be delivered to the Town's storage yard. Any valves and hydrants that the Town does not want delivered to the Town storage yard, shall become the responsibility of the contractor for disposal. All pipe that is removed shall be the property of the Contractor, and it shall be the Contractor's responsibility for disposal.

B. <u>Thrust Restraint</u>

1. Fittings, plugs and hydrants shall be restrained against hydraulic thrust through the use of "Megalug Series 1100" or approved equal mechanical restraint in lieu of thrust blocks.

C. <u>Deflection</u>

1. In laying a full 18 or 20 foot length of ductile iron pipe along a curve, the maximum changes in alignment of each length of pipe using push on joints shall not exceed 19 inches for pipes 4"-36". The amount of allowable deflection for pipe greater than 36" shall be in accordance with the manufacturers' specifications.

D. <u>Pressure Tests</u>

1. The pipelines shall be tested (in sections if required by the Engineer) for strength and for leakage at a pressure of 150 pounds per square inch. The tests for leakage shall last for at least one hour, but may be increased to two hours at the discretion of the Engineering Division. The additional water needed to maintain the required pressure shall be accurately measured in a manner approved by the Engineer. The container shall be clearly labeled with its capacity in gallons.

- 2. Tests shall be made for all newly installed pipe and when required by the Engineer. A 24-hour notice shall be given to the Engineer prior to all tests. The Contractor shall furnish all apparatus; material and labor necessary for making the tests, including caps temporarily set to accommodate pressure testing.
- 3. The Contractor will make all necessary arrangements for securing the water for test purposes and will stand the expense of these arrangements. The water required for testing will be furnished by the Town without charge to the Contractor from the Town's existing water system. The Contractor shall provide the Town with an estimate of Town water used during all tests.
- 4. During this test all hydrant laterals shall be in the open position. Methods of testing and plans showing sections to be tested are to be submitted to the Engineer for approval as requested. The Contractor shall not perform a pressure test against existing valves unless authorized by the Engineer. Generally they shall set a cap at the limit of work for main line water work.
- 5. The rate of leakage shall not exceed the following for pipe of 18 foot nominal laying length:

Pipe Diameter (inches)	Allowable Leakage per 1000' of Pipe
6	0.55 Gallons
8	0.74 Gallons
10	0.92 Gallons
12	1.10 Gallons

6. The Contractor shall repair all leaks discovered under any of the required tests.

E. <u>Chlorination and De-Chlorination of the Pipeline</u>

1. Upon completion of the pipe line and all the testing thereof, the interior of the pipe shall be flushed and then thoroughly disinfected in all parts. This disinfection must result in eliminating from the various parts of the new pipe line all evidence of the existence therein of bacteria indicative of any contamination, as determined by tests of the bacterial content of samples of water taken from the new water main. The disinfection may be accomplished by introducing into all the various parts of the new water mains a liquid solution containing one percent available chlorine in such volume that the rate of dosage to the water mains shall be at least 50 parts per million of available chlorine. The contact period for this disinfection shall be at least twenty-four hours, and a longer period will be required if tests of residual chlorine show it to be less than the required minimum of 25 mg./l. The water system shall be flushed out after its disinfection. The Contractor shall furnish and install suitable temporary testing plugs, caps, pumps,

pipe connections, blow offs, and other appurtenances as necessary and all labor required for testing bacteria and disinfecting the water mains.

- 2. Water used for chlorination shall be de-chlorinated prior to disposal. The Town shall approve of the location of the discharge of the de-chlorinated water.
- 3. All work shall be done in accordance with AWWA C-651. Connections at cuttings shall be swabbed with a 50-PPM solution of chlorine at locations when other methods are not applicable.
- 4. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the results of the pressure and chlorination tests to the Town prior to activation of the water main. Results of the chlorination tests shall be documented by a laboratory certified by the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection. The Contractor shall also provide the Town with an estimate of water used during all testing.
- 5. The Pressure Testing and Disinfection Reports shall be completed by the Contractor and approved by the Town prior to any payments being made for pipe.

D. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

ITEM 2a Furnish & Install 12" Cement Lined Ductile Iron Pipe & Fittings Linear Foot

ITEM 2b Furnish & Install 10" Cement Lined Ductile Iron Pipe & Fittings Linear Foot

ITEM 2c Furnish & Install 8" Cement Lined Ductile Iron Pipe & Fittings Linear Foot

ITEM 2d Furnish & Install 6" Cement Lined Ductile Iron Pipe & Fittings Linear Foot

The length of ductile iron water pipe to be paid for under the appropriate size designated shall be measured linear foot along the finished grade over the pipe from end to end as laid. No deduction for the length of valves or fittings in the pipe shall be made.

Proposed pipe location shown on plans in schematic. Any necessary deviations from the locations shown due to unforeseen field conditions (utility crossing conflicts, etc.) will not be measured or paid for separately.

Six (6) inch CLDI installed as part of a hydrant installation shall not be included under Item 2c, but under the associated items for hydrant installations (4, 5A, and 5B).

The unit price paid for Furnishing & Installing Ductile Iron Water Pipe shall be full compensation for cutting and disposal of pavement, trench excavation, sheeting and bracing as required, dewatering, placing and compacting gravel and backfill materials, removal and disposal of existing water mains (if ordered by the engineer), removal and delivery to Town facility (or disposal if ordered by the Engineer) of all valves and appurtenances, furnishing and

laying of new water pipe and fittings as shown on the plans or ordered by the Engineer, all items and labor related to the approved installation of thrust restraint, surface restoration, temporary paving to last a period of one winter, and all else in connection with the laying of water main for which there is no separate pay item.

E. NEW CEMENT LINED DUCTILE IRON PIPE

In addition to the requirements already set forth, the following shall apply:

The new cement lined ductile iron pipe shall include the furnishing and installing of all crosses, tees, bends, couplings and other miscellaneous fittings, including appropriately sized crosses or tees, pipe and couplings necessary to connect the new mains with existing mains.

If an existing water main is exposed within the trench limits, shown to be removed on the bid plans and/or at the discretion of the Town, it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to remove and dispose of the existing main including all fittings and valves that are exposed.

Existing water mains that are to be abandoned in place and/or at the discretion of the Town shall be abandoned in accordance with the following:

- 1. Water mains must be abandoned in place by using mechanical devices manufactured specifically for such purposes to completely seal the ends of the pipe.
- 2. Mechanical joint plugs or mechanical joint caps with watertight gaskets must be installed at the termination points of the abandoned water main.
- 3. Oversized mechanical joint caps or plugs may be required depending on the outside diameter for the existing water pipe.
- 4. Remove valve boxes on valves on abandoned mains to a minimum of one (1) foot below top of grade in unpaved areas, or to bottom of sub-grade in paved areas. Remainder of valve box is to be filled and capped.

F. PIPE FITTINGS

All pipe fittings shall be ductile iron with mechanical joints. An ample supply of fittings shall be kept on the job site at all time. All fittings shall be American made.

XIII. GATE VALVES AND BOXES

A. GENERAL

The Contractor shall furnish and install all gate valves and boxes and insetion valves and boxes where indicated on the drawings and in accordance with all specifications contained herein.

B. MATERIALS

1. GENERAL

- A. All gate valves valves shall be American Flow Control Series 2500, open to the right (clockwise) resilient wedge type valves, or approved equal.
- B. All insertion valves shall be EZ Valve Permanent Valve Insertion System (or approved equal).
- C. All operating nuts shall be two (2) inches square at the base, tapering to 1-15/16 inches square at the top.
- D. All valves shall open to the right (clockwise).
- E. The interior of all valve bodies and other ferrous metal parts, which will come in contact with water, shall be epoxy coated.
- F. All bonnet bolts, seal plate bolts, stuffing box bolts, and other bolts in contact with soil (except for MJ bolts) shall be 18-8 Type 304 stainless steel or Everdur bronze.

2. VALVE BOXES

- A. All valves four (4) inches and larger shall be provided with a box and cover.
 - a. Valve boxes shall be cast iron, two piece, sliding type with a top flange and a minimum inside shaft diameter of $5-\frac{1}{4}$ ".
 - b. All roadway covers shall be cast clearly with the word "water".
 - c. The valve-operating nut shall be centered in the valve tube and visible upon installation.
 - d. Valve box manufacturer shall be ISO 9002 certified.

3. CONSTRUCTION METHODS

- A. All material shall be inspected for defects prior to installation. Defective materials shall be immediately removed from the site.
- B. All foreign matter shall be removed from valve openings and seat faces.
- C. All nuts and bolts shall be checked for tightness.
- D. Blocking shall be placed under each valve to insure against settlement.

4. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

Furnish & Install 12" Gate Valve and Gate Valve Box	Each
Furnish & Install 10" Gate Valve and Gate Valve Box	Each
Furnish & Install 8" Gate Valve and Gate Valve Box	Each
English 9 Install C' Cata Walas and Cata Walas Dar	El.
Furnish & Install 6 Gate Valve and Gate Valve Box	Each
Furnish & Install 12" Insertion Valve and Valve Box	Each

The quantity of valves to be paid for shall be the actual count, in place and complete, installed by the Contractor in accordance with the plans and these specifications. The Engineering Division/Water and Sewer Division shall confirm each valve is operational prior to acceptance.

The unit price paid under the above items shall be full compensation for earth excavation; removal of existing valve; removal of existing masonry valve chamber if found; returning of removed valve to the Town's storage yard; furnishing and setting valve; furnishing and setting access tube, frame and cover; and/or roadway box as required; and furnishing and setting pipe nipples needed to set the valve, including couplings.

Six (6) inch gate valves installed as part of a hydrant installation shall be paid under the associated items for hydrant installations (Item 4).

No separate payment shall be made for valve installations required to be completed prior to the installation of temporary by-pass water lines or services.

No separate payment shall be made for excavation, equipment, labor, or other related work/materials necessary for the installation of an insertion valve required to be completed prior to other related excavations or water main installations.

No separate payment will be made for the removal of any existing valves within the limits of the work.

XIV. POST HYDRANTS

A. GENERAL

- A. This section covers the installation of new hydrants and the resetting of existing hydrants.
- B. Prior to putting any existing hydrant out of service for any reason, the Contractor shall notify the Fire Department or the DPW Dispatch in writing.
- C. Hydrants which will be out of service for more than twenty-four (24) hours shall be replaced by temporary hydrants.

B. MATERIALS

A. Hydrants required to perform the work under this section shall be Waterous Traffic Flow Model, WB67-250, open to the right (or approved equal).

C. CONSTRUCTION METHODS

- A. Hydrants shall be set plumb with the steamer nozzle facing the roadway.
- B. Hydrants shall be set with the center of the operating nut 18 inches back from the face of the curb.
- C. Hydrants shall be set so that manufacturers "bury" mark or ground line is at finish grade. If there is no bury mark on the hydrant, the bottom of the breakaway feature shall be a minimum of 2 inches and a maximum of 4 inches above finished grade.
- D. The depth of bury shall be either 5-1/2 or 6 feet.
- E. Hydrants shall be set on either a flat stone or concrete base at least 14 inches square and 4 inches thick.
- F. Hydrants shall be restrained by using mechanical joint follower glands, rods and clamps, thrust blocks or any combination thereof as required by the Engineer.
- G. A drainage pit shall be excavated below and around each hydrant and backfilled to a height of at least six (6) inches above all drain ports with at least 12 cubic feet of 1 inch to 2 inch crushed stone. This shall be covered with 4-mil thick plastic sheeting.

D. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

ITEM 4	Furnish and Install 6" Hydrant Gate Valve and Gate Valve Box EACH
ITEM 5a	Remove Ex. Hydrant, Furnish & Install New Hydrant and 6" Hydrant Branch
	EACH

ITEM 5b Remove and Reset Existing Hydrant Including New 6" Hydrant Branch EACH

Furnishing and installing 6" hydrant gate valve and gate valve box shall be measured each complete and in place. Payment will be made at the contract unit price per each and will include all labor, material and equipment necessary to complete the work.

Removing and disposing of existing hydrants and furnishing and installing new hydrants including 6" branch will be measured per Each complete and in place.

The unit price shall include full compensation for all labor, material and equipment necessary for removing and disposing of the existing pavement; excavating and backfilling of trench; resetting curb; replacing damaged sidewalks with the same material as was existing prior to construction; removing and disposing of existing 6" branches, gate valve and hydrants; furnishing and installing new hydrants including thrust blocks and 6" branches as shown on the plans or as directed and all other incidental work.

E. HYDRANT REPLACEMENT AND NEW HYDRANT

Where existing hydrants are to be removed and replaced with new hydrants, the existing hydrant, hydrant branch and gate valve shall be removed and disposed of by the Contractor at the direction of the Town. The replacement hydrant as well as hydrants at new locations shall be furnished and installed, including new 6" branches, thrust blocks and surface restoration. All hydrants shall be manufactured by Waterous.

Attention is also directed to any hydrants that are not traffic models. This will be determined in the field, or by the Department of Public Works.

F. HYDRANT REMOVE AND RESET

Existing hydrants, hydrant branches and gate valves so designated, shall be removed and the hydrant branches and gate valves disposed of by the Contractor. The existing hydrants shall be reset with new 6" hydrant branches and gate valves furnished by the Contractor.

XV. TEMPORARY BY-PASS SYSTEM

A. GENERAL

- A. The Contractor shall furnish, install, chlorinate, maintain and remove bypass and temporary service pipe of the size required to adequately service water customers.
- B. The Contractor shall provide temporary services for the customers whose permanent service line is:
 - 1. Out of service due to the main pipe to which it is connected to being replaced.
 - 2. Out of service due to the main pipe to which it is connected to being cleaned and cement lined.
 - 3. Out of service due to the main pipe to which it is connected being served only by the main being rehabilitated or replaced, including dead end pipes and pipes ending at division gates.
 - 4. Out of service for any other reason in connection with work under this contract
- C. The Contractor shall locate all services to be fed by the by-pass system, including both domestic and fire service lines. Customer's service lines, which will be out of service for a limited period of time, in the opinion of the Engineer, need not be by-passed but all other provisions regarding adequate notice and hours of shut down shall be strictly adhered to.
- D. A bypass plan shall be submitted to demonstrate compliance with these provisions.
- E. The Contractor shall review with the Town water distribution plans to determine the extent of the by-pass, especially where dead ends and division gates may require by-pass piping. No additional payment shall be considered for the extension of the by-pass to feed services fed from dead ended pipe or pipe where flow is interrupted by a division gate. This may or may not be noted on the plan. In either case the Contractor is responsible for determining the locations of all dead ends.
- F. All by-pass shall be fed from two (2) sources unless otherwise approved by the Town.
- G. In the event a bypass pipe is dead-ended, it shall terminate with a 2-inch valve for flushing and chlorination.
- H. No by-pass pipe shall be activated prior to approval by the Town. The Contractor will be responsible for written notification to the Arlington Fire Department that the by-pass has been installed and, to provide a copy to the of such notification to the Town.

70

B. MATERIALS

- A. All by-pass shall be galvanized steel, H.D.P.E. or polyvinylchloride (PVC) pipe. All plastic pipe or hose shall bear the imprint of the National Sanitary Foundation approval for potable water NSF-PW or shall be capable of meeting the standards established by the NSF for this use.
- B. The materials selected shall be adequate to operate at the pressure to which they will be subject to and adequate to withstand whatever forces, such as traffic loading, they will encounter. Joints for all pipe shall be watertight.
- C. The Town reserves the right to reject at any time materials that do not meet the requirements set forth herein.

C. CONSTRUCTION METHODS

- A. In general, by-pass piping shall be laid along the side of the roadway adjacent to the curb line edge of pavement line.
- B. At locations where the pipe is subject to minimal traffic, such as at driveways, the pipe shall be adequately protected by excavating and setting the pipe below grade or "ramping" it with bituminous concrete or other suitable material.
- C. All by-pass pipes that cross handicapped ramps, intersections, or extends around the radius of an intersecting street shall be installed below the surface grade unless otherwise approved by the Town.
- D. Where necessary to feed large services, the Contractor may be required to excavate the sidewalk or other areas adjacent to a building to cut into the existing service or fire pipe. The cost of this work will be included in the bid price for Temporary By-pass Pipe including backfill and paving.
- E. The Contractor will be required, where necessary, to ramp over all by-pass piping to provide for wheelchair access on affected sidewalks. Ramping shall be in accordance with ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) regulations.
- F. At locations where the pipe is subject to regular traffic, such as where it crosses traveled lanes; the pipe MUST be set below grade and the trench adequately filled to withstand the traffic loads. At such areas all work must be done in accordance with the applicable sections contained herein relating to trench excavation and paving. These requirements shall include, but are not limited to, cutting the pavement neatly to avoid excess damage to existing pavement.
- G. The interior of all by-pass pipe, temporary service pipe and service hoses shall be flushed to remove any dirt or other objects and shall be disinfected in accordance the Ductile Iron Pipe and Fittings specification section: <u>Chlorination and De-chlorination of Pipeline</u>.
- H. At all locations where hydrants are out of service due to work under this contract, the contractor shall provide temporary hydrants. A hydrant being used to feed temporary

hydrants must be fed by 6-inch by-pass pipe including whip connections and must be fitted with a butterfly valve with pentagonal operating nut, which can be turned with a hand wrench. The valve shall be painted blue for easier identification. The valve shall be equipped with a 1/4-turn stop, which will not allow the operating nut to go beyond the closed position. All temporary hydrants shall have one 4 1/2-inch outlet, located with the centerline of the outlet parallel with the curb line, the face of the nozzle perpendicular to the road surface, and between 1 1/2 and 2 1/2 feet above the road surface. A threaded cap with a standard pentagonal nut is to be installed at the end of each 4 1/2" hydrant connection.

- I. Adequate precautions shall be taken to protect all vehicular and pedestrian traffic from injury due to by-pass piping and temporary service lines. These precautions shall include, but are not limited to "ramping", barricades and other devices.
- J. All by-pass pipe and service hoses shall be bubble tight at all times. No leakage shall be acceptable.
- K. No by-pass pipe shall remain in place after November fifteenth, and none shall be put in service prior to April fifteenth unless otherwise approved by the Town.

D. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

ITEM 1 Furnish & Install and Remove Temporary Bypass Mains and Services Lump Sum

Temporary bypass lines will be measured and paid for by the Lump Sum which price and payment shall be full compensation for all excavation and backfilling including tap-holes and restoration of existing surface (cement concrete or bituminous concrete) to its original condition prior to excavation; for furnishing, installing, maintaining and removing temporary fire hydrants and temporary house connections; for all tapping and other approved valved connections into fire or other service pipes; for furnishing, installing, decontaminating and sterilizing, maintaining and removing the temporary bypass pipe, hydrants and house connections, including connecting and disconnecting the bypass pipe to an existing water supply, all temporary valves, fittings, and other facilities necessary to provide temporary fire and domestic service including connections and disconnections; for all special provisions that may be required at driveways, street crossings, or otherwise for the protection of the temporary pipe, and for all the labor, materials, equipment and other incidental work.

E. TERMPORARY BYPASS WATER LINES AND SERVICES

The Contractor shall be responsible for furnishing temporary facilities for supplying water service and fire protection as required until the work is completed. The design shall ensure that water is provided through temporary services at pressures that meet those Massachusetts Plumbing Code, particularly if pressure relief valves within buildings are bypassed during the work. Please note that static system pressures in the project area are approximately 100-110 PSI. The Contractor's method and design for providing temporary service and fire protection shall be approved by the Engineer and/or the Director of Public Works prior to commencing work.

Upon execution of the contract, a plan for lying of all bypass lines and services shall be submitted to the Engineer and the Director of Public Works for approval. No bypass lines shall be laid prior to this approval. The Engineer and/or the Director of Public Works shall make the final decision as to the routing of all bypass lines.

The plan may include a request to interrupt water service for a period of time up to eight (8) hours, without the use of temporary services.

Areas requiring temporary services may vary depending on the construction sequence submitted by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer/Director of Public Works.

Special attention must be given to areas that while not apparent, may require temporary services.

XVI. SERVICE LINES

A. GENERAL

The work under this section shall be the replacement of existing service lines two (2) inches or smaller in diameter and installation of new service lines both in public and private property. Services larger than 2-inch diameter are installed under the applicable CLDI pipe items.

B. SERVICE RENEWAL

Existing water services shall be replaced from the main to the back edge of the sidewalk (ROW line) by the Contractor, including corporation cocks, copper service pipe and curb stops (Open Right).

All service lines fed from the water main being replaced must be reconnected to the new water main unless otherwise directed by the Engineer. The Town specifies that all services 2-inches and smaller be copper.

Existing service pipe material may be lead, galvanized iron, cast or ductile iron, plastic or copper.

C. MATERIALS

Materials for all service lines 2-inches or less shall be in accordance with the following:

- 1. <u>Copper Tubing</u> shall be soft, annealed, seamless tubing conforming to Federal Specifications WW-T799A, Type "K".
 - a) To minimize joints, coiled tubing shall be used.
 - b) Joints in copper tubing shall be made with three part compression couplings, flared tube fittings (ASA spec. B-16), or an approved equal. All fittings shall be electrically conductive.
- 2. <u>Corporation Stops:</u>
 - a) Shall be cast bronze ball valves, conforming to the latest ASTM specification for Steam or Valve Bronze Castings, Serial Designation B62.
 - b) Shall be equal in size to the stop being replaced, with 3/4 inch being the minimum size.
 - c) For 2-inch service lines, shall be 1 1/2-inch stops fitted with a 2-inch outlet adaptor or shall be 1 1/2-inch stops with 2-inch outlets.
 - d) Shall be a ball valve with a full round smooth waterway, which operates freely. It shall meet all the requirements of AWWA C800. The valve shall be equipped with a removable tee head, which can be attached to the operating head of the valve after tapping. The tee head shall be a minimum of 1-inch in height. The valve shall open to the right.

- e) Shall be tested under a hydrostatic pressure of 250 pounds per square inch and found to be tight before leaving the factory.
- f) Shall have Standard Threads on the inlet and all other threads shall be American Standard Wrought Iron Pipe Threads.
- 3. <u>Roadway service boxes</u>,
 - a) Where required, shall have a minimum inside diameter of 4 1/4 inches, shall be coated with asphalt and shall be approved by the Town prior to installation.
- 4. <u>Curb Stops:</u>
 - a) Shall be cast bronze, conforming to the specification above for corporation stops.
 - b) Shall be equal in size to the new copper pipe, which the stop is connected to.
 - c) Shall have full, round, smoothed, reamed waterway and shall operate freely as adjusted for testing.
 - d) Shall be a ball valve conforming to AWWA 800 with a one-piece tee head and shall open to the right.
 - e) Shall be rated at 250 psi or greater.
- 5. <u>Sidewalk Boxes:</u>
 - a) Shall be slip type with 3" diameter shafts.

b) Shall be heavy weight, light gray cast iron, true to pattern, and free from flaws.

- c) Shall have length of the two sections at least 70 inches.
- d) Shall have a total weight of approximately 40 pounds.
- e) Shall have a tread plug, which may be removed to operate the stop.
- f) Shall be thoroughly coated with two coats of asphaltum varnish.
- g) Shall be level with sidewalk.

D. CONSTRUCTION METHODS

1. **GENERAL**

A. To reduce the risk of electric shocks, electric surges, damage to personal property, etc., the Contractor shall determine if an existing service line is acting as an active "ground" for a building's electrical system prior to cutting or removing an existing service. The Contractor shall be responsible for any damages incurred due to the existing service/"ground" being disrupted/removed without completing such a check.

- B. All existing service lines shall be replaced between the new main and the property line with copper pipe unless otherwise approved by the Engineer. The new service lines shall be shall be connected to the new water main using a new corporation stop, shoe, tube, and cap.
- C. All new copper service lines shall be connected to the existing service line at the property line. In the event that an area sidewalk foundation wall or other subterranean structure exists at the property line, the connection shall be made as close as possible to it and at a maximum 18 inches away from the same.
- D. All service connections shall be tested for strength and tightness before being backfilled; they shall be tested under the normal pressure in the water mains to which they are connected, and any signs of leakage or evidence of failure shall be promptly repaired by the Contractor at their own expense. The Contractor shall furnish all apparatus, material, and labor for making the tests. The water required for testing shall be furnished by the Town, without charge to the Contractor, from the Town's existing water system.
- E. The Contractor shall also be responsible for removing any sediment deposit that may accumulate and impede the full flow of water when restoring the water services.
- F. Service lines shall be chlorinated in accordance with the applicable parts of the Ductile Iron Pipe and Fittings specification section.

2. SERVICE LINES

- A. Shall be a minimum of 3/4 inch in diameter.
- B. Shall have a minimum depth of cover of 5.5 feet, or as approved by the Town.

3. CORPORATION STOPS

- A. Shall be threaded into a tap in the main at the horizontal diameter of the main.
- B. Shall have the tap made in the main by means of a tapping machine manufactured for this purpose and supplied by the Contractor. The tap and drill shall be kept sharp and shall have standard threads unless otherwise approved by the Town.
- C. Shall be screwed firmly into the water main with the key upward and the inlet end projecting at least 1/8 inch beyond the inside face of the main.
- D. Shall be left in the on (open) position.
- E. 3/4-inch and 1-inch shall be fitted with a service shoe, tube and cap.

F. 1¹/₂-inch and 1¹/₂-inch by 2-inch shall be fitted with a roadway service box.

4. CURB STOPS

- A. Shall be installed on ³/₄-inch, 1-inch, and 2-inch service lines.
- B. Shall be deleted on service lines when the main is in the sidewalk area, and all corporation stops, including ³/₄-inch and 1-inch, shall be fitted with sidewalk control boxes.
- C. Shall be set in a bed of clean gravel or approved material of equal draining qualities.

E. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

Item 6a	Furnish and Set 3/4" Corporation Cock	Each
<u>Item бb</u>	Furnish and Set 1" Corporation Cock	Each
Item 7a	Furnish and Set ¾" Curb Stop and Box	Each
Item 7b	Furnish and Set 1" Curb Stop and Box	Each
Item 8a	Furnish and Install ³ / ₄ " Copper Service Pipe and Fittings	Linear Foot
Item 8b	Furnish and Install 1" Copper Service Pipe and Fitting	Linear Foot

Furnishing and installing copper service pipe shall be measured by the linear foot along the center line of the pipe from the corporation cock key to the point of intersection with the existing service pipe. No deduction will be made for curb stops or couplings.

The unit price shall include full compensation for all labor, material (including couplings) and equipment necessary for removing and disposing of the pavement/concrete; removing and disposing of the existing service pipe and curb stop; excavating and backfilling the trench; furnishing, laying and connecting the copper tubing; resetting curbstone, repairing catch basins and drains if disturbed; replacing damaged sidewalks with the same material as was existing prior to construction; installing and maintaining both temporary and permanent trench patching; and all other service connection work except that for which a definite payment item is stated. No separate or additional compensation will be allowed for sand backfill around the service pipe or for tunneling if used. No driving shall be allowed.

Furnishing and installing corporation cocks, curb stops and boxes shall be measured by each unit complete and in place. The Engineering Division/Water and Sewer Division shall confirm each curb stop is operational prior to acceptance.

The unit price shall include full compensation for all labor, material and equipment necessary for furnishing and installing the corporation cock, curb stop and curb stop box; and all other incidental work.

XVII. BITUMINOUS CONCRETE PAVING AND CONCRETE WALKS

A. GENERAL

This section covers the restoration of roadways, sidewalks, and landscaped areas in whole or in part.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL <u>NOT</u> LEAVE EXCAVATED AREAS UNPAVED OVER WEEKENDS AND/OR HOLIDAYS UNLESS THROUGH WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER.

Except as otherwise specified herein, all work performed under this section shall conform to the Standard Specifications of the Massachusetts Highway Department, latest edition.

Cold patch may be used when hot mix is not available. This is only for the Contractor's convenience and is not considered temporary paving. Where the Contractor has used cold patch they will repave the area with acceptable temporary paving as soon as it is available. The Contractor will be required to maintain cold patched areas according to the specifications for temporary paving. There will not be payment for setting of cold patch.

All surface treatments shall be restored with like materials unless otherwise directed by the engineer.

B. CLASSIFICATION

A. Trench Repair

- 1. Trench repairs shall be required on a weekly basis before the end of the work week.
- 2. Temporary patches shall preferably be hot Class I Type 1-1 bituminous concrete but may be substituted for with cold mix if hot mix is unavailable and the substitution is authorized by the Engineer.
- 3. Prior to placement of the Trench Repair, any broken or irregular edges of existing pavements shall be cut away in straight lines as directed leaving sound vertical faces. Should an area that has been received a trench repair need to be excavated again, the patch shall be cut away in straight lines as was done for the initial pavement cut.
- 4. The patch shall be laid and compacted in two (2) courses to a minimum of four inches total of compacted thickness to a finished grade matching the existing road surface.
- 5. The contractor shall maintain patches during the course of the project and for a period of one year from substantial completion of the work, unless otherwise directed by the Engineer. Within 24 hours of notification by the Town, the Contractor shall fill with similar material any depressions and holes that may occur so as to maintain the surface in a safe and satisfactory condition.

- 6. Following completion of work, patches shall be installed so as to provide safe vehicular and pedestrian travel. The patch shall be placed so as to last for a period of one year from substantial completion of the project. The Contractor will be responsible for maintaining the patch during this period, including shimming of pavement and adjustments needed to ensure safe pedestrian and vehicular travel. The maintenance period of one year may be reduced at the discretion of the Engineer. The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining in a safe and travelable condition.
- 7. Where applicable, all conditions of the constructions methods listed in this section shall apply to patch repairs.
- B. Permanent Trench Repair
 - 1. Permanent Trench Repair will not be required under this Contract.

C. MATERIALS

A. Bituminous Concrete

Bituminous concrete pavement placed in all streets shall conform to Commonwealth of Massachusetts's standards and specifications for M3.11.00 Class I, Bituminous Concrete.

B. Tack Coat

Tack coat shall consist of emulsified asphalt, Grade RS-1, conforming to Section M.3.03.0 of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Public Works Standard Specifications for Highways and Bridges, latest edition.

C. Concrete Cement

Concrete cement placed in all walk and driveways shall conform to Commonwealth of Massachusetts's standards and specifications for M4.02.00, Concrete Cement.

D. CONSTRUCTION METHODS

1. **GENERAL**

- 1. All pavement thickness referred to in these specifications are compacted thickness. The Contractor shall place sufficient bituminous concrete mix to insure the specified thickness of pavement occurs after compaction.
- 2. All frames, grates, covers, street boxes, manhole rings and other castings within the limits of the area to be paved shall be reset, if required, immediately prior to paving.
- 3. Prior to patching an area, the trimmed edges of existing pavement shall be stable and unyielding, free of loose or broken pieces, and all edges shall be thoroughly cleaned and coated with an asphalt tack coat.

- 4. All contact surfaces of curbing, existing pavement, castings and other structures shall be coated with an asphalt tack coat.
- 5. When the air temperature falls below fifty (50) degrees F, extra precautions shall be taken in drying the aggregates, controlling the temperatures of the materials and placing and compacting the mixtures.
- 6. No mixtures shall be placed when the air temperature is below forty (40) degrees F, nor when the material on which the mixtures are to be placed contains frost or has a surface temperature not suitable to the Inspector.
- 7. Each layer of bituminous concrete paving material shall be thoroughly compacted with a roller weighing a minimum of two hundred and eighty-five (285) pounds per inch of width.
- 8. Along curbing, structures, and all places not accessible to the roller, the mixture shall be thoroughly compacted by tampers. Such tampers shall not weigh less than twenty-five (25) pounds and shall have a tamping face of not more than fifty (50) square inches.
- 9. No vehicular traffic loads shall be permitted on the newly paved area until adequate stability has been attained and the material has cooled sufficiently to prevent distortion or loss of fines.
- 10. Any disturbed area, Public or Private, shall be restored with Loam and Seed to the Engineer's satisfaction. If substantial completion is completed in the Fall, loam and seed should be provided the following spring.
- 11. Any disturbed walk or driveway, Public or Private, shall be restored to the Engineer's satisfaction.

2. MAINTENANCE PERIOD OF ROADWAY SURFACE

The Contractor shall be responsible to maintain trenches and patching at their expense for a period of one year after the backfilling and patching of the trench and shall promptly refill and repair areas, which have settled or are otherwise unsatisfactory for pedestrian and vehicular traffic.

The Contractor shall be responsible and indemnify and hold the Town harmless for any damages sustained to persons or property as a result of any accident that may occur on account of the defective condition of the street or sidewalk surface.

Final payment or acceptance by the Town of the completed contract shall have no effect on the Contractor's obligation as indicated in the above paragraphs.

3. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

No separate measurement and payment will be made for work required under this Section. All costs in connection therein shall be considered incidental to the item(s) of work to which they pertain. Further, the Contractor shall be liable for all costs associated with additional patching required due to trenches that are larger than the recommended size.

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Town of Arlington's email system. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the REAL sender (whose email address in the From: line in "< >" brackets) and you know the content is safe.

To view and print Weekly Payroll & Statement of Compliance Forms, click on www.mass.gov/dols/pw.

PLEASE NOTE: The attached Prevailing Wage Schedule is valid for 90 days. An Awarding Authority should re-request an up to date Prevailing Wage Schedule if it has NOT opened bids or selected a contractor within 90 days of the issuance date of the attached prevailing wage schedule.

*For MULTI-YEAR projects bid on or after 8/8/08, Awarding Authorities must request an Annual Update to this Prevailing Wage Schedule each year for the duration of the project, no later than two weeks before the anniversary date of the execution of the general contract. Annual updates are not required for projects that last LESS THAN ONE YEAR.

*For CM AT RISK projects (bid pursuant to GL c.149A), Awarding Authorities must request a Prevailing Wage Schedule NOT sooner than 90-days before the earlier of: (a) the execution date of the GMP Amendment, or (b) the bid for the first construction scope of work.

*For MULTI-YEAR CM AT RISK projects, Awarding Authorities must request an Annual Update to this Prevailing Wage Schedule each year for the duration of the project, no later than two weeks before the anniversary date, which is the earlier of: (a)the execution date of the GMP Amendment, or (b) the execution date of the first amendment to procure construction scopes of work.

Apprentice wages (expressed as dollar figures) and the required benefits are listed on the Prevailing Wage Schedule. For further details, please see opinion letter PW-2010-03-03.16.10 (dated March 18, 2010) at www.mass.gov/dols/pw.

Request Prevailing Wage Rates online at: www.mass.gov/dols/pw.

THIS IS A SYSTEM-GENERATED EMAIL. PLEASE DO NOT REPLY TO THIS EMAIL. TO CONTACT DLS REGARDING PREVAILING WAGE MATTERS, CALL 617-626-6953.

APPROVAL/DENIAL COMMENTS



CHARLES D. BAKER Governor

KARYN E. POLITO Lt. Governor

THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT OF LABOR STANDARDS

Prevailing Wage Rates

As determined by the Director under the provisions of the Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 149, Sections 26 to 27H ROSALIN ACOSTA Secretary MICHAEL FLANAGAN Director

Awarding Authority:	Town of Arlington		
Contract Number:	20-38	City/Town:	ARLINGTON
Description of Work:	Water Distribution System Improvements as per specifications and	l requirements	

Job Location: Various Locations

Information about Prevailing Wage Schedules for Awarding Authorities and Contractors

• This wage schedule applies only to the specific project referenced at the top of this page and uniquely identified by the "Wage Request Number" on all pages of this schedule.

• An Awarding Authority must request an updated wage schedule from the Department of Labor Standards ("DLS") if it has not opened bids or selected a contractor within 90 days of the date of issuance of the wage schedule. For CM AT RISK projects (bid pursuant to G.L. c.149A), the earlier of: (a) the execution date of the GMP Amendment, or (b) the bid for the first construction scope of work must be within 90-days of the wage schedule issuance date.

• The wage schedule shall be incorporated in any advertisement or call for bids for the project as required by M.G.L. c. 149, § 27. The wage schedule shall be made a part of the contract awarded for the project. The wage schedule must be posted in a conspicuous place at the work site for the life of the project in accordance with M.G.L. c. 149 § 27. The wages listed on the wage schedule must be paid to employees performing construction work on the project whether they are employed by the prime contractor, a filed sub-bidder, or any sub-contractor.

• All apprentices working on the project are required to be registered with the Massachusetts Department of Labor Standards, Division of Apprentice Standards (DLS/DAS). Apprentice must keep his/her apprentice identification card on his/her person during all work hours on the project. An apprentice registered with DAS may be paid the lower apprentice wage rate at the applicable step as provided on the prevailing wage schedule. Any apprentice not registered with DLS/DAS regardless of whether or not they are registered with any other federal, state, local, or private agency must be paid the journeyworker's rate for the trade.

• The wage rates will remain in effect for the duration of the project, except in the case of multi-year public construction projects. For construction projects lasting longer than one year, awarding authorities must request an updated wage schedule. Awarding authorities are required to request these updates no later than two weeks before the anniversary of the date the contract was executed by the awarding authority and the general contractor. For multi-year CM AT RISK projects, awarding authority must request an annual update no later than two weeks before the anniversary date, determined as the earlier of: (a) the execution date of the GMP Amendment, or (b) the execution date of the first amendment to permit procurement of construction services. Contractors are required to obtain the wage schedules from awarding authorities, and to pay no less than these rates to covered workers. The annual update requirement is not applicable to 27F "rental of equipment" contracts.

• Every contractor or subcontractor which performs construction work on the project is required to submit weekly payroll reports and a Statement of Compliance directly to the awarding authority by mail or email and keep them on file for three years. Each weekly payroll report must contain: the employee's name, address, occupational classification, hours worked, and wages paid. Do not submit weekly payroll reports to DLS. A sample of a payroll reporting form may be obtained at http://www.mass.gov/dols/pw.

• Contractors with questions about the wage rates or classifications included on the wage schedule have an affirmative obligation to inquire with DLS at (617) 626-6953.

• Employees not receiving the prevailing wage rate set forth on the wage schedule may report the violation to the Fair Labor Division of the office of the Attorney General at (617) 727-3465.

• Failure of a contractor or subcontractor to pay the prevailing wage rates listed on the wage schedule to all employees who perform construction work on the project is a violation of the law and subjects the contractor or subcontractor to civil and criminal penalties.

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
Construction						
(2 AXLE) DRIVER - EQUIPMENT TEAMSTERS JOINT COUNCIL NO. 10 ZONE A	08/01/2020	\$36.25	\$12.91	\$13.72	\$0.00	\$62.88
	12/01/2020	\$36.25	\$12.91	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$63.98
	06/01/2021	\$37.05	\$12.91	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$64.78
	08/01/2021	\$37.05	\$13.41	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$65.28
	12/01/2021	\$37.05	\$13.41	\$16.01	\$0.00	\$66.47
(3 AXLE) DRIVER - EQUIPMENT TEAMSTERS JOINT COUNCIL NO. 10 ZONE A	08/01/2020	\$36.32	\$12.91	\$13.72	\$0.00	\$62.95
	12/01/2020	\$36.32	\$12.91	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$64.05
	06/01/2021	\$37.12	\$12.91	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$64.85
	08/01/2021	\$37.12	\$13.41	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$65.35
	12/01/2021	\$37.12	\$13.41	\$16.01	\$0.00	\$66.54
4 & 5 AXLE) DRIVER - EQUIPMENT TEAMSTERS JOINT COUNCIL NO. 10 ZONE A	08/01/2020	\$36.44	\$12.91	\$13.72	\$0.00	\$63.07
	12/01/2020	\$36.44	\$12.91	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$64.17
	06/01/2021	\$37.24	\$12.91	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$64.97
	08/01/2021	\$37.24	\$13.41	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$65.47
	12/01/2021	\$37.24	\$13.41	\$16.01	\$0.00	\$66.66
ADS/SUBMERSIBLE PILOT PILE DRIVER LOCAL 56 (ZONE 1)	08/01/2019	\$102.78	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$133.83
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PILE DRIVER" AIR TRACK OPERATOR		*** * * *	* ~ ~ ~	¢17.00	#0.00	
AIR TRACK OPERATOR LABORERS - ZONE 1	06/01/2020	\$39.90	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.59
	12/01/2020	\$40.88	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.57
	06/01/2021	\$41.90	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.59
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2021	\$42.91	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.60
ASBESTOS REMOVER - PIPE / MECH. EQUIPT.	06/01/2020	\$38.00	\$12.50	\$8.85	\$0.00	\$59.35
HEAT & FROST INSULATORS LOCAL 6 (BOSTON)	12/01/2020	\$38.00	\$12.50	\$8.85	\$0.00	\$60.35
ASPHALT RAKER	06/01/2020			\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.09
LABORERS - ZONE 1		\$39.40 \$40.28	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00 \$0.00	
	12/01/2020	\$40.38	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$66.07
	06/01/2021	\$41.40 \$42.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$67.09
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2021	\$42.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.10
ASPHALT/CONCRETE/CRUSHER PLANT-ON SITE	06/01/2020	\$49.33	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.03
DPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	12/01/2020	\$50.48	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.18
	06/01/2021	\$51.58	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.28
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2021	\$52.73	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$81.43
BACKHOE/FRONT-END LOADER	06/01/2020	\$49.33	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.03
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	12/01/2020	\$ 4 9.33 \$50.48	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.05
	06/01/2021	\$51.58	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.28
	12/01/2021	\$52.73	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$81.43
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2021	ψυ2.15	ψ15.00	ψ1 <i>3</i> .70	<i>\\</i> 0.00	ψ01.ΤJ
BARCO-TYPE JUMPING TAMPER	06/01/2020	\$39.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.09
LABORERS - ZONE I	12/01/2020	\$40.38	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.07
	06/01/2021	\$41.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.09
	12/01/2021	\$42.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.10
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"			-			-

Issue Date: 08/27/2020

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
BLOCK PAVER, RAMMER / CURB SETTER	06/01/2020	\$39.90	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.59
LABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2020	\$40.88	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.57
	06/01/2021	\$41.90	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.59
	12/01/2021	\$42.91	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.60
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
BOILER MAKER BOILERMAKERS LOCAL 29	01/01/2020	\$46.10	\$7.07	\$17.98	\$0.00	\$71.15

Effec Step	tive Date - 01/01/2020 percent	Apprentice Base Wag	e Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Tota	l Rate
$\frac{\operatorname{step}}{1}$	65	\$29.97	\$7.07	\$11.69	\$0.00		48.73
2	65	\$29.97	\$7.07 \$7.07	\$11.69	\$0.00		48.73
3	70	\$32.27	\$7.07 \$7.07	\$12.59	\$0.00		51.93
4	75	\$34.58	\$7.07	\$13.49	\$0.00		55.14
5	80	\$36.88	\$7.07	\$14.38	\$0.00		58.33
6	85	\$39.19	\$7.07	\$15.29	\$0.00		61.55
7	90	\$41.49	\$7.07	\$16.18	\$0.00	\$	64.74
8	95	\$43.80	\$7.07	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$	67.96
Notes	<u> </u>						
							Ì
Appr	rentice to Journeyworker	Ratio:1:4					
	FICIAL MASONRY (INC	CL. MASONRY 08/01/20	20 \$55.7	5 \$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$88.59
TERPROOFING) CKLAYERS LOCAL 3 (B	BOSTON)	02/01/20	21 \$56.3	9 \$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$89.23
		08/01/20	21 \$57.7	9 \$10.75	\$22.25	\$0.00	\$90.79
		02/01/20	22 \$58.3	8 \$10.75	\$22.25	\$0.00	\$91.38

	Effecti	ve Date -	08/01/2020				Supplemental		
	Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	;
	1	50		\$27.88	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$60.72	, ,
	2	60		\$33.45	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$66.29	1
	3	70		\$39.03	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$71.87	
	4	80		\$44.60	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$77.44	
	5	90		\$50.18	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$83.02	
	Effecti	ve Date -	02/01/2021				Supplemental		
	Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	;
	1	50		\$28.20	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$61.04	
	2	60		\$33.83	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$66.67	i.
	3	70		\$39.47	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$72.31	
	4	80		\$45.11	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$77.95	I
	5	90		\$50.75	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$83.59	l.
	Notes:	· ·							
	i								
	Appre	ntice to Jo	urneyworker Ratio:1:5						
ULLDOZER/			ER	06/01/2020	9 \$48.81	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$77.51
I EKAIINO ENOI	INEERS LC	JCAL 4		12/01/2020	\$49.95	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.65
				06/01/2021	\$51.04	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.74
For apprentice	e rates see "	Apprentice- (OPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/202	\$52.18	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.88
			OTTOM MAN	06/01/2020) \$40.30	\$8.60	\$17.24	\$0.00	\$66.14
ABORERS - FOU	NDATION	AND MARIN	Ε	12/01/2020			\$17.24	\$0.00	\$67.12
				06/01/2021			\$17.24	\$0.00	\$68.14
				12/01/2021			\$17.24	\$0.00	\$69.15
For apprentice				0.01/202	e20.15	¢0	\$17.24	\$0.00	
ABORERS - FOU				06/01/2020			\$17.24 \$17.24	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$64.99
				12/01/2020			\$17.24 \$17.24	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$65.97 \$66.99
				06/01/2021 12/01/2021			\$17.24	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$68.00
For apprentice	e rates see "	Apprentice- I	ABORER"	12/01/202	\$42.16	\$8.60	\$17.2 4	\$0.00	\$08.00
AISSON & U				06/01/2020	\$39.15	\$8.60	\$17.24	\$0.00	\$64.99
ABORERS - FOU	NDATION	AND MARINI	Ε	12/01/2020			\$17.24	\$0.00	\$65.97
				06/01/202			\$17.24	\$0.00	\$66.99
				12/01/202	\$42.16	\$8.60	\$17.24	\$0.00	\$68.00
For apprentice	e rates see "	Apprentice- I	ABORER"						
ARBIDE CON		LL OPERA	TOR	06/01/2020	\$39.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.09
4BORERS - ZONE	C I			12/01/2020	\$40.38	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.07
				06/01/2021	\$41.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.09

Apprentice -	BRICK/PLASTER/CEMENT MASON - Local 3 Boston
Eff	08/01/2020

Issue Date: 08/27/2020

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
CARPENTER	03/01/2020	\$42.50	\$9.40	\$18.95	\$0.00	\$70.85
CARPENTERS -ZONE 2 (Eastern Massachusetts)	09/01/2020	\$43.15	\$9.40	\$18.95	\$0.00	\$71.50
	03/01/2021	\$43.75	\$9.40	\$18.95	\$0.00	\$72.10
	09/01/2021	\$44.40	\$9.40	\$18.95	\$0.00	\$72.75
	03/01/2022	\$45.00	\$9.40	\$18.95	\$0.00	\$73.35
	09/01/2022	\$45.65	\$9.40	\$18.95	\$0.00	\$74.00
	03/01/2023	\$46.25	\$9.40	\$18.95	\$0.00	\$74.60

Apprentice - CARPENTER - Zone 2 Eastern MA

Effect	ive Date - 03/01/2020				Supplemental	
Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	50	\$21.25	\$9.40	\$1.73	\$0.00	\$32.38
2	60	\$25.50	\$9.40	\$1.73	\$0.00	\$36.63
3	70	\$29.75	\$9.40	\$13.76	\$0.00	\$52.91
4	75	\$31.88	\$9.40	\$13.76	\$0.00	\$55.04
5	80	\$34.00	\$9.40	\$15.49	\$0.00	\$58.89
6	80	\$34.00	\$9.40	\$15.49	\$0.00	\$58.89
7	90	\$38.25	\$9.40	\$17.22	\$0.00	\$64.87
8	90	\$38.25	\$9.40	\$17.22	\$0.00	\$64.87

Effective Date - 09/01/2020

Effective I	Date - 09/01/2020				Supplemental		
Step pe	rcent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1 50	0	\$21.58	\$9.40	\$1.73	\$0.00	\$32.71	
2 60	0	\$25.89	\$9.40	\$1.73	\$0.00	\$37.02	
3 70	0	\$30.21	\$9.40	\$13.76	\$0.00	\$53.37	
4 75	5	\$32.36	\$9.40	\$13.76	\$0.00	\$55.52	
5 80	0	\$34.52	\$9.40	\$15.49	\$0.00	\$59.41	
6 80	0	\$34.52	\$9.40	\$15.49	\$0.00	\$59.41	
7 90	0	\$38.84	\$9.40	\$17.22	\$0.00	\$65.46	
8 90	0	\$38.84	\$9.40	\$17.22	\$0.00	\$65.46	
Notes:							
	Indentured After 10/1/17; 45/45/5 ep 1&2 \$30.26/ 3&4 \$36.18/ 5&6						
Apprentic	e to Journeyworker Ratio:1:5						
CARPENTER WOOD FRA		04/01/2020	\$22.66	\$7.21	\$4.80	\$0.00	\$34.67
CARPENTERS-ZONE 3 (Wood Fra	ume)	04/01/2021	\$23.16	\$7.21	\$4.80	\$0.00	\$35.17
		04/01/2022	\$23.66	\$7.21	\$4.80	\$0.00	\$35.67
		04/01/2023	\$24.16	\$7.21	\$4.80	\$0.00	\$36.17

All Aspects of New Wood Frame Work

Effectiv	ve Date -	04/01/2020				Supplemental	
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	60		\$13.60	\$7.21	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$20.81
2	60		\$13.60	\$7.21	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$20.81
3	65		\$14.73	\$7.21	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$21.94
4	70		\$15.86	\$7.21	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$23.07
5	75		\$17.00	\$7.21	\$3.80	\$0.00	\$28.01
6	80		\$18.13	\$7.21	\$3.80	\$0.00	\$29.14
7	85		\$19.26	\$7.21	\$3.80	\$0.00	\$30.27
8	90		\$20.39	\$7.21	\$3.80	\$0.00	\$31.40

Apprentice - CARPENTER (Wood Frame) - Zone 3

Effective Date - 04/01/2021

Effect Step	ive Date - 04/01/2 percent	021 Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	60	\$13.90	\$7.21	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$21.11	
2	60	\$13.90	\$7.21	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$21.11	
3	65	\$15.05	\$7.21	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$22.26	
4	70	\$16.21	\$7.21	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$23.42	
5	75	\$17.37	\$7.21	\$3.80	\$0.00	\$28.38	
6	80	\$18.53	\$7.21	\$3.80	\$0.00	\$29.54	
7	85	\$19.69	\$7.21	\$3.80	\$0.00	\$30.70	
8	90	\$20.84	\$7.21	\$3.80	\$0.00	\$31.85	
Notes							
	% Indentured After	10/1/17; 45/45/55/55/70/70/80/80					
	Step 1&2 \$17.41/	3&4 \$19.67/ 5&6 \$26.87/ 7&8 \$29.14					
Appre	entice to Journeywo	ker Ratio:1:5					
EMENT MASONRY		01/01/2020	\$49.0	\$12.75	\$22.41	\$0.62	\$84.85

Apprentice - CEMENT MASONRY/PLASTERING - Eastern Mass (Boston) ative Dat 01/01/2020 Tree

Enecu	ve Date -	01/01/2020				Supplemental	
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	50		\$24.54	\$12.75	\$15.41	\$0.00	\$52.70
2	60		\$29.44	\$12.75	\$17.41	\$0.62	\$60.22
3	65		\$31.90	\$12.75	\$18.41	\$0.62	\$63.68
4	70		\$34.35	\$12.75	\$19.41	\$0.62	\$67.13
5	75		\$36.80	\$12.75	\$20.41	\$0.62	\$70.58
6	80		\$39.26	\$12.75	\$21.41	\$0.62	\$74.04
7	90		\$44.16	\$12.75	\$22.41	\$0.62	\$79.94

Notes:

Steps 3,4 are 500 hrs. All other steps are 1,000 hrs.

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
CHAIN SAW OPERATOR	06/01/2020	\$39.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.09
LABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2020	\$40.38	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.07
	06/01/2021	\$41.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.09
	12/01/2021	\$42.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.10
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
CLAM SHELLS/SLURRY BUCKETS/HEADING MACHINES	06/01/2020	\$50.33	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.03
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	12/01/2020	\$51.48	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.18
	06/01/2021	\$52.58	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$81.28
	12/01/2021	\$53.73	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$82.43
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
COMPRESSOR OPERATOR	06/01/2020	\$32.72	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$61.42
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	12/01/2020	\$33.50	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$62.20
	06/01/2021	\$34.25	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$62.95
	12/01/2021	\$35.04	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$63.74
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
DELEADER (BRIDGE)	07/01/2020	\$51.51	\$8.25	\$22.40	\$0.00	\$82.16
PAINTERS LOCAL 35 - ZONE 2	01/01/2021	\$52.06	\$8.25	\$22.75	\$0.00	\$83.06

Apprentice - PAINTER Local 35 - BRIDGES/TANKS

Effect	ive Date -	07/01/2020				Supplemental		
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	50		\$25.76	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$34.01	
2	55		\$28.33	\$8.25	\$6.05	\$0.00	\$42.63	
3	60		\$30.91	\$8.25	\$6.60	\$0.00	\$45.76	
4	65		\$33.48	\$8.25	\$7.15	\$0.00	\$48.88	
5	70		\$36.06	\$8.25	\$19.10	\$0.00	\$63.41	
6	75		\$38.63	\$8.25	\$19.65	\$0.00	\$66.53	
7	80		\$41.21	\$8.25	\$20.20	\$0.00	\$69.66	
8	90		\$46.36	\$8.25	\$21.30	\$0.00	\$75.91	

Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
1	50	\$26.03	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$34.28
2	55	\$28.63	\$8.25	\$6.16	\$0.00	\$43.04
3	60	\$31.24	\$8.25	\$6.72	\$0.00	\$46.21
4	65	\$33.84	\$8.25	\$7.28	\$0.00	\$49.37
5	70	\$36.44	\$8.25	\$19.39	\$0.00	\$64.08
6	75	\$39.05	\$8.25	\$19.95	\$0.00	\$67.25
7	80	\$41.65	\$8.25	\$20.51	\$0.00	\$70.41
8	90	\$46.85	\$8.25	\$21.63	\$0.00	\$76.73
lotes	Steps are 750 hrs.					

Apprentice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:1

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
DEMO: ADZEMAN ABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2019	\$39.30	\$8.10	\$16.60	\$0.00	\$64.00
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
DEMO: BACKHOE/LOADER/HAMMER OPERATOR .Aborers - Zone 1	12/01/2019	\$40.30	\$8.10	\$16.60	\$0.00	\$65.00
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
DEMO: BURNERS ABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2019	\$40.05	\$8.10	\$16.60	\$0.00	\$64.75
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
DEMO: CONCRETE CUTTER/SAWYER Aborers - Zone 1	12/01/2019	\$40.30	\$8.10	\$16.60	\$0.00	\$65.00
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
DEMO: JACKHAMMER OPERATOR Aborers - Zone 1	12/01/2019	\$40.05	\$8.10	\$16.60	\$0.00	\$64.75
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
DEMO: WRECKING LABORER .Aborers - Zone 1	12/01/2019	\$39.30	\$8.10	\$16.60	\$0.00	\$64.00
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
DIRECTIONAL DRILL MACHINE OPERATOR	06/01/2020	\$48.81	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$77.51
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	12/01/2020	\$49.95	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.65
	06/01/2021	\$51.04	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.74
	12/01/2021	\$52.18	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.88
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
DIVER PILE DRIVER LOCAL 56 (ZONE 1)	08/01/2019	\$68.52	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$99.57
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PILE DRIVER"						
DIVER TENDER Pile DRIVER LOCAL 56 (ZONE 1)	08/01/2019	\$48.94	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$79.99
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PILE DRIVER"						
DIVER TENDER (EFFLUENT) PILE DRIVER LOCAL 56 (ZONE 1)	08/01/2019	\$73.41	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$104.46
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PILE DRIVER"						
DIVER/SLURRY (EFFLUENT) PILE DRIVER LOCAL 56 (ZONE 1)	08/01/2019	\$102.78	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$133.83
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PILE DRIVER"						
DRAWBRIDGE OPERATOR (Construction) DRAWBRIDGE - SEIU LOCAL 888	07/01/2020	\$26.77	\$6.67	\$3.93	\$0.16	\$37.53
ELECTRICIAN	03/01/2020	\$53.50	\$13.00	\$19.20	\$0.00	\$85.70
LECTRICIANS LOCAL 103	09/01/2020	\$54.45	\$13.00	\$19.73	\$0.00	\$87.18
	03/01/2020	\$55.41	\$13.00	\$20.01	\$0.00	\$88.42
	09/01/2021	\$56.84	\$13.00	\$20.06	\$0.00	\$89.90
	03/01/2022	\$58.04	\$13.00	\$20.09	\$0.00	\$91.13
	00.01/2022	QC 010 1	\$10.00		<i>-</i>	471110
	09/01/2022	\$59.48	\$13.00	\$20.13	\$0.00	\$92.61

\$20.21

\$16.03

\$65.62

\$0.00

Effect	ive Date -	03/01/2020				Supplemental	
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	40		\$21.40	\$13.00	\$0.64	\$0.00	\$35.04
2	40		\$21.40	\$13.00	\$0.64	\$0.00	\$35.04
3	45		\$24.08	\$13.00	\$14.62	\$0.00	\$51.70
4	45		\$24.08	\$13.00	\$14.62	\$0.00	\$51.70
5	50		\$26.75	\$13.00	\$15.04	\$0.00	\$54.79
6	55		\$29.43	\$13.00	\$15.46	\$0.00	\$57.89
7	60		\$32.10	\$13.00	\$15.87	\$0.00	\$60.97
8	65		\$34.78	\$13.00	\$16.29	\$0.00	\$64.07
9	70		\$37.45	\$13.00	\$16.70	\$0.00	\$67.15
10	75		\$40.13	\$13.00	\$17.12	\$0.00	\$70.25

Apprentice - ELECTRICIAN - Local 103

Effective Date - 09	9/01/2020
---------------------	-----------

Effecti	ve Date - 09/01/2020				Supplemental		
Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	40	\$21.78	\$13.00	\$0.65	\$0.00	\$35.43	
2	40	\$21.78	\$13.00	\$0.65	\$0.00	\$35.43	
3	45	\$24.50	\$13.00	\$14.87	\$0.00	\$52.37	
4	45	\$24.50	\$13.00	\$14.87	\$0.00	\$52.37	
5	50	\$27.23	\$13.00	\$15.31	\$0.00	\$55.54	
6	55	\$29.95	\$13.00	\$15.75	\$0.00	\$58.70	
7	60	\$32.67	\$13.00	\$16.19	\$0.00	\$61.86	
8	65	\$35.39	\$13.00	\$16.63	\$0.00	\$65.02	
9	70	\$38.12	\$13.00	\$17.07	\$0.00	\$68.19	
10	75	\$40.84	\$13.00	\$17.53	\$0.00	\$71.37	
Notes:							
	App Prior 1/1/03; 30/35/40	/45/50/55/65/70/75/80				ĺ	
Apprei	ntice to Journeyworker Ra	tio:2:3***					
EVATOR CONSTRU		01/01/2020	\$61.42	\$15.73	\$18.41	\$0.00	\$95.56
EVATOR CONSTRUCTORS	SLOCAL 4	01/01/2021	\$63.47	\$15.88	\$19.31	\$0.00	\$98.66

01/01/2022

\$101.86

E	ffective	Date -	01/01/2020				Supplemental		
S	tep j	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	1	50		\$30.71	\$15.73	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$46.44	
2	2	55		\$33.78	\$15.73	\$18.41	\$0.00	\$67.92	
3	3	65		\$39.92	\$15.73	\$18.41	\$0.00	\$74.06	
2	1	70		\$42.99	\$15.73	\$18.41	\$0.00	\$77.13	
4	5	80		\$49.14	\$15.73	\$18.41	\$0.00	\$83.28	
E	ffective	Date -	01/01/2021				Supplemental		
S	tep j	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	1	50		\$31.74	\$15.88	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$47.62	
2	2	55		\$34.91	\$15.88	\$19.31	\$0.00	\$70.10	
3	3	65		\$41.26	\$15.88	\$19.31	\$0.00	\$76.45	
2	1	70		\$44.43	\$15.88	\$19.31	\$0.00	\$79.62	
4	5	80		\$50.78	\$15.88	\$19.31	\$0.00	\$85.97	
N	Notes:	Steps 1-2	are 6 mos.; Steps 3-5 are 1						
A		ice to Joi	urneyworker Ratio:1:1						
ELEVATOR CON			•	01/01/2020) \$42.99	\$15.73	\$18.41	\$0.00	\$77.13
LEVATOR CONSTRU				01/01/202			\$19.31	\$0.00	\$79.62
				01/01/2022			\$20.21	\$0.00	\$79.02
For apprentice rat	es see "Ap	prentice - I	ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR"	01/01/2022	φ-υ.γυ	\$10.05	ψ 20.2 1	\$0.00	ψ02.1 <i>1</i>
ENCE & GUAR	D RAIL	ERECT	OR	06/01/2020) \$39.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.09
ABORERS - ZONE 1				12/01/2020	\$40.38	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.07
				06/01/202	\$41.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.09
For apprentice rate	as saa "Ar	nrantica I	ABODED"	12/01/202	\$42.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.10
TIELD ENG.INST	r.perso	- ON-BLD	G,SITE,HVY/HWY	05/01/2020) \$44.73	\$12.50	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$72.93
PERATING ENGINE	ERS LOC	AL 4		11/01/2020	\$45.73	\$12.50	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$73.93
				05/01/202	\$46.88	\$12.50	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$75.08
				11/01/202	\$47.88	\$12.50	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$76.08
For apprentice rat	ac caa "Ar	nrantica C	PERATING ENGINEERS"	05/01/2022	2 \$49.03	\$12.50	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$77.23
		-	G,SITE,HVY/HWY	05/01/2020) \$46.23	\$12.50	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$74.43
PERATING ENGINE			,,	11/01/2020			\$15.70 \$15.70	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$74.43 \$75.44
				05/01/202			\$15.70 \$15.70	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$75.44 \$76.60
							\$15.70 \$15.70	\$0.00 \$0.00	
				11/01/2021			\$15.70 \$15.70	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$77.61 \$78.77
For apprentice rate	es see "Ar	prentice- C	PERATING ENGINEERS"	05/01/2022	2 \$50.57	\$12.50	\$13.70	Φ 0.00	\$78.77

Apprentice - ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR - Local 4

Issue Date: 08/27/2020

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
FIELD ENG.ROD PERSON-BLDG,SITE,HVY/HWY	05/01/2020	\$22.64	\$12.50	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$50.84
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	11/01/2020	\$23.23	\$12.50	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$51.43
	05/01/2021	\$23.91	\$12.50	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$52.11
	11/01/2021	\$24.51	\$12.50	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$52.71
	05/01/2022	\$25.18	\$12.50	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$53.38
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
FIRE ALARM INSTALLER ELECTRICIANS LOCAL 103	03/01/2020	\$53.50	\$13.00	\$19.20	\$0.00	\$85.70
ELECTRICATING ECCIE 105	09/01/2020	\$54.45	\$13.00	\$19.73	\$0.00	\$87.18
	03/01/2021	\$55.41	\$13.00	\$20.01	\$0.00	\$88.42
	09/01/2021	\$56.84	\$13.00	\$20.06	\$0.00	\$89.90
	03/01/2022	\$58.04	\$13.00	\$20.09	\$0.00	\$91.13
	09/01/2022	\$59.48	\$13.00	\$20.13	\$0.00	\$92.61
	03/01/2023	\$60.67	\$13.00	\$20.17	\$0.00	\$93.84
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- ELECTRICIAN"						
FIRE ALARM REPAIR / MAINTENANCE / COMMISSIONING <i>electricians</i>	03/01/2020	\$40.13	\$13.00	\$17.12	\$0.00	\$70.25
LOCAL 103	09/01/2020	\$40.84	\$13.00	\$17.53	\$0.00	\$71.37
	03/01/2021	\$42.11	\$13.00	\$17.88	\$0.00	\$72.99
	09/01/2021	\$43.77	\$13.00	\$18.00	\$0.00	\$74.77
	03/01/2022	\$45.27	\$13.00	\$18.12	\$0.00	\$76.39
	09/01/2022	\$46.99	\$13.00	\$18.24	\$0.00	\$78.23
	03/01/2023	\$48.54	\$13.00	\$18.37	\$0.00	\$79.91
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- TELECOMMUNICATIONS TECHNICIAN"						
FIREMAN (ASST. ENGINEER) OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	06/01/2020	\$40.30	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$69.00
	12/01/2020	\$41.25	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$69.95
	06/01/2021	\$42.16	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$70.86
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2021	\$43.11	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$71.81
FLAGGER & SIGNALER	0.6/01/2020	****	* 0.60	¢17.00	¢0.00	¢ 40.10
LABORERS - ZONE 1	06/01/2020	\$23.50	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$49.19
	12/01/2020	\$24.50	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$50.19
	06/01/2021	\$24.50	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$50.19
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2021	\$24.50	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$50.19
FLOORCOVERER	03/01/2020	\$47.05	\$9.40	\$19.25	\$0.00	\$75.70
FLOORCOVERERS LOCAL 2168 ZONE I	09/01/2020	\$47.85	\$9.40 \$9.40	\$19.25	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$75.70
	03/01/2020	\$47.85 \$48.65	\$9.40 \$9.40	\$19.25	\$0.00	\$70.30 \$77.30
	09/01/2021	\$49.45	\$9.40 \$9.40	\$19.25	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$77.30
	03/01/2021			\$19.25	\$0.00	\$78.10 \$78.90
	03/01/2022	\$50.25	\$9.40	\$19.2J	\$0.00	\$10.90

Effect	ive Date -	03/01/2020				Supplemental	
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	50		\$23.53	\$9.40	\$1.79	\$0.00	\$34.72
2	55		\$25.88	\$9.40	\$1.79	\$0.00	\$37.07
3	60		\$28.23	\$9.40	\$13.88	\$0.00	\$51.51
4	65		\$30.58	\$9.40	\$13.88	\$0.00	\$53.86
5	70		\$32.94	\$9.40	\$15.67	\$0.00	\$58.01
6	75		\$35.29	\$9.40	\$15.67	\$0.00	\$60.36
7	80		\$37.64	\$9.40	\$17.46	\$0.00	\$64.50
8	85		\$39.99	\$9.40	\$17.46	\$0.00	\$66.85

Apprentice - FLOORCOVERER - Local 2168 Zone I

09/01/2020 Effective Date -

F	ffectiv	ve Date -	09/01/2020				Supplemental		
S	step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rat	e
1	1	50		\$23.93	\$9.40	\$1.79	\$0.00	\$35.1	2
4	2	55		\$26.32	\$9.40	\$1.79	\$0.00	\$37.5	1
2	3	60		\$28.71	\$9.40	\$13.88	\$0.00	\$51.9	9
2	4	65		\$31.10	\$9.40	\$13.88	\$0.00	\$54.3	8
4	5	70		\$33.50	\$9.40	\$15.67	\$0.00	\$58.5	7
(5	75		\$35.89	\$9.40	\$15.67	\$0.00	\$60.9	6
	7	80		\$38.28	\$9.40	\$17.46	\$0.00	\$65.1	4
8	8	85		\$40.67	\$9.40	\$17.46	\$0.00	\$67.5	3
FORK LIFT/CHE OPERATING ENGINE				06/01/2020			\$15.70 \$15.70	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$78.03
				12/01/2020 06/01/2021			\$15.70	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$79.18 \$80.28
				12/01/2021			\$15.70	\$0.00	\$81.43
For apprentice rat	es see "A	Apprentice- OF	ERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2021	ψυ2.1υ	\$15.00	φ12.70	\$0.00	ψ01.45
GENERATOR/LI			/HEATERS	06/01/2020	\$32.72	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$61.42
OPERATING ENGINE	ERS LO	OCAL 4		12/01/2020	\$33.50	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$62.20
				06/01/2021	\$34.25	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$62.95
				12/01/2021	\$35.04	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$63.74
			ERATING ENGINEERS"						
GLAZIER (GLAS SYSTEMS)	5 PL/	ANK/AIK B	ARRIER/INTERIOR	07/01/2020			\$22.40	\$0.00	\$71.66
GLAZIERS LOCAL 35	(ZONE	2)		01/01/2021	\$41.56	\$8.25	\$22.75	\$0.00	\$72.56

Effect	ive Date -	07/01/2020				Supplemental	
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	50		\$20.51	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$28.76
2	55		\$22.56	\$8.25	\$6.05	\$0.00	\$36.86
3	60		\$24.61	\$8.25	\$6.60	\$0.00	\$39.46
4	65		\$26.66	\$8.25	\$7.15	\$0.00	\$42.06
5	70		\$28.71	\$8.25	\$19.10	\$0.00	\$56.06
6	75		\$30.76	\$8.25	\$19.65	\$0.00	\$58.66
7	80		\$32.81	\$8.25	\$20.20	\$0.00	\$61.26
8	90		\$36.91	\$8.25	\$21.30	\$0.00	\$66.46

Apprentice - GLAZIER - Local 35 Zone 2

Effecti	ive Date - 01/01/2021				Supplemental		
Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	50	\$20.78	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$29.03	
2	55	\$22.86	\$8.25	\$6.16	\$0.00	\$37.27	
3	60	\$24.94	\$8.25	\$6.72	\$0.00	\$39.91	
4	65	\$27.01	\$8.25	\$7.28	\$0.00	\$42.54	
5	70	\$29.09	\$8.25	\$19.39	\$0.00	\$56.73	
6	75	\$31.17	\$8.25	\$19.95	\$0.00	\$59.37	
7	80	\$33.25	\$8.25	\$20.51	\$0.00	\$62.01	
8	90	\$37.40	\$8.25	\$21.63	\$0.00	\$67.28	
Notes:							
·	Steps are 750 hrs.						
Appre	ntice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:1						
HOISTING ENGINEER/CRANES/GRADALLS OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4		06/01/2020) \$49.33	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.03
		12/01/2020	\$50.48	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.18
		06/01/202	1 \$51.58	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.28

12/01/2021

\$52.73

\$13.00

\$15.70

\$0.00

\$81.43

Effecti	ve Date - 06/	01/2020			Supplemental	
Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	55	\$27.13	\$13.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$40.13
2	60	\$29.60	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$58.30
3	65	\$32.06	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$60.76
4	70	\$34.53	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$63.23
5	75	\$37.00	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$65.70
6	80	\$39.46	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$68.16
7	85	\$41.93	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$70.63
8	90	\$44.40	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$73.10

Apprentice - OPERATING ENGINEERS - Local 4

Effective Date - 12/01/2020

Effect	ive Date -	12/01/2020				Supplemental	
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	55		\$27.76	\$13.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$40.76
2	60		\$30.29	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$58.99
3	65		\$32.81	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$61.51
4	70		\$35.34	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$64.04
5	75		\$37.86	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$66.56
6	80		\$40.38	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$69.08
7	85		\$42.91	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$71.61
8	90		\$45.43	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$74.13

Apprentice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:6

HVAC (DUCTWORK)	08/01/2020	\$50.67	\$13.50	\$24.12	\$2.65	\$90.94
HEETMETAL WORKERS LOCAL 17 - A	02/01/2021	\$52.32	\$13.50	\$24.12	\$2.70	\$92.64
	08/01/2021	\$54.07	\$13.50	\$24.12	\$2.75	\$94.44
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- SHEET METAL WORKER"	02/01/2022	\$55.82	\$13.50	\$24.12	\$2.80	\$96.24
VAC (ELECTRICAL CONTROLS)	03/01/2020	\$53.50	\$13.00	\$19.20	\$0.00	\$85.70
LECTRICIANS LOCAL 103	09/01/2020	\$54.45	\$13.00	\$19.73	\$0.00	\$87.18
	03/01/2021	\$55.41	\$13.00	\$20.01	\$0.00	\$88.42
	09/01/2021	\$56.84	\$13.00	\$20.06	\$0.00	\$89.90
	03/01/2022	\$58.04	\$13.00	\$20.09	\$0.00	\$91.13
	09/01/2022	\$59.48	\$13.00	\$20.13	\$0.00	\$92.61
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- ELECTRICIAN"	03/01/2023	\$60.67	\$13.00	\$20.17	\$0.00	\$93.84
IVAC (TESTING AND BALANCING - AIR)	00/01/2020	¢50 (7	¢12.50	\$24.12	¢2.45	¢00.04
HEETMETAL WORKERS LOCAL 17 - A	08/01/2020	\$50.67	\$13.50	\$24.12	\$2.65	\$90.94
	02/01/2021	\$52.32	\$13.50	\$24.12	\$2.70	\$92.64
	08/01/2021	\$54.07	\$13.50	\$24.12	\$2.75	\$94.44
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- SHEET METAL WORKER"	02/01/2022	\$55.82	\$13.50	\$24.12	\$2.80	\$96.24
FOR apprentice rates see "Apprentice-SHEET METAL WORKER"						

For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- SHEET METAL WORKER"

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
HVAC (TESTING AND BALANCING -WATER)	03/01/2020	\$56.19	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$86.88
PIPEFITTERS LOCAL 537	09/01/2020	\$57.69	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$88.38
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER"	03/01/2021	\$59.19	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$89.88
HVAC MECHANIC	03/01/2020	\$56.19	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$86.88
PIPEFITTERS LOCAL 537	09/01/2020	\$57.69	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$88.38
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER"	03/01/2021	\$59.19	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$89.88
HYDRAULIC DRILLS	06/01/2020	\$39.90	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.59
LABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2020	\$40.88	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.57
	06/01/2021	\$41.90	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.59
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2021	\$42.91	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.60
INSULATOR (PIPES & TANKS) HEAT & FROST INSULATORS LOCAL 6 (BOSTON)	09/01/2019	\$48.44	\$12.80	\$16.40	\$0.00	\$77.64

Apprentice - ASBESTOS INSULATOR (Pipes & Tanks) - Local 6 Boston

Effecti	ive Date - 09/01/2019				Supplemental	
Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	50	\$24.22	\$12.80	\$11.90	\$0.00	\$48.92
2	60	\$29.06	\$12.80	\$12.80	\$0.00	\$54.66
3	70	\$33.91	\$12.80	\$13.70	\$0.00	\$60.41
4	80	\$38.75	\$12.80	\$14.60	\$0.00	\$66.15
Notes:	Steps are 1 year					- — — —
Appre	ntice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:4					
IRONWORKER/WELI IRONWORKERS LOCAL 7 (B		03/16/2019	9 \$46.6	6 \$8.00	\$23.50	\$0.00 \$78.16

Apprentice - IRONWORKER - Local 7 Boston

Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
1	60	\$28.00	\$8.00	\$23.50	\$0.00	\$59.50
2	70	\$32.66	\$8.00	\$23.50	\$0.00	\$64.16
3	75	\$35.00	\$8.00	\$23.50	\$0.00	\$66.50
4	80	\$37.33	\$8.00	\$23.50	\$0.00	\$68.83
5	85	\$39.66	\$8.00	\$23.50	\$0.00	\$71.16
6	90	\$41.99	\$8.00	\$23.50	\$0.00	\$73.49
Notes	** Structural 1:6; Ornamental 1:4					

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
JACKHAMMER & PAVING BREAKER OPERATOR	06/01/2020	\$39.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.09
LABORERS - ZONE I	12/01/2020	\$40.38	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.07
	06/01/2021	\$41.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.09
	12/01/2021	\$42.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.10
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
LABORER	06/01/2020	\$39.15	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$64.84
LABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2020	\$40.13	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.82
	06/01/2021	\$41.15	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.84
	12/01/2021	\$42.16	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.85

			ABORER - Zone 1						
	Step	ive Date - percent	06/01/2020	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	60		\$23.49	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$49.18	
	2	70		\$27.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$53.10	
	3	80		\$31.32	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$57.01	
	4	90		\$35.24	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$60.93	
	Effecti	ive Date -	12/01/2020				Supplemental		
	Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	60		\$24.08	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$49.77	
	2	70		\$28.09	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$53.78	
	3	80		\$32.10	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$57.79	
	4	90		\$36.12	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$61.81	
	Notes:								
	Appre	ntice to Jo	urneyworker Ratio:1:5						
ABORER: CA		TER TEND	ER	06/01/2020	\$39.15	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$64.84
BORERS - ZONE	1			12/01/2020	\$40.13	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.82
				06/01/202	\$41.15	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.84
For apprentice	rates see '	'Apprentice- I	_ABORER"	12/01/202	\$42.16	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.85
ABORER: CE	MENT			06/01/2020) \$39.15	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$64.84
BORERS - ZONE	1			12/01/2020	\$40.13	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.82
				06/01/202	\$41.15	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.84
				12/01/202	\$42.16	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.85
For apprentice									
ABORER: HA		OUS WAS'	TE/ASBESTOS REMOVER	06/01/2020	\$39.30	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$64.99
For apprentice	rates see '	'Apprentice- I	LABORER"						
ABORER: MA		ENDER		06/01/2020	\$39.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.09
BORERS - ZONE	1			12/01/2020	\$40.38	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.07
				06/01/202	\$41.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.09
				12/01/202	\$42.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.10
For apprentice	rates see '	'Apprentice- I	LABORER"						

Issue Date: 08/27/2020

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
LABORER: MULTI-TRADE TENDER	06/01/2020	\$39.15	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$64.84
LABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2020	\$40.13	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.82
	06/01/2021	\$41.15	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.84
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2021	\$42.16	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.85
LABORER: TREE REMOVER	06/01/2020	\$39.15	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$64.84
LABORERS - ZONE I	12/01/2020	\$40.13	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.82
	06/01/2021	\$41.15	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.84
	12/01/2021	\$42.16	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.85
This classification applies to the removal of standing trees, and the trimming an clearance incidental to construction . For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LAB		bs when related t	o public work	s construction	or site	
LASER BEAM OPERATOR	06/01/2020	\$39.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.09
LABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2020	\$40.38	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.07
	06/01/2021	\$41.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.09
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2021	\$42.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.10
MARBLE & TILE FINISHERS	08/01/2020	\$42.57	\$10.75	\$20.27	\$0.00	\$73.59
	08/01/2020 02/01/2021	\$42.57 \$43.08	\$10.75 \$10.75	\$20.27 \$20.27	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$73.59 \$74.10
MARBLE & TILE FINISHERS BRICKLAYERS LOCAL 3 - MARBLE & TILE						

Apprentice -	MARBLE & TILE FINISHER - Local 3 Marble & Tile
--------------	--

Effecti	ive Date -	08/01/2020				Supplemental		
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	50		\$21.29	\$10.75	\$20.27	\$0.00	\$52.31	
2	60		\$25.54	\$10.75	\$20.27	\$0.00	\$56.56	
3	70		\$29.80	\$10.75	\$20.27	\$0.00	\$60.82	
4	80		\$34.06	\$10.75	\$20.27	\$0.00	\$65.08	
5	90		\$38.31	\$10.75	\$20.27	\$0.00	\$69.33	

Effective Date - 02/01/2021 Step percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	2
1 50	\$21.54	\$10.75	\$20.27	\$0.00	\$52.56	5
2 60	\$25.85	\$10.75	\$20.27	\$0.00	\$56.87	7
3 70	\$30.16	\$10.75	\$20.27	\$0.00	\$61.18	3
4 80	\$34.46	\$10.75	\$20.27	\$0.00	\$65.48	3
5 90	\$38.77	\$10.75	\$20.27	\$0.00	\$69.79)
Notes:						
Apprentice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:3						
MARBLE MASONS, TILELAYERS & TERRAZZO MECH	08/01/2020) \$55.77	\$10.75	\$22.08	\$0.00	\$88.60
BRICKLAYERS LOCAL 3 - MARBLE & TILE	02/01/202	1 \$56.41	\$10.75	\$22.08	\$0.00	\$89.24
	08/01/202	1 \$57.81	\$10.75	\$22.24	\$0.00	\$90.80
	02/01/2022	2 \$58.38	\$10.75	\$22.24	\$0.00	\$91.37

	Effecti	ve Date -	08/01/2020				Supplemental		
	Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50		\$27.89	\$10.75	\$22.08	\$0.00	\$60.72	
	2	60		\$33.46	\$10.75	\$22.08	\$0.00	\$66.29	
	3	70		\$39.04	\$10.75	\$22.08	\$0.00	\$71.87	
	4	80		\$44.62	\$10.75	\$22.08	\$0.00	\$77.45	
	5	90		\$50.19	\$10.75	\$22.08	\$0.00	\$83.02	
		ve Date -	02/01/2021		TT 1.1	р :	Supplemental	T (1 D (
	Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage		Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50		\$28.21	\$10.75	\$22.08	\$0.00	\$61.04	
	2	60		\$33.85	\$10.75	\$22.08	\$0.00	\$66.68	
	3	70		\$39.49	\$10.75	\$22.08	\$0.00	\$72.32	
	4	80		\$45.13	\$10.75	\$22.08	\$0.00	\$77.96	
	5	90		\$50.77	\$10.75	\$22.08	\$0.00	\$83.60	
	Notes:								
	Appre	ntice to Jou	urneyworker Ratio:1:5						
		-	ON CONST. SITES)	06/01/2020	\$48.81	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$77.51
OPERATING ENGI	VEERS LC	ICAL 4		12/01/2020) \$49.95	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.65
				06/01/202	\$51.04	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.74
For apprentice	rates see "	Apprentice- O	PPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2021	\$52.18	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.88
MECHANICS M	MAINTI	ENANCE		06/01/2020) \$48.81	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$77.51
OPERATING ENGI	VEERS LC	OCAL 4		12/01/2020			\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.65
				06/01/2021			\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.74
For apprentice	rates see "	Apprentice- O	PPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/202	\$52.18	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.88
MILLWRIGHT				04/01/2019	\$42.22	\$9.90	\$18.50	\$0.00	\$70.62

Apprentice -	MARBLE-TILE-TERRAZZO MECHANIC - Local 3 Marble & Tile
Effective Date	- 08/01/2020

	Аррісі							
	Effecti	ve Date - 04/01/2019				Supplemental		
	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	55	\$23.22	\$9.90	\$5.31	\$0.00	\$38.43	
	2	65	\$27.44	\$9.90	\$15.13	\$0.00	\$52.47	
	3	75	\$31.67	\$9.90	\$16.10	\$0.00	\$57.67	
	4	85	\$35.89	\$9.90	\$17.06	\$0.00	\$62.85	
-	Notes:							
		Steps are 2,000 hours					i	
	Appre	ntice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:5						
MORTAR MIXE			06/01/2020) \$39.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.09
LABORERS - ZONE	1		12/01/2020	\$40.38	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.07
			06/01/202	\$41.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.09
			12/01/202	\$42.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.10
For apprentice ra	ates see "	Apprentice- LABORER"						
		N TRUCK CRANES, GRADALLS)	06/01/2020	\$23.13	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$51.83
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4		JCAL 4	12/01/2020	\$23.70	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$52.40
			06/01/202	\$24.25	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$52.95
			12/01/202	\$24.83	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$53.53
		Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
OILER (TRUCK OPERATING ENGIN		NES, GRADALLS)	06/01/2020	\$27.79	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$56.49
S. BRITHIO ENOIN			12/01/2020	\$28.47	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$57.17
			06/01/2021	\$29.11	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$57.81
For apprentice r	ates see "	Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/202	\$29.79	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$58.49
		YEN EQUIPMENT - CLASS II	06/01/2020) \$48.81	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$77.51
OPERATING ENGIN			12/01/2020				\$0.00	\$77.51 \$78.65
							\$0.00 \$0.00	
			06/01/2021					\$79.74
For apprentice ra	ates see "	Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2021	\$52.18	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.88
PAINTER (BRIE			07/01/2020) \$51.51	\$8.25	\$22.40	\$0.00	\$82.16
PAINTERS LOCAL 3:	5 - ZONE	22	01/01/202	\$52.06	\$8.25	\$22.75	\$0.00	\$83.06
								-

Apprentice -	MILLWRIGHT - Local 1121 Zone 1
	01/01/0010

Effect	ive Date - 07/01/2020				Supplemental		
Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	50	\$25.76	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$34.01	
2	55	\$28.33	\$8.25	\$6.05	\$0.00	\$42.63	
3	60	\$30.91	\$8.25	\$6.60	\$0.00	\$45.76	
4	65	\$33.48	\$8.25	\$7.15	\$0.00	\$48.88	
5	70	\$36.06	\$8.25	\$19.10	\$0.00	\$63.41	
6	75	\$38.63	\$8.25	\$19.65	\$0.00	\$66.53	
7	80	\$41.21	\$8.25	\$20.20	\$0.00	\$69.66	
8	90	\$46.36	\$8.25	\$21.30	\$0.00	\$75.91	

Apprentice - PAINTER Local 35 - BRIDGES/TANKS

2021
2

Effec Step	tive Date - 01/01/2021 percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	50	\$26.03	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$34.28	
2	55	\$28.63	\$8.25	\$6.16	\$0.00	\$43.04	
3	60	\$31.24	\$8.25	\$6.72	\$0.00	\$46.21	
4	65	\$33.84	\$8.25	\$7.28	\$0.00	\$49.37	
5	70	\$36.44	\$8.25	\$19.39	\$0.00	\$64.08	
6	75	\$39.05	\$8.25	\$19.95	\$0.00	\$67.25	
7	80	\$41.65	\$8.25	\$20.51	\$0.00	\$70.41	
8	90	\$46.85	\$8.25	\$21.63	\$0.00	\$76.73	
Notes	: Steps are 750 hrs.						
Appr	entice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:1						
	R SANDBLAST, NEW) *	07/01/2020	\$41.21	\$8.25	\$22.40	\$0.00	\$71.86
	urfaces to be painted are new construction e used. <i>PAINTERS LOCAL 35 - ZONE 2</i>	on, 01/01/2021	\$42.96	\$8.25	\$22.75	\$0.00	\$73.96

Effecti	ive Date -	07/01/2020				Supplemental	
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	50		\$20.61	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$28.86
2	55		\$22.67	\$8.25	\$6.05	\$0.00	\$36.97
3	60		\$24.73	\$8.25	\$6.60	\$0.00	\$39.58
4	65		\$26.79	\$8.25	\$7.15	\$0.00	\$42.19
5	70		\$28.85	\$8.25	\$19.10	\$0.00	\$56.20
6	75		\$30.91	\$8.25	\$19.65	\$0.00	\$58.81
7	80		\$32.97	\$8.25	\$20.20	\$0.00	\$61.42
8	90		\$37.09	\$8.25	\$21.30	\$0.00	\$66.64

Apprentice -	PAINTER Local 35 Zone 2 - Spray/Sandblast - New
Effective Date	07/01/2020

Effective Date - 01/01

Effect	ive Date - 01/01/2021				Supplemental		
Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	50	\$21.48	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$29.73	
2	55	\$23.63	\$8.25	\$6.16	\$0.00	\$38.04	
3	60	\$25.78	\$8.25	\$6.72	\$0.00	\$40.75	
4	65	\$27.92	\$8.25	\$7.28	\$0.00	\$43.45	
5	70	\$30.07	\$8.25	\$19.39	\$0.00	\$57.71	
6	75	\$32.22	\$8.25	\$19.95	\$0.00	\$60.42	
7	80	\$34.37	\$8.25	\$20.51	\$0.00	\$63.13	
8	90	\$38.66	\$8.25	\$21.63	\$0.00	\$68.54	
Notes:							
	Steps are 750 hrs.						
Appre	entice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:1	·					
	SANDBLAST, REPAINT)	07/01/2020	\$40.47	\$8.25	\$22.40	\$0.00	\$71.12
PAINTERS LOCAL 35 - ZON	E 2	01/01/2021	\$41.02	\$8.25	\$22.75	\$0.00	\$72.02

Effecti	ive Date -	07/01/2020			Supplemental		
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	50		\$20.24	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$28.49
2	55		\$22.26	\$8.25	\$6.05	\$0.00	\$36.56
3	60		\$24.28	\$8.25	\$6.60	\$0.00	\$39.13
4	65		\$26.31	\$8.25	\$7.15	\$0.00	\$41.71
5	70		\$28.33	\$8.25	\$19.10	\$0.00	\$55.68
6	75		\$30.35	\$8.25	\$19.65	\$0.00	\$58.25
7	80		\$32.38	\$8.25	\$20.20	\$0.00	\$60.83
8	90		\$36.42	\$8.25	\$21.30	\$0.00	\$65.97

Apprentice -	PAINTER Local 35 Zone 2 - Spray/Sandblast - Repaint
Effective Date	- 07/01/2020

Effective Date -	01/01/2021
Effective Date -	01/01/2021

Effective Date - 01/01/2021				Supplemental		
Step percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1 50	\$20.51	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$28.76	
2 55	\$22.56	\$8.25	\$6.16	\$0.00	\$36.97	
3 60	\$24.61	\$8.25	\$6.72	\$0.00	\$39.58	
4 65	\$26.66	\$8.25	\$7.28	\$0.00	\$42.19	
5 70	\$28.71	\$8.25	\$19.39	\$0.00	\$56.35	
6 75	\$30.77	\$8.25	\$19.95	\$0.00	\$58.97	
7 80	\$32.82	\$8.25	\$20.51	\$0.00	\$61.58	
8 90	\$36.92	\$8.25	\$21.63	\$0.00	\$66.80	
Notes:						
Steps are 750 hrs.						
Apprentice to Journeyworker Ra						
PAINTER (TRAFFIC MARKINGS)	06/01/202	0 \$39.15	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$64.84
LABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/202	0 \$40.13	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.82
	06/01/202	1 \$41.15	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.84
	12/01/202	1 \$42.16	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.85
For Apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
PAINTER / TAPER (BRUSH, NEW) *	07/01/202	0 \$41.01	\$8.25	\$22.40	\$0.00	\$71.66
* If 30% or more of surfaces to be painted are new of NEW paint rate shall be used. <i>PAINTERS LOCAL 35 - ZO</i>	01/01/202	1 \$41.56	\$8.25	\$22.75	\$0.00	\$72.56

Effecti	ve Date -	07/01/2020				Supplemental	
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	50		\$20.51	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$28.76
2	55		\$22.56	\$8.25	\$6.05	\$0.00	\$36.86
3	60		\$24.61	\$8.25	\$6.60	\$0.00	\$39.46
4	65		\$26.66	\$8.25	\$7.15	\$0.00	\$42.06
5	70		\$28.71	\$8.25	\$19.10	\$0.00	\$56.06
6	75		\$30.76	\$8.25	\$19.65	\$0.00	\$58.66
7	80		\$32.81	\$8.25	\$20.20	\$0.00	\$61.26
8	90		\$36.91	\$8.25	\$21.30	\$0.00	\$66.46

Apprentice - PAINTER - Local 35 Zone 2 - BRUSH NEW

Effective Date - 01/01

	Effect	ive Date - 01/01/2021				Supplemental		
	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	e
	1	50	\$20.78	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$29.03	3
	2	55	\$22.86	\$8.25	\$6.16	\$0.00	\$37.27	7
	3	60	\$24.94	\$8.25	\$6.72	\$0.00	\$39.91	l
	4	65	\$27.01	\$8.25	\$7.28	\$0.00	\$42.54	1
	5	70	\$29.09	\$8.25	\$19.39	\$0.00	\$56.73	3
	6	75	\$31.17	\$8.25	\$19.95	\$0.00	\$59.37	7
	7	80	\$33.25	\$8.25	\$20.51	\$0.00	\$62.01	l
	8	90	\$37.40	\$8.25	\$21.63	\$0.00	\$67.28	3
	Notes							
	Ì	Steps are 750 hrs.						
	Appre	entice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:	1					
		RUSH, REPAINT)	07/01/2020	\$39.07	\$8.25	\$22.40	\$0.00	\$69.72
PAINTERS LOCAL	L 35 - ZON	E 2	01/01/2021	\$39.62	\$8.25	\$22.75	\$0.00	\$70.62

Effect	tive Date -	07/01/2020				Supplemental	
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	50		\$19.54	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$27.79
2	55		\$21.49	\$8.25	\$6.05	\$0.00	\$35.79
3	60		\$23.44	\$8.25	\$6.60	\$0.00	\$38.29
4	65		\$25.40	\$8.25	\$7.15	\$0.00	\$40.80
5	70		\$27.35	\$8.25	\$19.10	\$0.00	\$54.70
6	75		\$29.30	\$8.25	\$19.65	\$0.00	\$57.20
7	80		\$31.26	\$8.25	\$20.20	\$0.00	\$59.71
8	90		\$35.16	\$8.25	\$21.30	\$0.00	\$64.71

Apprentice - PAINTER Local 35 Zone 2 - BRUSH REPAINT

Effe	ective Date -	01/01/2021				Supplemental		
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total F	Rate
1	50		\$19.81	\$8.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$28	3.06
2	55		\$21.79	\$8.25	\$6.16	\$0.00	\$36	5.20
3	60		\$23.77	\$8.25	\$6.72	\$0.00	\$38	3.74
4	65		\$25.75	\$8.25	\$7.28	\$0.00	\$41	.28
5	70		\$27.73	\$8.25	\$19.39	\$0.00	\$55	5.37
6	75		\$29.72	\$8.25	\$19.95	\$0.00	\$57	.92
7	80		\$31.70	\$8.25	\$20.51	\$0.00	\$60	0.46
8	90		\$35.66	\$8.25	\$21.63	\$0.00	\$65	5.54
Note	es: Steps are 7	– — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —						
Арр	orentice to Jour	rneyworker Ratio:1:1						_
PANEL & PICKUP T			08/01/2020	\$36.08	\$12.91	\$13.72	\$0.00	\$62.71
TEAMSTERS JOINT COU	NCIL NO. 10 ZONI	E A	12/01/2020	\$36.08		\$14.82	\$0.00	\$63.81
			06/01/2021	\$36.88	\$12.91	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$64.61
			08/01/2021	\$36.88	\$13.41	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$65.11
			12/01/2021	\$36.88	\$13.41	\$16.01	\$0.00	\$66.30
PIER AND DOCK C DECK) PILE DRIVER LOCAL 56 (For apprentice rates so	(ZONE 1)	R (UNDERPINNING ANI	08/01/2019	9 \$48.94	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$79.99
PILE DRIVER PILE DRIVER LOCAL 56 (08/01/2019	9 \$48.94	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$79.99

Effective Da	nte - 08/01/2019				Supplemental		
Step perc	cent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1 50		\$24.47	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$55.52	
2 60		\$29.36	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$60.41	
3 70		\$34.26	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$65.31	
4 75		\$36.71	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$67.76	
5 80		\$39.15	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$70.20	
6 80		\$39.15	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$70.20	
7 90		\$44.05	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$75.10	
8 90		\$44.05	\$9.90	\$21.15	\$0.00	\$75.10	
Notes:							
Apprentice	to Journeyworker Ratio:1:5						
PIPEFITTER & STEAMFIT	ΓER	03/01/2020	\$56.19	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$86.88
PIPEFITTERS LOCAL 537		09/01/2020	\$57.69	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$88.38
		03/01/2021	\$59.19	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$89.88

Apprentice - PILE DRIVER - Local 56 Zone 1 08/01/2010

Apprentice - PIPEFITTER - Local 537 Effective Dete 03/01/2020

Effecti	ve Date -	03/01/2020				Supplemental		
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	40		\$22.48	\$10.95	\$8.00	\$0.00	\$41.43	
2	45		\$25.29	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$55.98	
3	60		\$33.71	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$64.40	
4	70		\$39.33	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$70.02	
5	80		\$44.95	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$75.64	

Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
1	40	\$23.08	\$10.95	\$8.00	\$0.00	\$42.03
2	45	\$25.96	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$56.65
3	60	\$34.61	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$65.30
4	70	\$40.38	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$71.07
5	80	\$46.15	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$76.84

Apprentice to Journeyworker Ratio:**

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
PIPELAYER	06/01/2020	\$39.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.09
LABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2020	\$40.38	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.07
	06/01/2021	\$41.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.09
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2021	\$42.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.10
PLUMBERS & GASFITTERS	03/01/2020	\$58.69	\$12.07	\$17.26	\$0.00	\$88.02
PLUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12	09/01/2020	\$58.69	\$13.57	\$17.26	\$0.00	\$89.52
	03/01/2021	\$60.19	\$13.57	\$17.26	\$0.00	\$91.02

Effective Date	PLOMBER/GASFIITER - Local e = 03/01/2020	12					
Step perce		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	
1 35		\$20.54	\$12.07	\$6.24	\$0.00	\$38.85	
2 40		\$23.48	\$12.07	\$7.08	\$0.00	\$42.63	
3 55		\$32.28	\$12.07	\$9.63	\$0.00	\$53.98	
4 65		\$38.15	\$12.07	\$11.33	\$0.00	\$61.55	
5 75		\$44.02	\$12.07	\$13.03	\$0.00	\$69.12	
Effective Date					Supplemental		
Step perce	nt A	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1 35		\$20.54	\$13.57	\$6.24	\$0.00	\$40.35	
2 40		\$23.48	\$13.57	\$7.08	\$0.00	\$44.13	
3 55		\$32.28	\$13.57	\$9.63	\$0.00	\$55.48	
4 65		\$38.15	\$13.57	\$11.33	\$0.00	\$63.05	
5 75		\$44.02	\$13.57	\$13.03	\$0.00	\$70.62	
Step4	; 2:6; 3:10; 4:14; 5:19/Steps are 1 with lic\$65.32, Step5 with lic\$72 Journeyworker Ratio:**	-				 	
	•					<u> </u>	
NEUMATIC CONTROLS (T. PEFITTERS LOCAL 537	EMIP.)	03/01/2020			\$19.74	\$0.00	\$86.88
		09/01/2020			\$19.74	\$0.00	\$88.38
For apprentice rates see "Apprenti	ce- PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER/PIPEFI	03/01/2021 TTER"	1 \$59.17	\$10.95	\$19.74	\$0.00	\$89.86
NEUMATIC DRILL/TOOL C	PERATOR	06/01/2020) \$39.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.09
BORERS - ZONE 1		12/01/2020	\$40.38	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.07
		06/01/2021	\$41.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.09
For apprentice rates see "Apprenti	ce- LABORER"	12/01/202	\$42.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.10
DWDERMAN & BLASTER		06/01/2020) \$40.15	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.84
BORERS - ZONE 1		12/01/2020			\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.82
		06/01/2021			\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.84
		12/01/202			\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.85
For apprentice rates see "Apprenti	ce- LABORER"	12/01/202	φτ5.10	ψ0.00	ψ1,.0 <i>)</i>		φ00.0J

Apprentice - PLUMBER/GASFITTER - Local 12

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
POWER SHOVEL/DERRICK/TRENCHING MACHINE	06/01/2020	\$49.33	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.03
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	12/01/2020	\$50.48	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.18
	06/01/2021	\$51.58	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.28
	12/01/2021	\$52.73	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$81.43
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
PUMP OPERATOR (CONCRETE) OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	06/01/2020	\$49.33	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.03
	12/01/2020	\$50.48	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.18
	06/01/2021	\$51.58	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.28
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2021	\$52.73	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$81.43
PUMP OPERATOR (DEWATERING, OTHER)	0.6/01/2020		¢12.00	¢15.70	¢0.00	
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	06/01/2020	\$32.72	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$61.42
	12/01/2020	\$33.50	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$62.20
	06/01/2021	\$34.25	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$62.95
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2021	\$35.04	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$63.74
READY MIX CONCRETE DRIVERS after 4/30/12	08/01/2020	\$27.90	\$10.91	\$14.12	\$0.00	\$52.93
(Drivers Hired After 4/30/2012) TEAMSTERS 25 (Metro) - Aggregate	05/01/2021	\$27.90	\$10.91	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$55.31
	08/01/2021	\$29.15 \$29.15	\$10.91	\$15.25	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$55.81 \$55.81
	05/01/2022			\$15.25	\$0.00 \$0.00	
		\$30.40 \$20.40	\$11.41 \$11.01	\$15.25		\$57.06 \$57.56
READY-MIX CONCRETE DRIVER	08/01/2022	\$30.40	\$11.91		\$0.00	\$57.56
TEAMSTERS 25 (Metro) - Aggregate	08/01/2020	\$32.91	\$10.91	\$14.12	\$0.00	\$57.94
	05/01/2021	\$33.66	\$10.91	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$59.82
	08/01/2021	\$33.66	\$11.41	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$60.32
	05/01/2022	\$34.41	\$11.41	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$61.07
	08/01/2022	\$34.41	\$11.91	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$61.57
RECLAIMERS OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	06/01/2020	\$48.81	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$77.51
	12/01/2020	\$49.95	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.65
	06/01/2021	\$51.04	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.74
	12/01/2021	\$52.18	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.88
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"				<i></i>	* **	
RIDE-ON MOTORIZED BUGGY OPERATOR LABORERS - ZONE 1	06/01/2020	\$39.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.09
	12/01/2020	\$40.38	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.07
	06/01/2021	\$41.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.09
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2021	\$42.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.10
ROLLER/SPREADER/MULCHING MACHINE	0(10110000	¢40.01	¢12.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	¢77 51
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	06/01/2020	\$48.81	\$13.00	\$15.70 \$15.70	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$77.51
	12/01/2020	\$49.95	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$78.65
	06/01/2021	\$51.04	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.74
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2021	\$52.18	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.88
ROOFER (Inc.Roofer Waterproofing & Roofer Damproofg)	08/01/2020	\$16.60	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$74.50
ROOFERS LOCAL 33	08/01/2020	\$46.60 \$48.03	\$11.75 \$11.75	\$16.15		\$74.50 \$75.02
	02/01/2021	\$48.03	\$11.75		\$0.00 \$0.00	\$75.93
	08/01/2021	\$49.46	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$77.36
	02/01/2022	\$50.89	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$78.79

		ve Date - 08/01/2020				a 1		
	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50	\$23.30	\$11.75	\$3.81	\$0.00	\$38.86	
	2	60	\$27.96	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$55.86	
	3	65	\$30.29	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$58.19	
	4	75	\$34.95	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$62.85	
	5	85	\$39.61	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$67.51	
	Effecti	ve Date - 02/01/2021				Supplemental		
	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50	\$24.02	\$11.75	\$3.81	\$0.00	\$39.58	
	2	60	\$28.82	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$56.72	
	3	65	\$31.22	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$59.12	
	4	75	\$36.02	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$63.92	
	5	85	\$40.83	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$68.73	
	Notes:	** 1:5, 2:6-10, the 1:10; Ro Step 1 is 2000 hrs.; Steps (Hot Pitch Mechanics' rec	-				 	
	Appre	ntice to Journeyworker Ra	ntio:**					
		E / PRECAST CONCRETI	E 08/01/2020) \$46.85	5 \$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$74.75
OFERS LOCA	L 33		02/01/2021	\$48.28	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$76.18
			08/01/2021	\$49.71	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$77.61
			02/01/2022	\$51.14	\$11.75	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$79.04
		Apprentice- ROOFER"						
HEETMETA IEETMETAL W			08/01/2020				\$2.65	\$90.94
			02/01/202				\$2.70	\$92.64
			08/01/202				\$2.75	\$94.44
			02/01/2022	2 \$55.82	\$13.50	\$24.12	\$2.80	\$96.24

App	rent	ice -	ROOFER - Local 33
T1 66		D (09/01/2020

-rr							
Effecti	ive Date -	08/01/2020				Supplemental	
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	42		\$21.28	\$13.50	\$5.89	\$0.00	\$40.67
2	42		\$21.28	\$13.50	\$5.89	\$0.00	\$40.67
3	47		\$23.81	\$13.50	\$11.13	\$1.45	\$49.89
4	47		\$23.81	\$13.50	\$11.13	\$1.45	\$49.89
5	52		\$26.35	\$13.50	\$12.08	\$1.56	\$53.49
6	52		\$26.35	\$13.50	\$12.33	\$1.57	\$53.75
7	60		\$30.40	\$13.50	\$13.70	\$1.73	\$59.33
8	65		\$32.94	\$13.50	\$15.15	\$1.83	\$63.42
9	75		\$38.00	\$13.50	\$16.56	\$2.04	\$70.10
10	85		\$43.07	\$13.50	\$17.96	\$2.24	\$76.77

Apprentice - SHEET METAL WORKER - Local 17-A

	10	85	\$43.07	\$13.50	\$17.96	\$2.24	\$76.77	
	Effecti Step	ve Date - 02/01/2021 percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	42	\$21.97	\$13.50	\$5.89	\$0.00	\$41.36	
	2	42	\$21.97	\$13.50	\$5.89	\$0.00	\$41.36	
	3	47	\$24.59	\$13.50	\$11.13	\$1.48	\$50.70	
	4	47	\$24.59	\$13.50	\$11.13	\$1.48	\$50.70	
	5	52	\$27.21	\$13.50	\$12.08	\$1.58	\$54.37	
	6	52	\$27.21	\$13.50	\$12.33	\$1.59	\$54.63	
	7	60	\$31.39	\$13.50	\$13.70	\$1.76	\$60.35	
	8	65	\$34.01	\$13.50	\$15.15	\$1.88	\$64.54	
	9	75	\$39.24	\$13.50	\$16.56	\$2.08	\$71.38	
	10	85	\$44.47	\$13.50	\$17.96	\$2.28	\$78.21	
	Notes:	Steps are 6 mos. ntice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:4						
		H MOVING EQUIP < 35 TONS	09/01/2020	D \$265	4 \$12.01	\$13.72	\$0.00	¢(2.17
TEAMSTERS JOINT		-	08/01/2020 12/01/2020			\$13.72	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$63.17 \$64.27
			06/01/202			\$14.82	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$65.07
			08/01/202			\$14.82	\$0.00	\$65.57
			12/01/202			\$16.01	\$0.00	\$66.76
SPECIALIZED I	EARTH	H MOVING EQUIP > 35 TONS	08/01/2020			\$13.72	\$0.00	\$63.46
TEAMSTERS JOINT	COUNC	IL NO. 10 ZONE A	12/01/2020			\$14.82	\$0.00	\$64.56
			06/01/202	1 \$37.6	3 \$12.91	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$65.36
			08/01/202	1 \$37.6	3 \$13.41	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$65.86
			12/01/202	1 \$37.6	3 \$13.41	\$16.01	\$0.00	\$67.05
SPRINKLER FI			03/01/2020) \$60.82	2 \$9.68	\$20.55	\$0.00	\$91.05
SPRINKLER FITTER	SPRINKLER FITTERS LOCAL 550 - (Section A) Zone 1		10/01/2020	\$62.32	2 \$9.68	\$20.55	\$0.00	\$92.55
			03/01/202	1 \$63.82	2 \$9.68	\$20.55	\$0.00	\$94.05

Issue Date: 08/27/2020

Effect	ive Date - 03/	01/2020				Supplemental	
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	35		\$21.29	\$9.68	\$11.61	\$0.00	\$42.58
2	40		\$24.33	\$9.68	\$12.30	\$0.00	\$46.31
3	45		\$27.37	\$9.68	\$12.99	\$0.00	\$50.04
4	50		\$30.41	\$9.68	\$13.73	\$0.00	\$53.82
5	55		\$33.45	\$9.68	\$14.36	\$0.00	\$57.49
6	60		\$36.49	\$9.68	\$15.05	\$0.00	\$61.22
7	65		\$39.53	\$9.68	\$15.74	\$0.00	\$64.95
8	70		\$42.57	\$9.68	\$16.43	\$0.00	\$68.68
9	75		\$45.62	\$9.68	\$17.11	\$0.00	\$72.41
10	80		\$48.66	\$9.68	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$76.14

Apprentice -	SPRINKLER FITTER - Local 550 (Section A) Zone 1
Eff	02/01/2020

10	80		\$48.66	\$9.68	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$76.14	
Effec Step	etive Date - percent	10/01/2020	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	;
1	35		\$21.81	\$9.68	\$11.61	\$0.00	\$43.10)
2	40		\$24.93	\$9.68	\$12.30	\$0.00	\$46.91	
3	45		\$28.04	\$9.68	\$12.99	\$0.00	\$50.71	
4	50		\$31.16	\$9.68	\$13.73	\$0.00	\$54.57	(
5	55		\$34.28	\$9.68	\$14.36	\$0.00	\$58.32	1 *
6	60		\$37.39	\$9.68	\$15.05	\$0.00	\$62.12	1 *
7	65		\$40.51	\$9.68	\$15.74	\$0.00	\$65.93	
8	70		\$43.62	\$9.68	\$16.43	\$0.00	\$69.73	
9	75		\$46.74	\$9.68	\$17.11	\$0.00	\$73.53	
10	80		\$49.86	\$9.68	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$77.34	
Note	~ ~	entered prior 9/30/10: 5/60/65/70/75/80/85 50 hours					 	
Арри	rentice to Jour	rneyworker Ratio:1:3						
STEAM BOILER OP			06/01/2020	\$48.81	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$77.51
Of ERMING ENGINEERS	LOCAL 4		12/01/2020) \$49.95	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.65
			06/01/2021	\$51.04	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.74
For apprentice rates see	e "Apprentice- OP	ERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2021	\$52.18	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.88
		R TRACTOR DRAWN	06/01/2020	\$48.81	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$77.51
OPERATING ENGINEERS	LOCAL 4		12/01/2020) \$49.95	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.65
			06/01/2021	\$51.04	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.74
For apprentice rates so	e "Annrentice OB	'ERATING ENGINEERS''	12/01/2021	\$52.18	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.88
Tor apprendice rates set	e apprendee Of	ER HING ENGINEERS						

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
TELECOMMUNICATION TECHNICIAN	03/01/2020	\$40.13	\$13.00	\$17.12	\$0.00	\$70.25
ELECTRICIANS LOCAL 103	09/01/2020	\$40.84	\$13.00	\$17.53	\$0.00	\$71.37
	03/01/2021	\$42.11	\$13.00	\$17.88	\$0.00	\$72.99
	09/01/2021	\$43.77	\$13.00	\$18.00	\$0.00	\$74.77
	03/01/2022	\$45.27	\$13.00	\$18.12	\$0.00	\$76.39
	09/01/2022	\$46.99	\$13.00	\$18.24	\$0.00	\$78.23
	03/01/2023	\$48.54	\$13.00	\$18.37	\$0.00	\$79.91

Apprentice - TELECOMMUNICATION TECHNICIAN - Local 103

- ppro	milee						
Effecti	ive Date -	03/01/2020				Supplemental	
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	45		\$18.06	\$13.00	\$0.54	\$0.00	\$31.60
2	45		\$18.06	\$13.00	\$0.54	\$0.00	\$31.60
3	50		\$20.07	\$13.00	\$14.00	\$0.00	\$47.07
4	50		\$20.07	\$13.00	\$14.00	\$0.00	\$47.07
5	55		\$22.07	\$13.00	\$14.31	\$0.00	\$49.38
6	60		\$24.08	\$13.00	\$14.62	\$0.00	\$51.70
7	65		\$26.08	\$13.00	\$14.94	\$0.00	\$54.02
8	70		\$28.09	\$13.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$56.34
9	75		\$30.10	\$13.00	\$15.56	\$0.00	\$58.66
10	80		\$32.10	\$13.00	\$15.87	\$0.00	\$60.97

Effectiv	ve Date - 09/01/2020				Supplemental		
Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	45	\$18.38	\$13.00	\$0.55	\$0.00	\$31.93	
2	45	\$18.38	\$13.00	\$0.55	\$0.00	\$31.93	
3	50	\$20.42	\$13.00	\$14.20	\$0.00	\$47.62	
4	50	\$20.42	\$13.00	\$14.20	\$0.00	\$47.62	
5	55	\$22.46	\$13.00	\$14.53	\$0.00	\$49.99	
6	60	\$24.50	\$13.00	\$14.87	\$0.00	\$52.37	
7	65	\$26.55	\$13.00	\$15.20	\$0.00	\$54.75	
8	70	\$28.59	\$13.00	\$15.53	\$0.00	\$57.12	
9	75	\$30.63	\$13.00	\$15.87	\$0.00	\$59.50	
10	80	\$32.67	\$13.00	\$16.20	\$0.00	\$61.87	
Notes:							
Appren	tice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:1						
TERRAZZO FINISHER		08/01/2020) \$54.69	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$87.53
BRICKLAYERS LOCAL 3 - MA	RBLE & TILE	02/01/202		\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$88.17
		08/01/2021	\$56.73	\$10.75	\$22.25	\$0.00	\$89.73
		02/01/2022	2 \$57.32	\$10.75	\$22.25	\$0.00	\$90.32

	Effecti	ive Date - 08/01/2020				Supplemental		
	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50	\$27.35	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$60.19	
	2	60	\$32.81	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$65.65	
	3	70	\$38.28	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$71.12	
	4	80	\$43.75	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$76.59	
	5	90	\$49.22	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$82.06	
	Effecti	ive Date - 02/01/2021				Supplemental		
	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50	\$27.67	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$60.51	
	2	60	\$33.20	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$66.04	
	3	70	\$38.73	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$71.57	
	4	80	\$44.26	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$77.10	
	5	90	\$49.80	\$10.75	\$22.09	\$0.00	\$82.64	
	Notes:							
							i	
	Appre	entice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:3						
	ST BORING DRILLER		06/01/2020	0 \$40.55	5 \$8.60	\$17.24	\$0.00	\$66.39
BORERS - FOU	NDATION	AND MARINE	12/01/2020	0 \$41.53	3 \$8.60	\$17.24	\$0.00	\$67.37
			06/01/202	1 \$42.55	5 \$8.60	\$17.24	\$0.00	\$68.39
			12/01/2021	1 \$43.56	5 \$8.60	\$17.24	\$0.00	\$69.40
		"Apprentice- LABORER"						
EST BORING DRILLER HELPER ABORERS - FOUNDATION AND MARINE			06/01/2020	0 \$39.27	7 \$8.60	\$17.24	\$0.00	\$65.11
			12/01/2020	0 \$40.25	5 \$8.60	\$17.24	\$0.00	\$66.09
			06/01/2021	1 \$41.27	7 \$8.60	\$17.24	\$0.00	\$67.11
For apprentic	e rates see '	"Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/202	1 \$42.28	8 \$8.60	\$17.24	\$0.00	\$68.12
EST BORING LABORER			06/01/2020	0 \$39.15	5 \$8.60	\$17.24	\$0.00	\$64.99
ABORERS - FOU	NDATION	AND MARINE	12/01/2020			\$17.24	\$0.00	\$65.97
			06/01/2021			\$17.24	\$0.00	\$66.99
			12/01/202			\$17.24	\$0.00	\$68.00
For apprentic	e rates see '	"Apprentice- LABORER"	12,01,202	- ψ12.10	, 40.00	÷-·· - ·		\$00.00
		LE STEAM GENERATORS	06/01/2020	0 \$48.81	1 \$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$77.51
PERATING ENG	INEERS LO	OCAL 4	12/01/2020	0 \$49.95	5 \$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.65
			06/01/2021	1 \$51.04	4 \$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.74

Apprentice - TERRAZZO FINISHER - Local 3 Marble & Tile Effective Date - 08/01/2020

For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
FRAILERS FOR EARTH MOVING EQUIPMENT TEAMSTERS JOINT COUNCIL NO. 10 ZONE A	08/01/2020	\$37.12	\$12.91	\$13.72	\$0.00	\$63.75
EAMSTERS JOINT COUNCIL NO. 10 ZONE A	12/01/2020	\$37.12	\$12.91	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$64.85
	06/01/2021	\$37.92	\$12.91	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$65.65
	08/01/2021	\$37.92	\$13.41	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$66.15
	12/01/2021	\$37.92	\$13.41	\$16.01	\$0.00	\$67.34
TUNNEL WORK - COMPRESSED AIR	06/01/2020	\$51.38	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00	\$77.67
LABORERS (COMPRESSED AIR)	12/01/2020	\$52.36	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00	\$78.65
	06/01/2021	\$53.38	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00	\$79.67
	12/01/2021	\$54.39	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00	\$80.68
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
TUNNEL WORK - COMPRESSED AIR (HAZ. WASTE)	06/01/2020	\$53.38	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00	\$79.67
ADORERS (COMI RESSED AIR)	12/01/2020	\$54.36	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00	\$80.65
	06/01/2021	\$55.38	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00	\$81.67
	12/01/2021	\$56.39	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00	\$82.68
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
FUNNEL WORK - FREE AIR Aborers (free Air Tunnel)	06/01/2020	\$43.45	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00	\$69.74
	12/01/2020	\$44.43	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00	\$70.72
	06/01/2021	\$45.45	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00	\$71.74
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2021	\$46.46	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00	\$72.75
TUNNEL WORK - FREE AIR (HAZ. WASTE)	06/01/2020	¢ 4 5 4 5	¢9.(0	\$17.69	\$0.00	¢71 74
ABORERS (FREE AIR TUNNEL)		\$45.45 \$46.42	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$71.74 \$72.72
	12/01/2020	\$46.43	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$72.72
	06/01/2021	\$47.45 \$48.46	\$8.60	\$17.69	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$73.74 \$74.75
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2021	\$48.46	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$74.75
/AC-HAUL	08/01/2020	\$36.54	\$12.91	\$13.72	\$0.00	\$63.17
EAMSTERS JOINT COUNCIL NO. 10 ZONE A	12/01/2020	\$36.54	\$12.91	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$64.27
	06/01/2021	\$37.34	\$12.91	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$65.07
	08/01/2021	\$37.34	\$13.41	\$14.82	\$0.00	\$65.57
	12/01/2021	\$37.34	\$13.41	\$16.01	\$0.00	\$66.76
VAGON DRILL OPERATOR	06/01/2020	\$39.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$65.09
ABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2020	\$40.38	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$66.07
	06/01/2021	\$41.40	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$67.09
	12/01/2021	\$42.41	\$8.60	\$17.09	\$0.00	\$68.10
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2021	Ψ12.71	<i>40.00</i>	÷1,107	ψ υι σσ	ψ00.10
VASTE WATER PUMP OPERATOR	06/01/2020	\$49.33	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$78.03
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	12/01/2020	\$50.48	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$79.18
	06/01/2021	\$51.58	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$80.28
	12/01/2021	\$52.73	\$13.00	\$15.70	\$0.00	\$81.43
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
VATER METER INSTALLER	03/01/2020	\$58.69	\$12.07	\$17.26	\$0.00	\$88.02
LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12	09/01/2020	\$58.69	\$13.57	\$17.26	\$0.00	\$89.52
	03/01/2021	\$60.19	\$13.57	\$17.26	\$0.00	\$91.02

Additional Apprentice Information:

Minimum wage rates for apprentices employed on public works projects are listed above as a percentage of the pre-determined hourly wage rate established by the Commissioner under the provisions of the M.G.L. c. 149, ss. 26-27D. Apprentice ratios are established by the Division of Apprenticeship Training pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23, ss. 11E-11L.

All apprentices must be registered with the Division of Apprenticeship Training in accordance with M.G.L. c. 23, ss. 11E-11L.

All steps are six months (1000 hours.)

Ratios are expressed in allowable number of apprentices to journeymen or fraction thereof, unless otherwise specified.

** Multiple ratios are listed in the comment field.

- *** APP to JM; 1:1, 2:2, 2:3, 3:4, 4:4, 4:5, 4:6, 5:7, 6:7, 6:8, 6:9, 7:10, 8:10, 8:11, 8:12, 9:13, 10:13, 10:14, etc.
- **** APP to JM; 1:1, 1:2, 2:3, 2:4, 3:5, 4:6, 4:7, 5:8, 6:9, 6:10, 7:11, 8:12, 8:13, 9:14, 10:15, 10:16, etc.